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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
1. For the fiscal year ended: 31 December 2023

2. SEC ldentification Number: C8201627300 3. BIR Tax Identification No.: 009-468-103-000

4. Exact name ol issuer as specified in its Charter:
SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

5. Metro Manila, Philippines 6, : (SEC Use Only)
Province, country, or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code
incorporation or organization

7. 112 Legaspi Street, Legaspi Village, Barangay San Lorenzo, Makati City, Philippines 1229'
Address of principal office and postal code

8. 02 8B17 2585
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9, Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation, June 30 of every year
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class MNumber of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common 50,073,050,000*

11, Areany or all of these securities listed on a stock exchange?
Yes[X] No[ ]

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”); common shares,

12. Check whether the [ssuer:

() has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder, or
Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, or Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of
the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was
required to file such reports); and

Yes [X] No[]

! The Company's business address is the 20% Floor AIA Tower (formerly Philamlife Tower), 8767 Paseo de Ronas, Barangay Bel-Air,
Makat Uity, Philippines 1226

2 Only 9,998,828,397 common shares are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 40,073,050,000 common
shares are nol yel listed,
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(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.

Yes [X] No| ]

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The aggregate
markel value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or the average bid and
asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the date of filing. If a
determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be made without involving
unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates may
be calculated on the basis of assumplions reasonable under the circumstances, provided the assumptions are

set forth in this Form.

Number of Shares Owned by Non-Affiliates (Public)

8,182,153,995

Closing Price as of December 31, 2023

1.32

Affiliates (Public) as of December 31, 2023

Aggregate Market Value of Voting Stock Held by Non- Php 10,800,443.273.4

[This portion of the Annual Report was intentionally left blank. |
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PART I - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Business

SP New Energy Corporation (“SPNEC,” the “Corporation”, the “Company” or the
“Issuer™), formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation, was incorporated and
registered with the Seccurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) on 23 November 2016,
primarily (o construet, erecl, assemble, commission, operute, and mainlain power-generaling
plants, installations, shops, laboratories, pipelines, repair shops, electrical works, powerhouses,
warehouses, tenminals, and related facilities for the conversion of renewable energy into usable
form fit for electricity generation and distribution; to promote and undertake research,
development, utilization, manufacture, sale, marketing, distribution, and commercial
application of new, renewable, non-conventional, and environment-friendly energy sources
and systems, including, but not limited to, solar, wind, water, heat, steam, ocean, tidal, biomass,
biogas, chemical, mechanical, electrical, synthetic, agricultural, and other natural, fossil or non-
fossil fuel-based, artificial, organic, or otherwise, and of energy systems that usc new,
renewable, and any energy resource applying new and efficient energy conversion and/or
utilization technologies for commercial application, and to perform other ancillary and
incidental actvities as may be provided by and under contract with the government of the
Republic of the Philippines or any subdivision, instrumentality, or agency thereof, or any
government-owned and controlled corporation, or other entity engaged in the development,
supply. and distribution of renewable energy.

SPNEC holds 100% and, therefore, absolute controlling interest in Terra Nueva, Inc. (TNI).
TNI was incorporated and registered with the SEC on 31 August 2022, primarily to purchase,
or otherwise acquire the stocks, bonds, and other securitics or evidence of indebtedness of any
other corporation, association, firm or entity, domestic or foreign, and to issue m exchange
therefor its own stocks, bonds, or other obligations or to pay therefor in cash, or otherwise; to
hold or own, use, sell, issue, deal in, dispose of, and turn to account, any such stocks, warrants,
options, bonds, or other securities, and while the owner or holder thereof, to exercise all the
rights and powers of ownership including the right to vote thereon for any purpose; to acquire,
take over, hold and control all or any part of the business, goodwill, property and other assets,
and to assume or underiake the whole or any part of the liabilities and obligations of any person,
firm, association, or corporation, whether domestic or foreign, and whether a going concern or
not, engaging in or previously engaged in business which the corporation is or may become
authorized to carry on or which may be appropriate or suitable for any and all of the purposes
of the corporation or otherwise, and to pay for the same in cash or in stocks, bonds or securitics
of the corporation or otherwise, and to hold, manage, operate, conduct and dispose of, in any
manner, the whole or part of any such acquisition, and to exercise all the powers necessary or
convenient for the conduct and management thereof; provided that the corporation shall not act
as dealer and broker of securities.

Acquisition of Solar Philippines Assets

On 15 May 2023, SPNEC entered into a Contract to Sell Shares with SPPPHI and individual
stockholder (Sellers) for SPNEC (Buyer) to purchase SPPPHI and Leandro Antonio L.
Leviste's (“Mr. Leviste™) rights, titles, and interests in and to the Solar Philippines Assets (as
defined below), using the proceeds of SPPPHI’s subscription to 24,37 billion SPNEC common
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shares, premised on the SEC approval of SPNEC’s increase in authorized capital stock.

On the same date, SPNEC entered into Deeds of Absolute Sale (“DOAS™) with SPPPHI for
SPNEC to purchase SPPPHI’s rights, titles, and interests in and to Solar Philippines Tarlac
Corporation (“SPTC”) and Solar Philippines Rooftop Corporation (“SPRC") for a purchase
price of 2,325.0 million.

On 9 June 2023, SPNEC entered into another DOAS with SPPPHI for SPNEC 1o purchase
SPPPHI's rights, titles, and interests in and to the following for a purchase price of P79.9
million:

Solar Philippines Batangas Corporation (“SPBATC™)

Solar Philippines Batangas Baseload Corporation (“SPBBC")
Solar Philippines Central Luzon Corporation (“SPCLC™)

Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corporation (“SPCVC™)
Solar Philippines Eastern Corporation (“SPEC")

Solar Philippines Retail Electricity, Inc. (“SPREI")

Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation ("SPSLC™)

Solar Philippines Southem Mindanao Corporation (“SPSMINC")
Solar Philippines Southem Tagalog Corporation (“SPSTAGC”)
Solar Philippines Tarlac Baseload Corporation (“SPTBC™)
Solar Philippines Visayas Corporation (“SPVC™)

Solar Philippines Western Corporation (“SPWC™)

Laguna Rooftop Solar Corporation (“LRSC")

Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (“TSPI")

On 29 June 2023, SPNEC entered into a DOAS with SPPPHI for SPNEC to purchase SPPPHI’s
rights, titles, and interests in and to Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation (“SPCC”) for a
purchase price of P499.1 million.

(the rights, titles, and interests in and to SPTC, SPRC, SPBATC, SPBBC, SPCLC, SPCVC,
SPEC, SPREI, SPSLC, SPSMINC, SPSTAGC, SPTBC, SPVC, SPWC, LRSC, TSPI and
SPCC shall collectively be referred 1o as the “Solar Philippines Assets™)

On 9 November 2023, SPNEC entered into a Deed of Donation and Acceptance with
Countryside Investments Holdings Corporation (“CIHC"), where the latter voluntarily and
absolutely ceded, transferred, and conveyed by way of donation unto the former all its rights
over, title and interests in and to the SP Holdings, Inc. (“SPHI™) shares,

On 20 November 2023, SPNEC and Mr. Leviste entered into a DOAS for SPNEC to purchase
the rights and interests to SPCC’s 60.0 million common shares for a purchase price of P245.4
million. As of 3] December 2023, SPNEC is still waiting for the issuance of ECAR regarding
the transfer of SPCC shares from Mr. Leviste to SPNEC.

Investment of Metro Pacific Investments Corporation (“MPIC")

On 27 March 2023, MPIC entered into a Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA") with SPPPHI to
acquire its rights, title and interest in and to SPNEC for a total of 1,600.0 million common
shares

(Sale Shares) for a total consideration of £2,000.0 million.
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On 5 May 2023, SPNEC entered into an Option Agreement with SPPPHI and MPIC, which
grants the MPIC Group the option to acquire up to 17,400.0 million shares of the SPNEC,
comprising up to 10,000.0 million primary shares for up to #12,500.0 million (Primary Option)
and up to 7,400.0 million secondary shares for up to £9,250.0 million (Secondary Option),
supported by the approval of SPNEC's increase in authorized capital stock from 10,000.0
million to 50,000.0 million shares. Together with the initial acquisition by MPIC from SPPPHI
uf the Sule Shares, a full exercise of these vptions may result in the MPIC Group investing a
total of #23,750.0 million for 19,000.0 million shares and becoming the largest shareholder
with approximately 42.82% ownership in SPNEC.

Investment by MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. ("MGreen")

On 30 November 2023, SPNEC entered into a Subscription Agreement with MGreen, the
renewable energy development arm of Meralco Powergen Corporation (“MGen™), to subscribe
(i) 15.7 billion common shares with par value of P1.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred
shares with par value of P0.01 per share for a total subscription price of P15.9 billion. MGen
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Manila Electric Company, the country’s largest private
sector electric distribution utility company. The transaction will support the expansion of the
Company's project portfolio, including the development of a planned 3.5GW solar power plant
and 4 GWh of battery storage.

On the same date, SPNEC received partial cash subscription from MGreen amounting to P7.0
hillion, and the balance amounting to P8.9 billion was received on 27 December 27 2023.

On 6 December 2023, SPNEC filed its application for an increase in authorized capital stock
(the “ACS Increase Application™) with the SEC, On 17 January 2024, the SEC approved
SPNEC's ACS Increase Application, which approval was received by SPNEC on 19 January
2024. On the same day, SPNEC issued the subscription shares to MGreen, resulting in the latter
owning 50.53% of the total outstanding capital stock of SPNEC.,

Subsequently, on 26 January 2024, MGreen purchased 2,173,913,000 common shares held by
SPPPHI for a total consideration of PhP2,499,999.950,00, With this, MGreen's resulting
ownership in SPNEC is now at 53.66%.

Acquisition of controlling interest in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (“TSPI") from Prime
Infrastructure, Inc. (" Prime ")

On 11 December 2023, SPNEC executed a DOAS to acquire 100% of the shares of Prime in
TSPI for P6,000,0 million. Together with SPNEC's previously acquired shares in TSPI, SPNEC
is now the legal and beneficial owner of 100% of TSPL

The aforementioned acquisitions resulted in 100% interest in the Solar Philippines Assets,
except for SPCC, LRSC, and SPCLC in which SPNEC acquired 62%, 60%, and 1% interests,
respectively, and excluding preferred shares in SPTC.

As of 31 December 2023, SPNEC, TNI, SPHI, Terra Renewables Holdings, Inc. and the Solar
Philippines Assets are referred to herein as the “Group”,

SPNEC's disclosures may be viewed on the PSE Electronic Disclosure Generation Technology.
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Item 2. Properties

The Group's principal office address based on its Articles of Incorporation, as amended, is 112
Legaspi Street, Legaspi Village, Barangay San Lorenzo, Makati City, Philippines 1229. The
Company is, however, holding its business offices at the 20th Floor AIA Tower (formerly
PhilamLife Tower), 8767 Pasco de Roxas, Barangay Bel-Air, Makati City, Philippines 1226.

As of December 31, 2023, the Group is in the process of developing and acquiring land in
support of its plan to develop 10 gigawatts (“GW?™) of solar projects.

The Company had initially secured rights over a total of 118 parcels comprising 352,42
hectares of land composed of leases in Las Pifias, Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija. The Group has since
been continuing the process of securing land and land rights through TNL

SPNEC has leases with 25 years term with the earliest lease commencement and expiry dates
being 1 January 2020 and 30 April 2047, respectively. The leases may be renewed for another
five (5) years or for a reasonable period upon agreement between the Company and the
landowner. In the case however of the lease agreement with Las Pifias Agro Industrial
Corporation, the term shall be extended for another five years after its expiry, subject to further
extensions by written agreement between the Company and the landowner,

In February and April 2021, the Company also entered into a Memorandum of Agreement
("MOA™) with Provincia Investments Corporation (“PIC™) and Lupang Hinirang Holdings
Corporation (“LHHC™), respectively, to acquire land for potential expansion with a total arca
of 125.43 hectares. The Company is currently surveying proposed project sites for possible
future acquisitions.

In 2022 and 2023, The Parent Company and TNI entered into Contracts to Sell (“CTS") with
various landowners for the acquisition of parcels of land with a total land area of 1,287.63
hectares and 798.57 hectares, respectively, TNI also entered into various Deeds of Absolute
Sale Agreement for a total land area of 534.76 hectares which are intended for the Group's
project and for future expansion.

In addition, as part of the business combination under common control, the land with a total
area of 135,68 hectares, deposits for land acquisition with a total land area of 93.53 hectares,
and leased properties with a total land area of 102.49 hectares, which were owned by SP Tarlac
and SP Calatagan were consolidated as part of the Group's properties as of December3 1, 2023,

The Company is developing Phase 1 of the project, a 225 megawatts of direct current
(*MWdc") solar power plant (“Phase 1) in Barangay Las Piiias, Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija with
sub-phases of Phase 1A at 50 MWdc and Phase 1B at 175 MWdc. The Parent Company targets
that Phasc 1A shall be commissioned by mid-2024 while Phase IB is planned to be
commissioned by end of 2025,

Further, SP Calatagan, SP Tarlac and among others were also consolidated through business
combination. SP Calatagan Solar Power Project is a 63.359 megawatt (MW) solar photovoltaic
(PV) facility situated in Batangas and SP Tarlac is a solar power of 100-megawatt (“MW™)
solar photovoltaic (“PV™) facility situated in Tarlac. SP Tarlac has also al SMWexpansion in
the same location.
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Other than those mentioned, the Group did not own any other properties as of 31 December
2023.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Group's knowledge, as of 31 December 2023, it is not involved in any
material legal proceedings and is not aware of any such proceedings pending or threatened
against it or any of its propertics, which are or might be material. The Company has a pending
application with the Energy Regulatory Commission (“ERC") for the approval of a power
supply agreement and a pre-filing application for dedicated point-to-point limited transmission
facilities, but it does not consider these material as the filing of such applications is done in the
ordinary course of business. Moreover, the Company has threatened legal action by suppliers
for payment of outstanding payables which it does not consider material as they are also in the
ordinary course of business.

Further, to the best of the Group’s knowledge, as of 31 December 2023, its affiliates are
involved in a few routine criminal cases for complaints of theft or pilferage of company
property. To the best of the Group’s knowledge, some of its affiliates have threatened legal
action by suppliers for payment of outstanding payables. The Group does not consider any of
these as material as these legal proceedings will not affect the daily operations of its business
nor will they have a material effect on the present financial position of the Group,

Finally, some affiliates with power supply agreements have filed applications for rate approval
before the ERC which are required in the ordinary course of business for a company engaged
in the business of renewable energy development, operation, and production.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

A. The Company held its annual stockholders” meeting for the year 2023 (the “Annual
Meeting”) on 8 June 2023,

The following matters were voted upon during the Annual Meeting:

1. Election of Directors

The following were elected to the BOD during the Annual Meeting:

Mr. Leandro Antonio L. Leviste, as regular director,
M. J. Carlitos G. Cruz, as independent director,

Mr, Benjamin 1. Espiritu, as independent director,

Mr. Carlos Jose P. Gatmaitan, as independent director,
Ms. Hazel Iris P. Lafuente, as regular director,

Mr. Aresty M. Lapitan, as regular director, and

Mr. Martin Charles Crotty, as regular director.

R MhpEAoPp
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Below is a tabulation of the votes cast for each of the above-named individuals:'

K ame of @umh
ominee
I | Ceandro Antonio L. Leviste Ty Ulu'ﬂﬂ R3Z
2 | 1. Carlitos U. Ciuz T, UUE Uh4,833
3 | Benjamin [, Espiritu 7,008.064.833
4 | Carlos Jose P. Gatmaitan 1, lﬂ]H Ub4.832
5 | Hazel Iris P. Latuenie 7088, 064,843
6 | Aresty M. Lapifan 7,USE, HM 833
7 | Martin Charles Crotty iy ﬁr'f 4‘9] GEE )

2, Approval of Minutes of Previous Stockholders’ Meetings

Approval by the stockholders of the minutes of the annual meeting held on 30 August 2022
was sought.

For this item, 5,409,551,948 shares or 77.17% of the Company's shares present or represented
at the meeting were voted in favor of the approval of the minutes of the previous meeting of
the Company’s stockholders.

3 A al of the Audited Financial Statements and Mana et R for the Calendar
Year Ended 31 December 2022

Upon recommendation of the Company's Audit and Risk Management Committee and the
BOD, stockholders’ approval of the Audited Financial Statements and Management Report
for the calendar year ended 31 December 2022 was sought.

For this item, 5,409,711,947 shares or 77.17% of the Company’s shares present or represented
at the meeting were voted in favor of the approval of the Audited Financial Statements and
Management Report for the calendar year ended 31 December 2022.

4. Approval W Conlirm Previous Approvil ol the Company’s Increase in Authorized Capilul
Stock, the Subsequent Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation For
Purposes Enumerated

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least two-

thirds (2/3) of the total outstanding capital stock of the Company was sought to: (i) increase

the Campany's authorized capital stock from PhP1 Billion divided into 10 Billion cominon
shares at a par value of PhP0,10 per share to PhPS5 Billion divided into 50 Billion commaon
shares at a par value of PhP0.10; (ii) file an amendment of the Company’s Articles of

Incorporation for the purpose, including (x) the issuance of 24.373 Billion shares to SPPPHI,

I 'Note: The following directors resigned and wers replaced by individuals set out opposite their names, effective
on the dates provided below:

Outgoing Director Incoming Director Effective Date

Jesusa Loreto A, Arellano Martin Charles Crotty 31 January 2023
Carlos Jose P, Gatmaitun Rochel Donato R. Gloria 11 December 2023
J. Carlitos G. Cruz Pedro Emilio O, Roxas 27 Decemnber 2023
Martin Charles Crotty Amanda Roselle A. Bengson 27 December 2023
Aresty M. Lapitan Manuel V. Pangilinan 27 December 2023
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(v) the acquisition by SPNEC of Solar Philippines Assets, and (z) subsequent issuance of
shares to MPIC.,

For this item, 7,009,685,073 shares or 70.09% of the Company's total outstanding capital
stock were voted in favor of the aforementioned items.

5. Approval of the Waiver of Any Applicable Required Rights Offers or Other Required
Public Offering in Respect of Certain Transactions

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least a
majority of the shares owned by the Company's minority sharcholders present or represented
at the meeting was sought to waive any applicable required rights offers or other required
public offering in respect of: (i) issuance of 24,373,050,000 shares to SPPPHI; (ii) acquisition
by SPNEC, paid at cost and in cash, of 100% of the shares of SPPPHI in Solar Philippines
Assets; and (iii) subsequent issuance of shares to MPIC in relation to SPNEC's increase in
authorized capital stock.

For this item, 3,361,715,945 shares or 100% of the shares held by the Company’s minority
shareholders present or represented at the meeting were voted in favor of the aforementioned
items,

6. Appointment of SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (*SGV™) as the Company's External Auditor
for the Ensuing Fiscal Year

Upon recommendation of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and BOD, approval by
the stockholders of the appointment of SGV as external auditor of the Company for the
ensuing fiscal year was sought.

For this item, 7,009,711,948 shares or 100% of the Company's shares present or represented
at the meeting were voted in favor of the appointment of SGV as the Company’s external
auditor for the ensuing fiscal year.

7. Ratification of Acts, Resolutions, and Decisions of the BOD and Management During the
Previous Year

Stockholders’ ratification of the acts, resolutions, and decisions of the BOD, its committees,
and Management taken and adopted since the previous annual meeting of the stockholders
held on 30 August 2022 up to present was sought.

For this item, 5,409,71 1,948 shares or 77.17% of the Company’s shares present or represented
al the meeting were voted in favor of the ratification.

B. The Company held a special stockholders’ meeting (the “Special Meeting™) on 4
December 2023.

The following matters were voted upon during the Special Meeting:
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I, Approval of Minutes of Previous Stockholders’ Meetings

Approval by the stockholders of the minutes of the annual meeting held on 8 June 2023 was
sought.

For this item, 31,038,152,987 shares or 99.99% of the Company’s shares present or
represented at the meeting were voted in favor of the approval of the minutes of the previous
meeting of the Company's stockholders.

2. Approval of the Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to Increase its
Authorized Capital Stock, Subscription of MGreen and Increase in the Number of
Directors

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least two-
thirds (2/3) of the total outstanding capital stock of the Company was sought to: (i) amend the
Company's Articles of Incorporation to increase its authorized capital stock from PhP5 Billion
divided into 50 Billion common shares at a par value of PhP0.10 per share to
PhP7,750,000,000.00 divided into 75 Billion common shares with a par value of PhP0.10 per
share and 25 Billion preferred shares with a par value of PhP0.01 per share, which shares shall
be voting, redeemable and preferred in payment in case of liquidation and subject to such
returns on investment in such class of shares as may be determined by the Board of Directors;
(ii) accept the subscription of MGreen to 15,700,000,000 common shares and 19,404,202,552
preferred shares to be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock; and (iii) amend
the Corporations’ Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of directors from seven (7)
to nine (9).

For this item, 31,038,152,987 shares or 90.30% of Company’s total outstanding capital stock
were voted in favor of the aforementioned items.

3. Waiver of the Applicabi
the Issuance of to

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least a
majority of the shares owned by the Company’s minority shareholders present or represented
at the meeting was sought to waive the applicable mandatory rights offer or public offering in
refation to the issuance of shares to MGreen of 15,700,000,000 common shares and
19,404,202,552 preferred shares to be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock.

For this item, 1,417,106,982 shares or 99.99% of the shares held by the Company’s minority
shareholders present or represented at the meeting were voted in favor of the aforementioned
items.

4. Conduct of Follow-On Offering to Support the Expansion of the Company's Project
Portfolio and Increase the Public Ownership of its Shares

Upon recommendation of the BOD, approval by the stockholders representing at least a
majority of the total outstanding capital stock of the Company was sought to: (i) offer for sale
and issue common shares and/or preferred shares, as may be determined by the BOD, from
the unissued authorized capital stock and/or from increase in the authorized capital stock by
way of public offering or private placement transactions; (ii) do a follow-on offering of the
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Company's shares, subject to the registration requirements of the SEC and the listing
requirements of the PSE; and (iii) ascertain the number of shares to be offered for sale and its
offer price, appoint the Sole Issue Manager, Bookrunner, and Lead Underwriter and designate
authorized representatives therefor.

For this item, 31,038,152,987 shares or 99.99% of Company’s total outstanding capital stock
were voted in favor of the aforementioned items.

5. Ratification of Acts, Resolutions, and Decisions of the BOD and Management From 8 June
2023

Stockholders® ratification of the acts, resolutions, and decisions of the BOD, its committees,
and Management taken and adopted since the previous annual meeting of the stockhaolders
held on 8 June 2023 up to present was sought.

For this item, 31,038,152,987 shares or 99.99% of Company’s total outstanding capital stock
were voted in favor of the ratification.

PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 5. Market for Issuer’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Securities

As of date, the Issuer has an authorized capital stock of £7,750,000,000.00 divided into
75.000,000,000 common shares with a par value B0.10 per share and 25,000,000,000 preferred
shares with a par value of P0.01 per share divided into 5,595,797 448 Class A preferred shares
and 19,404,202,552 Class B preferred shares.

The total issued and subscribed capital stock of the Company is £5,201,347,025.52.00, divided
into 50,073,050,000 common shares with a par value of P0.10 per share and 19,404,202,552
Class B preferred shares with a par value of R0.01 per share,

The Articles of Incorporation delegated to the Board of Directors of the Company the
determination of the features of Class A Preferred Shares, Class B Preferred Shares, on the
other hand, are (1) voting: (2) non-cumulative; (3) not entitled to any economic returns or
dividends; (4) redeemable at the option of the Company, at issue price, and at such other terms
and conditions as may be determined by the Board of Directors (and shall be immediately
retireable upon redemption thereof); and (5) in the event of the liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company (whether voluntary or involuntary), have preference over the
Commeon Shares in respect of the assets of the Company available for distribution after
payment of the liabilities of the Company.

Common shares are not entitled to pre-emptive rights.

Except for those exempt from the registration requirement under the Securities Regulation
Code (“SRC™), no sales of unregistered securities were made in the past three (3) years,
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No debt securities were registered or contemplated to be registered.
Stock Rights Offering

On 28 March 2022, pursuant to the approval of its BOD, SPNEC confirmed its plan to file the
SRO based on its current unissued authorized capital stock of 1,875,649,995 shares, at an
entitlement ratio of 1 share for every 1.28 shares held (from its current public float of
2,399.614,000 shares), at an offer price range that has been fixed at B1.60 to #1.76 per share,
with the middle of this range being B1.68 per share.

On 8 Apnl 2022, SPNEC filed with the SEC an application for Confirmation of Exempt
Transaction covering the common shares to be issued relative to the SRO, pursuant to Section
10.11 (in respect of the Rights Offer) and 10.1(1) (in respect of the QB Take-Up) of the
Securities Regulation Code (“SRC™) under which the exemption is based. The SEC issued the
Confirmation of Exempt Transaction on 19 July 2022,

On 18 August 2022, SPNEC notified the PSE of the final offer price of #1.50 per share, and
offered the option to pay in installments, with a down payment of 25% and the balance of 75%
within three months of the offer period.

On 15 September 2022, SPNEC completed its SRO and issued 1,875,649,995 new common
shares for a total consideration of P2,813.5 million or at P1.50 par value. This resulted to an
additional paid-in capital of 2,591.4 million, net of transaction costs of 234.5 million.

On | December 2022, SPNEC extended the payment period for partially paid Right Shares for
a period of three months, from 5 December 2022 to 5 March 2023.

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, subscription receivable resulting from those that subscribed
on installment payment amounted to B1.3 million and B651.1 million, respectively. SPNEC
has already received at least 99.84% of the payments and is currently coordinating with the
relevant parties for the completion of the requirements of its SRO.

As of 29 February 2024, only 1,171,603 Rights Shares remain partially paid. The Issuer deems
the remaining partially paid shares as delinquent shares in accordance with the terms of the
Final Prospectus for the Rights Offer and the Revised Corporation Code. Specifically, all
delinguent shares will be sold at auction pursuant to law. In case there are no bidders at such
auction, the Issuer may purchase the delinquent shares, in which case they will become its
treasury shares. Downpayments made on delinquent shares shall be forfeited in favor of the
Issuer.

As of 29 February 2024, 9,998 828 397 of the Issuer’s common shares are listed with the PSE.
Market Information
The Company’s shares are traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange. The high and low sales

prices of SPNEC shares for each quarter for the last two fiscal years and the first quarter of
2024 are as follows:

2022 2023 2024
High | Low High | Low High | Low
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Jan-Mar 2.29 1.15 1.79 1.17 1.40 1.02

Apr-Jun 1.80 1.43 1.76 1.36 -

Jul-Sep 1.78 1.12 Not Not -
Traded Traded

Oct-Dec 1.42 0.99 1.40 1.04 -

The closing price of the Corporation’s common shares as of' 12 April 2024 is P1.03 per share.

Holders

Based on the report of the Stock Transfer Agent for the period ended 31 March 2024, the
following are the stockholders of the Company:

Ne. of Shares |Nn. of Shares | No. of Shares 5
with Option |with Option | | Percentage
A piaadl i+ g -y (100% full | (based on
payment) (25% partial | payment) & |issued commen
payment) |Option2 (25% |  shares)
partial
payment)

SOLAR PHILIPFINES FILIPINO, _ 18,993,050,000 18,993.050,000 | 379306832717
POWER PROJECT
HOLDINGS, INC.*
MGEN RENEWABLE FILIPINGR 15,700,000, 000%* L5, 700,000,000 131.354]1915262*
ENERGY, INC.** . o
PCD NOMINEE FILIPINO| _ 7,073,934,225 1.I71,603 | 7,075.105.828 | 14.1295683566
CORPORATION -
FILIPINO
ASIA PACIFIC FILIPINOl _ 4,150,000,000 4,150,000,000 | 8.2878013907
INSTITUTE FOR
GREEN
DEVELOPMENT INC.**
METRO PACIFIC FILTPIMNOY | 600, 000,000 1,600,000,000 | 3.1953316205
INVESTMENTS
CORPORATION
PAMULINAWEN FILIPING) 1,580,000,000 1.580,000,000 | 3.1553899752
HOLDINGS OPC**
PCD NOMINEE NON 973,724,699 912.118.821 | 1.9446083252
CORPORATION - NON FILIPINO|
FILIPINO
MYRA P. FILIPINO 210,125 210,125 | 0.0004196369
VILLANUEVA
JOSE IVAN T. FILIPING! 200,000 200,000 | 0.0003994163
JUSTINTANO OR MA,
JEMA V. JUSTINIANO
ELVIRA M. CRUZ OR FILIPINGY 150,000 150,000 | 0.0002995623
RERNARDO A. CRUZ
JOHANNA THERESA FILIPING 100,000 100,000 | 0.0001997082
AUSTRIA CID
DOUGLAS TAN FILIPINO 100,000 100,000 | 00001997082
MARK LOUIE APAQ FILIPING! 100,000 100,000 | 0.0001997082
MYRNA P, FILIPINOK 89,062 80.062 | 0.0001778641
VILLANUEVA
MILAGROS P. FILIPING, §9.,062 89,062 | 0.000177864]
VILLANUEVA
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No. of Shares [No. of Shares | No. of Shares %
with Option |with Option | ereenbage
s Nutisashy “:ﬂnﬂﬁ 4 2 (100% full | (based on
payment) (25% partial | payment) & [issned common
payment) (Option2 (25% shares)
partial
payment)
MARIETTA V. FILTPINO 44,531 44,531 | 0.0000889321
CABREZA
JUAN CARLOS V., FILIPINO 44,531 44,531 | 0.0000889321
CABREZA
DEME RAFAEL FILIPINO 28,156 28,156 | 0.0000562298
VALTENTE ABAYON
JOSEMARIA GABRIEL FILIPING 5,000 5,000 | 0.0000099854
D. FADRI
OFELIA R BLANCO FILIPTNG® 5,000 5000 | 00000099854
JENNIFER T. RAMOS FILIPINO 4,000 4,000 | 0.0000079883
PEDRO O. ROXAS FILIPING 1 || 0.0000000020
BENJAMIN [, ESPIRITU FILIPING) 1 1| 0.0000000020
ROCHEL DONATO R. FILIPTNG) | | 0.0000000020
GLORIA
MANUEL V. FILTFING | [ 0.0000000020
PANGILINAN
AMANDA ROSELLE A. FILIPING) | I 0.0000000020
BENGSON
LEANDRO ANTONIO FILTPING) | | 0.0000000020
L. LEVISTE
Total 50,071,878,397 1,171,603 | 50,073,050,000 | 100.000000000
*includes 18,643,050,000 not yet listed
**not vet listed

***does not include 2,173,913,000 common shares which are scripless and indirectly
held or currently under the name of PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) and
19,404,202,552 voting Class B preferred shares which are unlisted.

The public float of the Issuer as of 31 March 2024 is 20.02%.

Background of Shareholders Owning At Least 10% of the Total Outstanding Stock

1. MGen Renewable Energy, Inc.

MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. (MGreen) is the renewable energy (RE) arm of MERALCO
PowerGen Corporation, which is focused on investing in and developing energy projects that
utilize clean and sustainable energy sources. MGreen plays a vital role in the attainment of
MGen's goal of building a balanced power generation portfolio.

Currently, MGreen has an RE portfolio that includes the PowerSource First Bulacan Solar Inc,
also called as BulacanSol, a 55MWac solar plant in San Miguel, Bulacan in partnership with
PowerSource Energy Holdings Corporation; the Nuevo Solar Energy Corp. (NSEC), a
68MWac solar farm in Currimao, llocos Norte with Vena Energy's Pasuquin Energy Holdings
Inc.; and the PH Renewables, Inc. (PHRI), a 75MWac solar farm in Baras, Rizal with Mitsui
& Co,'s Mit-Renewables Philippine Corporation.
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2. Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc,

SPPPHI is a domestic holding corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of
the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with principal office at |12 Legaspi Street, Legaspi
Village, Barangay San Lorenzo, Makati City. Among others, it was primarily ereated to invest
in, hold, purchase, acquire, lease, contract, or otherwise, within the limits allowed by law, any
and all real and personal properties of every kind and description whatsoever which it may
deem necessary or appropriate. However, SPPPHI shall not act as dealer and broker of
securities.

3. PCD Nominee Corporation

PCD Nominee Corporation is a wholly owned subsidiary of the PDTC, a corporation
established 1o improve operations in securities transactions and to provide a fast, safe, and
highly efficient system for securities settlement in the Philippines. PCD) Nominee Corporation
acts as trustec-nominee for all shares lodged in the PDTC system, where trades effected on the
PSE are finally settled with the PDTC.

PDTC is a private institution established in March 1995 to improve operations in securities
transactions. Regulated by the SEC, PDTC is owned by major capital market players in the
Philippines, namely the PSE. Bankers Association of the Philippines, Financial Executives
Institute of the Philippines, Development Bank of the Philippines, Investment House
Association of the Philippines, Social Security System, and Citibank N.A.

All PSE-member brokers are participants of the PDTC. Other participants include custodian
banks, institutional investors, and other corporations or institutions that are active players in
the Philippine equities market.

Dividends

The Issuer is authorized to distribute dividends out of its surplus profit, in cash, properties of
the Issuer, shares of stock, and/or securitics of other companies belonging to the Issuer.
Dividends paid in the form of cash or property are subject to approval of the Board of Directors.
Dividends paid in the form of additional shares are subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors and stockholders that own at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of
the Issuer. In case the stock dividends will be coming from an increase in authorized capital
stock, such declaration shall be subject to SEC approval. Holders of outstanding common
shares as of a dividend record date will be entitled to full dividends declared without regard to
any subsequent transfer of such shares.

On 6 Seplember 2021, the Board of Directors approved its dividend policy that gave the Board
of Directors the discretion to declare dividends as they see fit after considering the funding
requirements for future projects subject to the requirements of applicable laws and regulations,
capital expenditure requirements, compliance with the Issuer’s covenants, if any, and other
circumstances that may restrict the payment of dividends. There can be no guarantee that the
Issuer will pay any dividends in the future. Dividends may be declared only from the Issuer's
unrestricted retained earnings.

The Issuer has not declared any kind of dividend to its shareholders since its incorporation.
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Exempt Transactions

On 19 July 2022, the Corporation received a letter from the SEC confirming that its planned
SRO as previously described is a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the
SRC, pursuant to Sections 10.11 and 10.1(1) of the said law.

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Plan of Operation

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND PLAN OF OPERATION

As of date, SPNEC has subsidiaries that are in commercial operations including SPCC and
SPTC.

The Company initially allocated 1,332 million of the net [PO proceeds toward land for future
expansion. However, on 20 December 2021, the BOD resolved that pending the use of said
allocated amount for future land acquisitions, effective 19 January 2022, the Company shall be
authorized to allocate the same towards bid bonds, bid security, and other expenses for potential
offtake agreements to enable the Company to be responsive to contracting opportunities as
soon as they arise, in support of the Company’s strategy to pursue such offtake arrangements
on an opportunistic basis. Further, on 14 February 2022, the BOD approved the acquisition of
land in support of the Company’s plan to develop 10 GW of solar projects, to be funded from
proceeds of a stock rights offering (the "SRO") and proceeds from the IPO, as available, and
the delegation of authority to the Company’s President or his authorized representative 1o
determine the location, particular parcels, and terms for such land acquisitions, and authority
to execute contracts for this purpose. On even date, the BOD approved the conduct of the SRO,
in accordance with existing laws and regulations, and subject to the terms to be determined by
Management, the increase of the authorized capital stock of the Company, and the requirements
and relevant approvals of the SEC and the PSE.

On 15 September 2022, the Company completed its SRO and issued 1,875,649,995 new
common shares for a total consideration of P2,813.5 million or at an offer price of 1.50. This
resulted in an additional paid-in capital of #2,591.4 million, net of transaction costs of B34.5
million.

On | December 2022, SPNEC extended the payment period for partially paid Right Shares
for a period of three months, from 5 December 2022 to 5§ March 2023,

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, subscription receivable resulting from those that subscribed
on installment payment amounted to #1.3 million and B651.1 million, respectively. As of April
2024, SPNEC has already received at least 99.84% of the payments and is currently
coordinating with the relevant parties for the completion of the requirements of its SRO.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The summary of financial information is based on the Consolidated Financial Statement as of
31 December 2023 and 2022, and for the twelve-months period Ended 31 December 2023, and
for the six-months period Ended 31 December 2022, which were prepared in accordance with
the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (“PFRS”) and should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and notes contained in this report.
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Investment by MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. ("MGreen")

On November 30, 2023, SP New Energy Corporation (“SPNEC™ or “the Parent Company™)
entered into a Subscription Agreement, whereby MGreen subscribe (i) 15.7 billion common
shares with par value of ®1.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred shares with par value of
P0.01 per share for a total subscription price of P15.9 billion.

On December 6, 2023, SPNEC filed its application for the aforementioned increase in
authorized capital stock with the Philippine Securities and exchange Commission (“SEC™). On
January 17, 2024, the SEC approved the Parent Company's application for the increase in
authorized capital stock. Subsequently, on 26 January 2024, MGreen purchased 2,173,913.000
common shares held by Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc. (“SPPPHI™) for a total
consideration of PhP2,499,999,050.00. With this, MGreen’s resulting ownership in SPNEC is
now at 53.66%.

Aequisition of Solar Philippines Assets

In 2023, SPNEC executed several Deeds of Absolute Sale of Shares (“DOASS™) with certain
affiliates for the following transactions:

Date Counterparty Asset Acquired Consideration
(in millions)
May 15,2023 o T R,
Tune 9, 3023 SP Project Holdings g0, “Philippines Assets 80.0
June 29, 2023 SP Calalagan 502.8
November 20. 2023 | Leandro L. Leviste SP Calatagan 245.9

On November 9, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Deed of Donation and Acceptance with
Countryside Tnvestments Holdings Corporation (*Countryside”), whereby Countryside
donated and conveyed all its rights and obligations in SP Holdings, Inc. (*SP Holdings™) to
SPNEC.

Leandro L. Leviste 1s the major sharcholder of SP Project Holdings and Countryside.
Acquisition of controlling interest in TSPI from Prime Infrastructure, Inc. {(“Prime"’)

As provided under the Memorandum of Agreement (*MOA™) between SP Project Holdings
and Prime Infra and Prime Metro Holdings Corporation (“Prime Metro™), SPNEC acquired
Prime Infra’s 50.01% interest in Terra Solar on December 11, 2023 for B6,000.0 million,
Therealter, Terra Solar became a wholly owned subsidiary of SPNEC.

Material Changes to the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December
31, 2023, compared to the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as of December
31,2022
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Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Position December 31, 2023 vs December 31, 2022

Aicasita December 31, December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
P0.00 2023 31,2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December
) (Audited) (Audited) Amount | Percentage | 2023 2022

Assets

Cash 10,040,424,627 | 37.232,084 | 10,003,192,543 | 26867.13% |  19.62% 0.60%

1 286,288,062 | 286288062 10000% |  056%|  0.00%

i‘;?j‘;gl‘;““ 1319056 | 651,115,661 | (649.796.605) | -99.80% |  0.00% |  10.50%

Toventories 24,800,913 ) 24,800,913 | 100.00% 0.05% 0.00%

E;fiium related | 176920310 | 821,388320 | (694.468.010)| -8455% |  025% | 13.24%

i‘:; current 744366,136 | 18638843 | 725727203 | 3893.63% 1.45% | 0.30%

TOTAL

CURRENT 11.224.119,104 | 1,528.374.908 | 9.695.744.196 | 634.38% | 21.93% | 24.64%

ASSETS

:;g":ﬁ;}f{:::: 10,136,123,220 | 1,671,233,624 | 8.464,889.596 | 506.51% | 19.80% | 26.94%

Land 12,467,340,000 | 12,467,340,000 | 100.00% |  24.36% 0.00%

L'::f;‘:;““‘ -] 312,626,010 | (312,626,010) | -100.00% 0.00% 5.04%

Mnmqm:;:fni“' land | 4 106 776,396 | 2.026.892.396 | 1.369.884,000 |  67.59% |  6.64% | 32.67%

Eitmd e 9,646,601 | 10,201,126 (554.525) -5.44%, 0.02% 0.16%

zi‘; noneurrent | 06 962059 | 654,395.146 |  22.567.813 3.45% 132% | 10.55%

Intangible assets | 13,261,891 642 113261891642 | 100.00% | 25.91% 0.00%

Goodwill 9.954,384 . 0.054.384 |  100.00% 0,02% 0.00%

TOTAL

NONCURRENT | 39,958,695,202 | 4,675,348,302 | 35,283.346,900 | 754.67% | 78.07% | 75.36%

ASSETS

TOTAL . " )

e 51,182,814,306 | 6,203,723,210 | 44,979,091,096 | 725.03% | 100.00% | 100.00%

Liabilities and

Equity

Accounts payable

and accrued 482,626,040 | 65218072 | 417407968 | 640.02% 0.94% 1.05%

EXPENSEs

;:’:l:; related 608442826 | 22770229 | s85.672.597| 2572.10% 119% | 037%

Etm f]’;;;‘:;’]‘c 366,847,748 .| 366847748 |  100.00% 0.72% 0.00%
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Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Financial Position December 31, 2023 vs December 31, 2022

A ; December 31, December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
m:: :';'t]s . 2023 31,2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December
’ (Audited) (Audited) Amount Percentage 2023 2022
Current portion
2l sl 8,962,861 4,538,676 4424185 |  97.48% 0.02% 0.07%
TOTAL
CURRENT 1,466,879.475 |  92,526.977 | 1,374352,498 | 1485.35% 2.87% 1.49%
LIABILITIES
Lease liabilitics -
net of current 381,109,300 | 298,599,744 82,509,556 |  27.63% 0.74% 4.81%
portion
Notes payable -
net of current 2,729,695,924 -| 2729.695.924 | 100.00% 5.33% 0.00%
portion
:‘:"’TF‘T“?" o 4,086,521,200 4,086,521,200 | 100.00% |  7.98%|  0.00%
iabilities -
Other noncurrent 98,633,404 98,633,404 | 100.00% 0.19% 0.00%
liabilities -
TOTAL
NONCURRENT | 7,295,959.828 | 298,599,744 | 6,997,360,084 | 2343.39% | 14.25% | 4.81%
LIABILITIES
FOTAL 8.762.839.303 | 391.126.721 | 8.371.712.582 | 2140.41% | 17.12% |  6.30%
LIABILITIES g gas ’ . .
Capital stock 3.437,305,000 | 1,000,000,000 | 2,437,305,000 | 243.73% 6.72% | 16.12%
;‘td‘a;‘i‘::f' Pald- | 513764400 | 4,938,722,430 | 775041979 |  15.69% | 11.16% | 79.61%
Deposit for future
stock 15,894.042,026 -1 15,894.042,026 | 100.00% |  31.05% 0.00%
subscription
Equity reserve 525,755,142 - 525755142 100.00% 1.03% 0.00%
Revaluation 8,268,091,263 8.268.091.263 |  100.00% | 16.15%|  0.00%
surplus -
Retained . g = 508
camings (Deficit) | 3346151067 | (10c 105 qpy | 5.672277,008 | 449731% | 10.84% 2.03%
39.385.108,907 | 5.812,596,489 | 33,572.512.418 | 577.58% | 76.95% | 93.70%
Ef:rfsf“"““‘“g 3,034,866,096 | 3034866096 | 10000% |  593%|  0.00%
TOTAL p %
EQUITY 42,419,975,003 | 5,812,596,489 | 36,607,378,514 | 629.79% | B82.88% | 93.70%
TOTAL
LIABILITIES | 51,182,814,306 | 6,203,723,210 | 44,979,091,096 | 725.03% | 100.00% | 100.00%
AND EQUITY
Cash

As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company collected its subscription receivables
amounting to P649 8 million and reccived a net advance from related party of P163.3 million.
These amounts were used for the payment of construction-related expenses of P468.0 million,
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and deposits for land acquisition amounting to 297.5 million.

On May 10, 2023, SPNEC received P2,437.3 million from SPPPHI for the subscription of
24.373.05 million common shares at P0.10 par value. Further, in 2023 SPNEC has accepted
cash infusion from SPPPHI amounting to P776.9 million as additional paid-in capital to
SPPPHI’s existing subscription in

SPNEC. The proceeds were used for the purchase of Solar Philippines Assets.

Un November and December 2023, the Parent Company received the full subscription of
MGreen amounting to P15,894.0 million, which was partially used to acquire the 100% of the
shares of Prime in TSPI for P6,000.0 million, and payment for the Parent Company's general
and administrative expenses. The balance of the proceeds will be used for the development of
TSPI project.

During the period, the Parent Company’s subsidiaries including SPCC, SPTC and SPRC
received payments from customers amounting to P1,122.3 million, of which P339.3 million
were used for its operating expenses. SPCC and SPTC made loan payments amounting to
P328.4 million and P285.7 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2023, SPCC paid
dividends to its shareholders amounting to P95.1 million and capital expenditures amounting
to P47.5 million.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivable arises from the revenue from the sale of electricity, and sale of goods and
services of the subsidiaries. These are either interest or non-interest bearing depending on the
clause indicated in the contract and generally collectible within 40 to 60 days.

Outstanding receivable as of December 31, 2023, pertains to receivable by SPCC from National
Transmission Corporation (“Transco™) amounting to P178.7 million, receivable by SPTC from
Manila Electric Company ("MERALCO™) amounting to P78.8 million and the balance is
SPRC’s transactions from its Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) and Engineering,
Procurement, Construction (EPC) services.

Subscription Receivable

Subscription receivable represents shares of stock subscribed to and issued by the Parent
Company but payment from the shareholders has not yet been received.

As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company made collections for subscription receivable
amounting to P649.8 million.

Inventories

This account pertains to the inventories on hand of SPRC which are to be used for the
construction of its contracted Projects amounting to P24.8 million.

Due from Related Parties

As of December 31, 2023, the balance of the Parent Company’s advances to related parties is
P29.9 million, while the subsidiaries' balance of advances to related parties amounted to P97.0
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million.
Oth t Assets

This account mainly consists of short-term investments amounting to P575.8 million that are
restricted interest-bearing accounts opened and established by SPCC and SPTC in accordance
with certain loan and service agreements that will serve as a cash reserve or deposit for the
principal and/or interest payments due on the loans. This also includes prepayments such as
insurance, taxes, rent, and trust fees of P50.3 million, input VAT of P35.5 million, cash bond
deposits of P20.3 million, advance payment to suppliers of P15.3 million, performance bond
of P15.8 million, VAT Receivable of SPTC and SPCC of P16.5 million, creditable withholding
taxes of P8.7 million and other non-trade receivables of P6.3 million.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

At Cost

The substantial increase in this account is due to the addition of the Solar Power Plants of
SPTC, SPCC and SPRC totaling a net book value of P7,037.6 million as of December 31, 2023,
and Construction in Progress (CIP) of SPTC for its | SMW Solar Power Plant; SPRC and LRSC
for its PPA Projects, totaling to P779.7 million. During the period, the Parent Company has
incurred a total amount of P468.0 million which was capitalized to CIP for the ongoing
construction of its SOMW Solar Power Plant.

The Parent Company’s Right of Use Assets (“ROU Assets™) has a total land area of 352.42
hectares with a net book value of P254.0 million. Also, added to this account are the ROU
Assets of SPTC comprising of 102.49 hectares of land with a net book value as of December
31, 2023 of P200.1 million,

As of December 31, 2023, the total land area under lease of the Group, including the Parent
and SPTC is at 454,26 hectares,

At Fair Value

This pertains to the parcels of land currently owned by the Group, including TNI, SPCC and
SPTC, which was reported at their fair market value as of December 31, 2023,

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has a total area of 670,43 hectares of land.

Deposits for Land Acquisition (DFLA)

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the Group made deposits for land
acquisition including land-related costs to various landowners amounting to P887.3 million.
The total amount of P434.2 million paid by SPTC and SPCC was added to this account,

Other Noncurrent Assets

This account mainly consists long-term receivable by SPCC from Transco related to the FIT
adjustments amounting to P319.0 million, input VAT of P216.5 million of SPNEC, TNI and
SPTC, TSPI project development cost of P75.1 million, construction materials of P50.6
million, long-term security deposits on leased properties of P9.4 million and Right-of-Way
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(“ROW™) contracts of P6.3 million.

Intangible Assets

The intangible assets recorded as of December 31, 2023, pertains to the fair values of the
identifiable asscts of TSPI, which is mainly attributable to the Power Supply Agreement of
TSPI that existed at the time of the acquisition amounting to P13,261 9 million.

Goodwill

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of TSPI because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergics and future market growth. The total
goodwill recognized as of December 31, 2023, amounted to P9.9 million which is the
difference between fair value of the identifiable net assets and the total consideration.

Trade an Payables

Trade and other payables include (i) Accounts payable are non-interest bearing and are
normally settled within one year (ii) withholding tax payable pertains to withholding taxes on
professional fees and various payments to contractors for services rendered (iii) accrued
expenses consist mainly of accrual for benefits to host communities, light and water,
professional fees, and (iv) differential cost of replacement energy charged by MERALCO to
SP Tarlac.

The third-party payables for the purchase of goods and services by the Group totaling P50.0
million, accrued interests for the loan facilities of SPTC and SPCC amounting to P99.3 million,
related party payables amounting to P185.1 million as a result of business combination, accrued
expenses totaling P100.3 million, income tax payable of P21.7 million, withholding taxes of
P13.0 million, deferred output VAT of P8.9 million, and statutory payables of P4.4 million.

Due to Related Parties

As of December 31, 2023, SPNEC’s balance of the advances from SPPPHI amounted to 129 .8
million. Also, as a result of the consolidation of Solar Philippines Assets, the amount of P478.4
million was also added to this account.

Lease Liabilities

As of December 31, 2023, the total land area under lease of the Group, including the Parent
and SPTC is at 454.26 hectares. The outstanding lease liabilities of the Parent and SPTC are
P291.0 million and P99.1 million, respectively.

Motes Pavable

This account pertains to the loans payable of SPTC and SPCC which was recorded in the
Group's financial statements as of December 31, 2023 totaling P3,096.5 million.

SPCC
Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (“OLSA") (P3,400.0 million Loan)
On February 14, 2017, SPCC signed an OLSA with BDO, PBB and United Coconut Planters
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Bank (UCPB) (collectively referred to as the “SPCC Lenders”) for a long-term loan facility of
P3,400.0 million to finance the repayment of short-term loan facility, including accrued
interests, and its Project advances from SPPPHI and Solar Philippines Commercial Rooftop
Projects, Inc. (“SPCRPI™), which were used to partially finance the construction of the Project.
The long-term loan from the OLSA carries an interest rate of 6.85% per annum up to April 3,
2022, at which a fixed repricing of the rate has been made 0 7.96% per annum for the
remainder of the long-term loan. An increase in the Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) rate is expected
on April 3, 2024. The principal repayment period shall be semi-annual from October 3, 2018
up to April 3, 2029.

As of December 31, 2023 the loan has an outstanding balance of P1,192.6 million.

SPTC

Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (P2,225.0 million Loan)

On June 18, 2019, SP Tarlac signed an OLSA with BDO Unibank, Inc. (BDO) for a long-term
loan facility of 2,225.0 million to solely finance the construction of the Concepeion Solar
Project.

The proceeds of the loan amounting P2,002.5 million and P222.5 million were received on July
3, 2019 and July 25, 2019, respectively. The principal repayment period shall be semi-annual
beginning on January 3, 2021 up to July 25, 2031.

As of December 31, 2023, the loan has an outstanding balance of P1,903.9 million.

This account arises from the recognition of ROU Assets, lease liabilities, and fair value
measurement of the Group’s land.

Other Noncurrent Liabilities

This account consists of the noncurrent portion of replacement energy costs payable by SPTC
to MERALCO of P95.4 million. The current portion of this replacement energy amounting to
P12.1 million was presented as part of the trade and other payables.

Capital Stock

On 15 May 2023, SPPPHI and the Parent Company entered into a Subscription Agreement,
whereby SPPPHI agreed to subscribe for 24,373,050,000 common shares at the par value of
P0O.10 per share out of the Parent Company’s increase in authorized capital stock upon its
approval by the SEC.

On 31 May 2023, the Parent Company filed with the SEC its application for an increase of the
authorized capital stock and the corresponding Amended Articles of Incorporation of SPNEC
increasing the authorized capital stock from One Billion Pesos (P1,000,000,000.00) divided
into 10 billion common shares at par value of P0.10 per share to Five Billion Pesos
(PhP5,000,000,000.00) divided into 50 billion common shares at par value of P0.10 per share,

On 1 June 2023, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for an increase of its
authorized capital stock.
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Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Comprehensive Income December 31, 2023 vs December 31,

2022
December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis

Amounts in P0.00 31,2023 31, 2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December

(12 Months) | (6 months) Amount | Percentuge | 2023 2022

8,252,107 -

Government share 3,620,537 1,620,537 100.00% 0.03% 0.00%
Benefits to host
comuimities 2,346,121 .| 2346021 10000% |  0.02%)  0.00%
Others 23,767,808 7.557.638 16,208,170 214.46% 0.20% -18.70%
General and
;:;Ln::s trative 207014077 | 38,010,960 169,903,117 446.98% 1.73% | -94.06%

Taxes and Licenses

This account consists of the Group's payments for corporate business permit rencwal,
insurance-related taxes, land-related payments such as real property taxes, CTC of titles, tax
declarations, DAR filing fees, etc. This also includes PSE listing maintenance fees.

Management Fee

For the twelve-month periods ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, the management fees
recorded amounted to P32.0 million and P12.8 million, respectively. The increase pertains to
the recorded management fee for SPCC.

Professional Fees

These are audit fees, appraisal fees on properties of the Group, directors’ fees, legal, and other
consultancy services incurred by the Group. The significant increase to this account pertains to
the legal fees related to the TSPI project.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the Group recognized amortization of
ROU assets amounting to P5.2 million and the balance for the depreciation of other fixed assets.

Penalties and Surcharges

This pertains to the Group's payment of interest on tax deficiencies, amendments of 2022 BIR
returns and PSE penalties for late disclosures.

Trust Fees

These arc fees for the maintenance of the Group's trust accounts, specifically for SPNEC,
SPTC and SPCC
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As of December 31, 2023, with the abovementioned transactions during the period, the
outstanding capital stock of SPNEC increased from P1,000.0 million to P3.437.3 million,

Additional Paid-in Capital

In 2023, SPNEC received a cash infusion from SPPPHI amounting to P776.9 million as
additional paid-in capital to SPPPHI's existing subscription in SPNEC. This was recognized
as additional paid-in capital under equity.

Deposit for Future Stock Subscription

On November 30, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Subscription Agreement with MGreen to
subscribe

(1) 15.7 billion common shares with par value of 1.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred
shares with par value of 20.01 per share for a total subscription price of 15.9 billion. On the
same date, SPNEC received partial cash subscription from MGreen amounting to P7.0
billion, and the balance amounting to 8.9 billion was received on December 27, 2023,

On December 6, 2023, the Parent Company filed its application for the aforementioned increase
in authorized capital stock with the SEC. As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company
presented the cash subscription amounting to P15.9 billion as “Deposits for future stock
subscription” under Equity.

Equity Reserves

This represents the impact of the common control business combination as a result of the Parent
Company’s modified acquisition of 100% of the outstanding shares of SPPPHI in various
entities (i.e., Solar Philippines Assets.)

Revaluation Surplus

The Group's land is comprised of parcels of land with a total land area of 670.43 hectares as
of
December 31, 2023, which was recorded at fair value.

As of December 31, 2023, the fair value increment amounting to P6,041.4 million, net of
deferred income tax, is recognized in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in eguity
under “Revaluation surplus™ account amounting to P8,268.1 million, net of deferred income
1ax.

Retained Eamings

The Group has gained a net income of P5,947.6 million and incurred P55.0 million in stock
issuance costs which was charged against APIC for the twelve-month period ending December
31, 2023.

Material Changes to the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the
Twelve (12) -months ended December 31, 2023, compared to the Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the Six (6) -months ended December 31, 2022,
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As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company has subsidiaries that are in commercial

operations.

Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Comprehensive Income December 31, 2023 vs December 31, 2022

December 31, | December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis
Amounts in P0.00 2023 31, 2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December
(12 Months) | (6 months) Amount Percentage 2023 2022
Revenue 635451217 1 635,451,217 1 00.00% 5.30% LO0%
Cost of sales (327,103,277 -| (327,103,277) 100.00% -2.73% 0.00%
GROSS PROFIT 308,347,940 ) 308.347.940 100.00% 2.57% 0.00%
General and
administrative (207,914,077 | (38,010,960) | (169,903,117) 446.98% -1.73% 04.06%
expenses
Other income
5
(Expense) 6,008,335,292 ) 6,008,335.292 100.00% 50.12% 0.00%
Finance costs (167,232,021) (4.532.695) (162,699.326) | 3589.46% -1.39% 11.22%
Interest income 29,993 447 2,398,960 27,594 487 | 1150.27% 0.25% -5.94%
INCOME (LOSS) - "
BEFORE TAX 5,971.530,581 | (40,144.695) | 6,011,675.276 14975.02% 49.81% 99 .34%,
f;:‘“““" for income 23,949,830 265,138 23,684,692 | 8932.97% 0.20% -0.66%
NET INCOME "
(LOSS) AFTER 5,947,580,751 | (40.409,833) | 5,987,990,584 49.61% | 100.00%
TAX 14818.15%
ag‘n";:"'m"”hm”‘“ 6,041,394 357 | 6041394357 10000% | 5039% |  0.00%
TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE | 11,988,975,107 | (40,409,833) | 12,029,384,940 20768.46° ; 100.00% 100.00%
INCOME (LOSS) e
Revenue

From the date of the acquisition of Solar Philippines Assels and up to December 31, 2023, the
Group has recorded a total of P635.5 million revenue, mainly contributed by SPCC, SPRC,
and SPTC from the sale of electricity.

Cost of Sales
Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Comprehensive Income December 31, 2023 vs December 31,
2022
December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis

Amounts in P0.00 31, 2023 31, 2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December

{12 Months) | (6 months) Amount Peﬂ:enmﬂg 2023 2022
Depreciation and
amortization 210,672.075 .| 210672075 | 10000% |  Li6%|  0.00%
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Insurance 26,389,038 -| 26,389,038 100.00% 0.22% 0.00%
Manpower services 25,163,828 .| 25.163.828 100.00% 0.21% 0.00%
Security services 12,569,952 | 12,569,952 100.00% 0.10% 0.00%
ﬁrics a.m:l_wngcs 11,123,826 -| 11,123,826 100.00% 0.09% D.Uﬂ“fu’i
Inventories issued 8.714.838 ) 8,714,838 100.00% 0.07% 0.00%
Rental 6,731,015 | 6731915 100.00% 0.06% 0.00%
Others 25,737.805 -| 25737808 100.00% 0.21% 0.00%
Cost of Sales 327.103.277 -| 327,103,277 100.00% 2.73% 0.00%

Costs of sale of electricity include expenses incurred by those directly attributable to the
generation of revenues from solar energy. From the date of the acquisition of Solar Philippines
Assets and up to December 31, 2023, the Group has recorded total cost of sales of P327.1
million This account mainly comprised of depreciation of the solar power plant and
amortization of ROU Assets which accounted for 64% of the total Cost of Sales, Other
components arc plant insurance, plant maintenance, power plant preventive maintenance
schedule, salaries and wages, utilities, and others.

General and Administrative Expenses

Horizontal and Vertical Analysis of Comprehensive Income December 31, 2023 vs December 31,

2022
December December Horizontal Analysis Vertical Analysis

Amounts in P0.00 31, 2023 31, 2022 Increase/(Decrease) December | December

(12 Months) | (6 months) Amount | Percentage 2023 2022
Taxes and licenses 40,924,882 6,848,628 34,076,254 497, 56% 0.34% -16.95%
Management fees 32,040,000 | 12,800,000 19,240,000 150.31% 027% | -31.68%
Professional fees 67.000.766 6.401.289 60,599,477 046.68% 0.56% | -15.84%
Depreciation and R
amortization 5,560,646 2,584,193 2,978,453 115.26% 0.05% -6.39%
Bid related cost 7499277 1 7499277 100.00% 0.06% 0.00%
Penaltics and " il
surcharges 6,180,173 1.819.212 4,360,961 239.72% 0.05% -4.50%
Insurance 7,503,489 . 7,503,489 100.00% 0.06% 0.00%
Trust fees 3218271 ) 3,218,271 100.00% 0.03% 0.00%
Rental 8,252,107 100.00% 0.07% 0.00%
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Rental

These are mostly vehicle rentals that the Group incurred in relation to the land acquisition for
project development.

Government Share

The government share shall be equal to one percent (1%) of the gross income from the sale of
electricity generated from solar energy operations. The amount recorded to this account
pertains to SPCC and SPTC.

Benefits to Host Communities

Energy Regulations (E.R.) No. 1-94, grant financial benefits to the host communities/local
government units (LGUs) of the energy-generation company and/or energy sources. This
requires all energy generation companies and/or energy resource developers to provide
financial benefits equivalent to one centavo per kilowatt-hour (P0.01/kWh) of the total
electricity sales of the generation facility to the region, province, city or municipality and
barangay that host the generation facility, as well as establishment of corresponding trust
accounts and the administration thereof by the DOE. The amount recorded to this account
pertains to SPCC and SPTC,

Bid Related Costs / Insurance

This account pertains to the amortization of performance/surety bond fees of the Group's
various projects.

Others

This account consists of supplies, utilities, accommodations, repairs and maintenance, couriers
and postages, and other operating expenses for plant operations of the Group. This also
included provisions for impairment losses that the Group has recognized for the period.

Finance Cosls

This account includes interest accretion on lease liabilities, accruals of interest on loan facilities
of the Group, and others.

Other Income (Expense)

This account is mainly attributable to the remeasurement of its previously held interest in TSPI
based on the provisional fair value which resulted in a remeasurement gain of P5,964.0 million.

Net Income

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the Group has gained a net income of
P5,947.6 million, which is basically due w the remeasurement gain of P5,964.0 million as
discussed in the other income (expense) account,
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ther Comprehensive In

For the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023, the fair value increment amounting to
P6,041.7.0 million, net of deferred income tax, pertains to the land of TNI, SPCC and SPTC.

Key Performance Indicators

Ratin

Formula

December
2023

December
2022

Current ratio

Dividing total current asscts
over total current liabilities

7.65

16.52

Acid test ratio

Dividing total current assets
less inventory over total
current liabilities

7.63

16.52

Solvency ratio

Dividing net income
excluding depreciation and
non-cash provisions over
total

debt obligations

0.70

N/A

Debt-to-equity ratio

Dividing total liabilities
over stockholders’ equity

0.21

0.07

Asset-to-equity ratio

Dividing total assets over
total stockholders’ equity

1.2]

1.07

Interest rate coverage
ratio

Dividing esarnings before
inlerest and taxes of une
period over interest expense
of the sume period

36.70

N/A

Net debt-to-equity Ratio

Dividing total interest-
bearing debis less cash and
cash equivalents over total
stockholders’ equity

.16

N/A

Return on equity (%)

Dividing the net income
(annual basis) by total
stockholders’ equity
(average)

14.02%

N/A

Return on assets (%)

Dividing the net income
(annual basis) by the total
assets (average)

11.62%

N/A
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Item 7. Financial Statements

Attached as Annexes “A"™ and “B™ are the (i) Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month
period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022; and (ii) Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 and for the
Period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and
2021, respectively, which include notes on the financial statements.

Item 8. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosures

SGV, a member firm of Emst & Young Global Limited, has acted as the Company's external
auditor since its incorporation. The Audited Financial Statements of the Company as of
December 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023 and for the Period from July 1, 2023 to December 31,
2023 and for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, were audited by SGV, as set forth in
their report appearing herein.

The Group has not had any material disagreements on accounting matters or financial
disclosure matters with SGV.

There are no plans to replace SGV as external auditor for the succeeding years.

PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the lssuer

As of date, the following are the seven (7) individuals comprising the Corporation's Board of
Directors:

‘Name osition ~of | Perfod Served
Chairman, <lyeat | 2023 toprosent
:::ﬂl:l‘ilnan i President & Chicf | Filipino 77
& Executive Officer
Leandro  Antonio Vice Chairman Filipino 31 |<8ycars | 2016 to present
L. Leviste
Director, Treasurer <1 year 2023 to present
g‘l’“’?ﬂ Donato R. | .14 Chief Finance | Filipino | 58
oria
Officer
Director, < | year 2023 to present
A : Corporate
ing:ddsmﬁuacilc Secretary and | Filipino 49
RS Chief  Operating
Officer
Hazr’el Iris P. Bireciar ko 36 < 8 years 2016 to present
Lafuente
Benjamin I. | Independent - < 3 years 2021 to present
Espiritu Director Fatigato b
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Pedro Emilio O. | Independent
Roxas Director

< | year 2023 to present

Filipino 68

The profile and the business experience of the foregoing directors and key officers for the last
five (5) years are indicated below:

Directors
Manuel V. Pangilinan, 77, Filipino, Chairman, President and CEO

Mr. Manuel V. Pangilinan currently sits as the Chairman and President of Metro Pacific
Investments Corporation. He is the incumbent Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
of Manila Electric Company. Mr. Pangilinan is the CEO and Managing Director of First Pacific
Company Limited. He also serves as the Chairman of PLDT Ine., Smart Communications, Inc.,
PLDT Communications and Energy Ventures Inc., Landco Pacific Corporation; Metro Pacific
Hospital Holdings, Inc., Maynilad Water Services, Inc., Mediaquest, Inc., Associated
Broadcasting Corporation (TV5), Makati Medical Center, Cardinal Santos Medical Center,
Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital, Philex Mining Corporation, PXP Energy Corporation, NLEX
Corporation, Digital Telecommunications Phils. Inc., Digitel Mobile Philippines, Inc. and
MERALCO PowerGen Corporation. In 2012, he was appointed as Vice Chairman of Roxas
Holdings Incorporated which owns and operates the largest sugar milling operations in the
Philippines. Effective January 1, 2024, Mr. Pangilinan assumed the role of Chairman, President
and CEO of PLDT Group. He is the incumbent Chairman of the Board of Trustees of San Beda
College, Hongkong Bayanihan Trust, Philippine Disaster Resilience Foundation, Disaster
Recovery Foundation, Inc. and Philippine Business for Social Progress. Mr, Pangilinan serves
as Co-Chairman of the USPhilippine Society. He also serves as the Vice Chairman of the
Foundation for Crime Prevention. As a known patron of sports, he was named Chairman
Emeritus of the Samahang Basketbol ng Pilipinas and Chairman of the Amateur Boxing
Association of the Philippines. Mr. Pangilinan is also a Member of the Board of Overseers of
The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. Mr, Pangilinan earned his Bachelor of
Arts in Economics Degree from Atenco de Manila University where he graduated cum laude.
He pursued his Master of Business Administration in the Wharton School of Finance and
Commerce as a Procter & Gamble Fellow.

Leandro Antonio L. Leviste, 31, Filipino, Vice Chairman

Mr. Leandro Antonio L. Leviste founded Solar Philippines in 2013 with a mission to accelerate
the development of solar energy in the Philippines. He has received numerous awards,
including being ranked at the top of Forbes Magazine's inaugural “30 Under 30" List for Asia
in 2016 and being named the Young Entrepreneur of the Year Philippines 2022 by Emst &
Young. His first solar project completed in 2014 was awarded the “2016 Sustainable Energy
Finance Award"” by The International Finance Corporation of the World Bank. His pioneering
innovations won for the company the Asian Power Awards for Independent Power Producer
of the Year and Solar Power Project of the Year in 2017. He led the Solar Philippines Nueva
Ecija Corporation during its Initial Public Offering in 2021, becoming the youngest ever
Chairman, President, and CEO of a Philippine-listed company.

He is the youngest ever member of the Management Association of the Philippines and Makati
Business Club. He currently serves as Chairman, President, and CEO of the Solar Philippines
Group.
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Rochel Donato R. Gloria, 58, Filipino, Director, Treasurer, and Chief Finance Officer

Mr. Rochel Donato R. Glona serves as the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) of Meralco PowerGen
Corporation (MGen). Concurrently, he serves as the CFO of Global Business Power
Corporation (GBP), a wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. He is a seasoned executive bringing
in 37 years of leadership experience in corporate finance, business development, and marketing
from various industries, including energy, telecommunications, private equity, among others.
Prior to joining GBP, he served as Vice President and Head of Business Development and
Corporate Planning for First Philec, Inc. He also served as First Vice President and Head for
Energy Trading and Sales for Aboitiz Power Corporation.

Mr. Gloria holds a Master of Business Administration from the Ateneo de Manila University
Graduate School of Business. He graduated with a Bachelor of Science, majoring in Industrial
Management and minor in Mechanical Engineering from De La Salle University.

Amanda Roselle A. Bengson, 49, Filipino, Director, Corporate Secretary, and Chief
Compliance Officer

Ms. Amanda Roselle A. Bengson concurrently serves as the Senior Vice President and
Assistant Corporate Secretary of Meralco PowerGen Corporation (MGen). In addition to her
role, she serves as the Senior Vice President and Head of Corporate Services Division of Global
Business Power Corporation (GBP), a wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. Her role is key in
providing strategic directions for the Company, particularly on Legal, Human Resource
Management, Supply Chain Management, Corporate Communications, and Management
Information System matters. She is a seasoned and highly respected legal and energy
professional given her extensive experience in her profession and the industry. Prior to joining
GBP in 2006, she was with Mirant Philippines where she managed the Company’s legal
operations and held positions at the Puno and Puno Law Offices and SyCip Salazar Hernandez
& Gatmaitan Law Offices.

Ms. Bengson holds a Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo de Manila University and a Bachelor
of Arts in Economics from the same university. She passed the Philippine Bar in 2001.

Hazel Iris P. Lafuente, 36, Filipino, Director

Ms. Lafuente leads the project development, execution, and operations teams of Solar
Philippines. With a background in both the private and public sectors, Ms. Lafuente brings over
I 5 years of experience in project development, management, land acquisition, permitting, and
regulatory compliance. Prior to joining Solar Philippines, she worked at the Philippine Senate
as a legislative staff. Ms. Lafuente graduated from the University of the Philippines with a
degree in Social Sciences (Area Studics) cum laude. She is also a Certified Project Manager
and a lifetime Pi Gamma Mu International Honor Society in Social Sciences member.

Benjamin 1. Espiritu, 70, Filipino, Independent Director

Dr. Espiritu is a Certified Public Accountant, President of Risks, Opportunities Assessment
and Management (ROAM) Inc., Chairman of Banco de Mindoro, Inc., President of EC
Ventures Corporation, and heads several other two-family foundations and privale firms. He is
also an Independent Director of two publicly-listed corporations — Central Azucarera de Tarlac,
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SP New Energy Corporation, Dizon Copper Silver Mines, Inc., NiHao Mineral Resources
International, Inc., and of an insurance corporation — Intrastrata Assurance Corporation. He is
also President of the Mindoro Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Inc, and Chairman of the
Board of Advisers of the Philippine Marine Corps.

He served as a Provincial Governor of Oriental Mindoro and a Brigadier General AFP (Res)
and former Commander of the 7" Marine Brigade for three consecutive years from 2013 to
2015 and Philippines Navy Reserve Unit of the Year for six consecutive years from 2012 to
2017.

In the academe, he was the former Chairman of the Board of Regents of Pamantasan ng
Lungsod ng Maynila concurrent Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Ospital ng Maynila
Medical Center, President of Don Bosco Technical College Mandaluyong, and Dean of Far
Eastern University — Makati. He was also Chairman of the Accounting, Finance, Business and
Governance Department of De La Salle University Graduate School of Business, Program
Coordinator of the Doctor of Business Administration program, and Course Director of the
Corporate Governance and Risk Management program.

He earned his Doctor of Philosophy major in Public Administration degree from the University
of Santo Tomas, Master in National Security Administration from the National Defense
College of the Philippines, Master of Business Administration from De La Salle University,
Bachelor of Science in Commerce, Major in Accounting from De La Salle University, and
completed the Naval Command and General Staff Course at the Naval Command and Staff
College.

Pedro Emilio O. Roxas, 68, Filipino, Independent Director

Mr. Pedro Emilio O. Roxas is the Chairman of Roxas and Company, Inc., Roxaco Land
Corporation, Roxas Holdings, Inc. and Club Punta Fuego, Inc. Mr. Roxas also serves as
Independent Director of Manila Electric Company, Mgen Global Power, Cemex Holdings,
Inc., Oona Insurance Corporation, and an Independent Advisor Metro Pacific Investment
Corporation. Mr. Roxas obtained his degree in Business Administration from the University
of Notre Dame in Indiana, USA.

Key Officers
Dominador M. Camu, Jr., 62, Filipino, Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Dominador M. Camu is the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer (COQ)
of Meralco PowerGen Corporation (MGen). Concurrently, he serves as the COO of Global
Business Power Corporation (GBP), a wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. Mr. Camu also
serves as officer and/or director of various MGen subsidiaries and affiliates. He is a seasoned
Energy and Infrastructure executive bringing in 38 years of leadership experience in strategic
planning, project development, construction, negotiation, asset management & organization
development from different territories in Asia.

Prior to joining MGen, he was the Senior Vice President for Engineering & Project
Management, Operations & Maintenance at Energy Development Corporation where he held
a key role in developing and implementing the Company’s strategic business recovery and
continuity plan. Mr. Camu also held leadership positions at General Electric International, Inc.
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— Taiwan, Ogden Energy Philippines Holdings, Inc., and Philippine National Electrification
Administration.

He has recorded successful accomplishments in mobilizing and managing culturally diverse
EPC and O&M teams who are tasked to construct, commission, operate and maintain complex
power plant facilities. His strong background in training and coaching has encouraged local
plant staff to take on greater responsibilities. As an effective communicator, coupled with
customer-centric approach, he has effectively maintained cordial relations with different
utilities, demanding owners, and partners in Asia (India, Bangladesh, Taiwan, Thailand, and
the Philippines), He is well-versed in aligning the interests of various stakeholders which are
typically centered on exceeding project returns and maintaining a high level of plant
availability, capacity, and efficiency.

Mr. Camu is a Licensed Electrical Engineer. He carned his Bachelor of Science in Electrical
Engineering Degree from Mapua Institute of Technology, Took Advance Professional
Education on Power Engineering at Carl Dulsberg Gesellshaft, Germany,

Alicia G. Brion, 55, Filipino, Head of Controllership

Ms. Alicia G. Brion is the First Vice President and Controller of Meralco PowerGen
Corporation (MGen). Concurrently, she also serves as the First Vice President and Controller
of Global Business Power Corporation (GBP), a wholly owned subsidiary of MGen. She is a
seasoned executive bringing in her expertise in financial controllership and strategic insight,
which are pivotal in enhancing the fiscal health of the organizations she manages.

Prior to joining MGen in 2011, she held various senior leadership positions in accounting and
audit at Bauang Private Power Corporation, AmTrust Financial Holdings Corporation, and LC
Diaz and Company,

Ms. Brion completed her Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration —
Accountancy
from University of the East.

Aresty M. Lapitan, 38, Filipino, Assistant Chief Information Officer

Mr. Lapitan leads the accounting and financial management and operations teams of Solar
Philippines. As a Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Forensic Accountant, Mr. Lapitan
brings over 16 years of experience in streamlining business operations for growth and
profitability. He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy and graduated cum laude from the
Polytechnic University of the Philippines and a Master of Business Administration from the
Ateneo Graduate School of Business. He is a member of the Philippine Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Anthony Maitthew N. Co, 34, Filipino, Assistant Treasurer

Mr. Anthony Matthew N. Co serves as Vice President for Business Development Manila
Electric Company (Meralco). He brings to the Company over 10 years of end-to-end
experience in finance and mergers & acquisitions, with broad-based experience across the
power utilities sector. Prior to joining Meralco, Mr. Co previously worked as Vice President at
Aboitiz Power Corporation where he spearheaded commercial strategy together with business
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development transactions, investment analysis, and fundraising initiatives. His experience
extended to post-investment initiatives including corporate strategic planning.

Mr. Co carned his Bachelor of Science in Management Engineering from Atenco de Manila
University and has successfully completed all three levels of the Chartered Financial Analyst
exam,

Jo Marianni P. Ocampo, 39, Filipino, Assistant Corporate Secretary

Atty. Jo Marianni P, Ocampo is the Head of Corporate Legal of Meralco PowerGen
Corporation (MGen) and Global Business Power Corporation (GBP), She is a seasoned legal
professional bringing in her expertise in legal advisory, due diligence, and transaction
negotiation She is highly adept in contract drafting and review, whether in the ordinary course
of business or in relation to big-ticket projects covering mergers and acquisitions, and loans
and financings, among others.

Prior to joining MGen in 2022, she was the head of Legal for MetroPac Movers, Inc., the
logistics arm of Metro Pacific Investment Corporation. Atty. Ocampo received her primary
legal practice training from SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan,

Atty. Ocampo completed Juris Doctor degree from the Ateneo de Manila University where she
graduated Tth in her class. She completed her Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
Degree at the University of the Philippines — Diliman.

Significant Employees

The Company considers the collective efforts of all of its employees as instrumental to the
overall success of its performance. There is no employee who is not an executive officer who
15 expected 1o make, on his/her own, a significant contribution to the business.

Family Relationships

There are no known family relationships up to the fourth civil degree cither by consanguinity
or affinity among the current members of the Board of Directors and key officers of the
Caorporation.

Item 10. Executive Compensation

The Corporation did not employ any personnel from 31 December 2017 to 30 April 2021.
During this period, the Corporation’s operations, business development, administrative, and
finance functions were handled by its then parent Corporation, SPPPHI, On 30 April 2021, the
Corporation entered into a Management Service Agreement with SPPPHI to provide executive
and leadership support and execute its strategic direction while managing its business
operations from 1 May 2021 to 30 April 2024, which may be rencwed or extended upon
agreement of the parties, for a monthly fee of PhP 2,000,000.00 or PhP24.000,000.00 per year.
The Management Service Agreement covers all necessary administrative and advisory services
on management, investment, and technical matters involving the Corporation's operations,
including but not limited to human resources, legal, finance, and information technology.
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The executive compensation of the Corporation’s officers is part of the Management Service
Agreement paid to SPPPHI for its executive and leadership support.

Regular directors do not receive per diem or monthly compensation. Below are the fees
received by the Corporation’s independent directors:

Year Fees Bonus Other
Compensation

Actual FY N.A.
30 June 2021
Actual FY 1.8 million
Aggregate directors’ | 30 June 2022
fee for Independent | Actual 31 21.8 million N.A. N.A.
Directors December 2022
6 months)
Actual 31 £3.6 million
December 2023

Employment Contracts and Other Arrangements

As of 31 December 2023, the Corporation has no existing arrangements with members of the
Board of Directors, executive officers, and emplovees other than the Management Service
Agreement. There are no special employment contracts between the Corporation and its
executive officers. Further, there are no special retirement plans for executives. There is also
no special compensation to be received from the Corporation.

Warrants and Options Outstanding

As of 31 December 2023, there are no outstanding warrants or options held by directors and
officers nor are there any adjustments in the exercise price of said warrants or options.

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial

Owners

As ol 31 March 2024, the following persons or groups own more than five percent (5%) of the
Corporation’s voting sccurities:

‘Title  of | Name and Address of | Name of Beneficial | Citizenship | No. of Shares | Percen
Class  |Record Owner and |Owner  an | Hela € of
Relationship  with | Relationshij | Total
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Common MGEN Renewable Same as the record | Filipino 17,873,913.000% | 53.66%
Class B | Energy, Inc. owner 19,404,202,552
Preferred (“MGreen”)
(voting)
8"  Floor, Rockwell
Business Center,
Tower 1, Ortigas
Avenue, Barangay
Ugong, Pasig City
Parent Corporation
Common Solar Philippines Mr. Leandro | Filipino 18,993,622,998° | 27.34%
Power Project Antonio L. Leviste
Holdings, Inc. owns 100% of
{"SPPFHI") SPPPHI's
outstanding capital
20™ Floor AIA Tower | siock,
(formerly PhilamLife
Tower), 8767 Paseo de
Roxas, Barangay Bel-
Air, Makati City 1226,
Philippines
Common PCD Nominee PCD Nominee | Filipino 4,900,619.830° | 7.05%
Corporation Corporation, a
(Filipina) wholly owned
subsidiary of the
29"  Floor BDO |PDTC, is the
Equitable Tower, 8751 | registered owner of
Paseo de Roxas, | the shares in the
Makati City, | books of the
Philippines Corporation’s
Stock Trunsler
Stockholder of record | Agent. The
Jor shares lodged with | beneficial owner of
the Philippine such shares entitled

Depository and Trust
Corporation, Inc.
("PDTC")

to vote the same are
PDTCs

participants  who
hold the shares
gither in their own
behalf or on behalf

' Composed of 15,700,000,000 common shares that are certificated and directly held or registered in the name
of MGreen and 2,173,913,000 common shares which are seripless and mdirectly held or currently under the
name of PCD Nominez Corporation (Filiping).

' Composed of 18,993,050,000 commaon shires that are certificated and directly held or registered in the name
of SPPPHI and 572,998 common shares which are scripless and indirectly held or currently under the name
of PCD Momince Corporation (Filipina).

¥ Shares presented in this row excludes shares owned by SPPPHI and MGreen lodged with PDTC,
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of their clients.

Commaon

Asia Pacific Institute
Sfor Green
Development Inc.

48 Dunwoody Street,
University Hills,
Malabon City

Filipino

4,150,000,000

5.97%

The following table shows the ownership of the following directors and officers in the
Corporation’s common shares as of 31 March 2024:

Common | Manuel V. Pangilinan Filipino | | Direct* 0%
1 | Direct**
Common | S4n4r0  Antomio L. | iging 18,093,622.99 | Indirect™** |  37.93%
eviste "
g S | | Direct
Co Rochel i
mmon | Rochel Donato R. Gloria | Filipino 0 Tndirect 0%
; o 0 | Direct
Common | Hazel Iris P. Lafuente Filipino 360,001 | Indirect***» 0%
Amanda Roselle A, |... | | Direct
Common Bengson Filipino 0 Indirect 0%
L. . . 1 | Dircet
Common | Benjamin . Espiritu Filipino 0 Tnd; 0%
ik . | | Direct
Common | Pedro Emilio O. Roxas Filipino 0 | Indirect 0%
Common | Aresty M. Lapitan Filipino 1,000,000 | Indirect 0%
) Filipino 0 | Direct i
N.A. Dominador M. Camu, Jr. 0 [ indirect 0%
e : Filipino 0 | Direct
N.A. Alicia G. Brion 0 T Tndir 0%
i Filipino 0 | Direct
N.A. Jo Marianni P. Ocampo 0 [ndirect 0%
Filipino 0 | Direct
WAL . ;
ﬂ Anthony Matthew N. Co “ 0 Tndirect 0%
Total 15,996,953,02 37.94%

*The single shares of Mr. Pangilinan, Mr. Gloria and Ms, Bengson are held in trust for
SPPPHI,
**The single share of Mr. Leviste is held in trust for SPPPHI.

w**Mr. Leviste holds 18,993,622,998 shares through SPPPHI.
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*44¥Ms. Lafuente's entire shareholding is currenily lodged with the PDTC under PCD
Nominee Corporation, including the qualifying share she holds in trust for SPPPHI.

The aggregate number of common shares directly and indirectly owned by all officers and
directors as a group as of 31 March 2024 is 18,996,983,005 or 37.94 % of the Corporation’s
total outstanding common shares.

Voting Trust

The Corporation is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of voting shares under a
voling trust or similar agreement.

Changes in Control

MGEN Renewable Energy Inc. (“MGreen™), the renewable energy development arm of
Meralco Powergen Corporation (“MGen'"), announced on 12 October 2023 that it has agreed
with SP New Energy Corporation and its parent, Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings,
Inc., to invest Phpl5.9 billion (o subscribe to 15.7 billion common shares and 19.4 billion
redeemable preferred voting shares in the Company. MGen is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Manila Electric Company, the country’s largest private scelor clectric distribution utility
company. The transaction will support the expansion of the Company’s project portfolio,
including the development of a planned 3.5GW solar power plant and 4 GWh of battery
storage.

The 15.7 billion SPNEC common shares have a total subscription price of Php15.7 billion and
represent 31.35% of the issued and outstanding common shares of the Company. The
19.404202552 billion redeemable preferred voting shares have a total subscription price of
Php194.04202552 million and do not have the ability to earn economic returns or dividends.

Upon full payment of the subscription price, MGreen's nominces were elected as directors and
officers of SPNEC. However, MGreen’s shares and the corresponding share certificates were
not issued until 19 January 2024, when the Corporation received from the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) approval of its application for increase in authorized capital
stock.

Subsequently, on 26 January 2024, MGreen purchased an additional 2,173,913,000 common
shares held by SPPPHI for a total consideration of PhP2,499,999 950.00. With this, MGreen's
resulting ownership in SPNEC is now at 53.66%.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Pursuant to SPNEC’s Material Related Party Transactions (“RPT") Policy, the Related Party
Transactions Committee shall review and consider the following factors for RPTs:

e  The terms of the transaction:
e The aggregate value of the transaction;
s  Whether the transaction is arm’s length;
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e  Whether the transaction will benefit the Company or expose it to unwarranted risks or
contingencies, taking into account the size of the transaction and the overall financial
position of the related party;

* The extent of the related party’s interest in the transaction;

*  Whether the transaction is properly supported and documented through transfer pricing
documentation; and

*  Other factors the Related Party Transactions Committee deems relevant.

The RPT Committee is entitled to request for documentation and information it deems
necessary to complete its review,

In the event of a favorable recommendation, the RPT Committee shall endorse the material
RPT 1o the BOD for approval. The BOD should appoint an external independent party to
cvaluate the faimess of the terms of the material RPT. An external independent party may be
an auditing/accounting firm, third-party consultant, or appraiser.

SPNEC has no other transactions with other parties (outside the definition of “related parties™)
that enables the parties to negotiate terms of material transactions that may not be available
from other, more clearly independent parties on an arm's length basis.

Parties are considered to be related if, among others, one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions, the parties are subject to common control, or the
party is an associate or a joint venture. Partics are also considered to be related if they are
subject to common control or common significant influence which include affiliates.
Affiliates are related entities of the Group by virtue of common ownership and representation
to management where significant influence is apparent.

Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accounts with related parties shall be settled in
cash. The transactions are made at terms and prices agreed upon by the parties.

Following are the Group’s related party transactions for the year ended December 31, 2023, for
the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the
related outstanding balances as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Trangactions diring the Ou
periods ended balance an of Decemier 31
Devember 31, December 31,
1023 022 June 30, 2032
(One Year)* (Six Months)  (Ome Year) 1023 a2 Tenms Conditons
Deposits for land
acquisition
Depusits;
Individisal non-interest.  Unsecured:
Stockholder H411 018,085 - L PALLOINORS e bearing Mot impoired
LHHC - - - 270,00, B 270,000,000 ~do- -
PIC - - - 267,000,000 2657, 0, DEK) o= =il
PISE618.085 537,000,000
Depusit
Diepuosits,
AoRy-irEres
SP Projoct Holdings _#- PS00.000,000 [ 85 000 beurs Unsecured
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Transactions during the Cratstanding

perinds ended balance as of December 31
December 31, December 31,
2023 22 June 30, 20322
(Une Yeur|*  (5ix Manthe]  (Une Year) p k] ugd Terms Londinons
Due from related
partics
Due ol
demandable;
non-inleresl Unsecured:
I Progect Holdings  PBLA4333% BB, 700,000 ¥ PRT.967,930 B, 700,000 benring Mol impaired
SPCRM 1,100,000 19,0408 320 - JLAS.0T0 19,098,320 -t ~tlo-
Individual
Stockholder 7.293310 - - 7293310 - “tdo- ~di-
SPCLC 5,000 - - S.000 - - -
8P Holdings - 251 AG0000 - 793,590,000 == ~do-
126920310 PR21 J88.320
e to related
pariies
Due and
demmndalyle;
nan-nilerest
SP* Project Holdings  #326,103,072 P 1, s, 3000 B536,656,775 P22,770,229 bearing Unsecured
Countryside 37,552,681 - = 37,552,682 = o =
TRHI 33,988,916 - - 33.988.916 - == ~dp-
DA 144 443 - - Tdd 443 - =i ~dn-
0844126 $17.770320
Accounis payable
Due and
demandahle;
nEd-fnterest
SPCRIM PAS,TI4 453 B B PR5T14,453 B hearing Unsecured
SF Project Holdinge  SoBR 040,800 50,800,000 24, (00,000 65,881,059 1.2, 700,000 == =thoy-
SMSC B5454482 23450790 - 32,860,361 2730004 - do-
SPMMC 547.956 - - 547,956 o~ «ilo-

LT Y e

*Includes effect of business combination

a. SP Project Holdings

Deed of Assignment between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings

On January 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered into by the Parent Company,
as the assignee, and SP Project Holdings, as the assignor, whereby, SP Project Holdings
assigned to the Parent Company all of its rights and obligations under the September 6,
2016 lease agreement covering a total land area of 169.9 hectares, among others, and
the Parent Company accepted and assumed all of the said rights and obligations thus

assigned, pursuant to the said Deed of Assignment.

Management Services Agreement ("MSA ") between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings
On Apnil 30, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MSA with SP Project Holdings
to provide executive and leadership support and execute its strategic direction while
managing its business operations for a period from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2024,
rencwable upon mutual agreement of both parties, for a monthly fee of P2.0 million,

subject to 5% annual escalation.

The MSA covers all necessary administrative and advisory services on management,
investment and technical matters involving the Parent Company's operations, including

but not limited to human resources, legal, finance, and information technology.
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Prior to May 2021, the administrative and finance functions of the Parent Company
were being handled by SP Project Holdings at no cost to the Parent Company. Starting
May 2021, the key administrative and finance functions are performed by SP Project
Holdings through the MSA. Management fee recognized for the year ended December
31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended
June 30, 2022 amounted to #26.0 million,
812.8 million and #24.0 million, respectively, presented as “Management fees” under
“General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Construction Support Services Agreement (“CSSA ") with §P Project Holdings

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a CSSA with SP Project
Holdings wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide support services, including
engineering, procurement and construction (“EPC™), logistics, warehousing and other
contractor-related services during the construction of the Parent Company’s Phase |
Project.

Construction support services recognized for the year ended December 31, 2023, for
the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022
amounted to B36.0 million, 68.0 million and nil, respectively, which were capitalized
as part of CIP.

Administrative Services Contract (“ASC”) between SP Calatagan and SP Project
Holdings

On May 27, 2020, SPCC entered into an administrative service contract with SPCRPI,
an affiliate, to provide necessary and advisory services on management, investment and
technical matters involving SPCC’s operations, including but not limited to human
resources, legal, finance and information technology. Under the contract, SPCC shall
pay SPCRPI a monthly fee
P1.0 million for a period of ten (10) years from January 1, 2020. On January 22, 2021,
SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all of its rights and obligations
under the administrative service contract to SP Project Holdings. In 2023, SPCC
recognized professional fees amounting to P6,0 million. which is presented as
“Management fees” under “General and administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of income.

Site Acquisition Services Agreement (“SASA") between Terra Nueva and SP Project
Holdings

On December 26, 2022, Terra Nueva entered into a SASA with SP Project Holdings to
cover total land area of 992.73 hectares for a consideration of 150.0 million for site
acquisition services, exclusive of VAT, from October 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022,

As of December 31, 2022, Terra Nueva has fully paid for the site acquisition services
rendered by
SP Project Holdings and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition™ in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Deposit and Services Agreement between Terra Nueva and SP Project Holdings
On December 26, 2022, Terra Nueva entered into an agreement with SP Project
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Holdings, wherein the latter shall provide assistance, representation, facilitation of
documentation and submission of necessary documents and liaison with relevant
government units, agencies and offices including government owned and controlled
corporations to secure land use conversion orders from the DAR for the 992.73 hectares
acquired by the former including the delivery of the relevant conversion arders from
the date of the agrcement until December 31, 2024. To facilitate and expedite the
performance of the services by SP Project Holdings, Terra Nueva has provided the
former a refundable deposit amounting to ®500.0 million which was presented in
“Deposits™ as part of “Other noncurrent assets” as of December 31, 2022.

In 2023, SP Project Holdings has secured multiple land conversion orders from DAR
for parcels of land with a total land area of 992.73 hectares. Terra Nueva then
reclassified the Deposits amounting to B500.0 million as part of land-related costs under
“Deposits for land acquisition™ account.

Intercompany Advance Agreement (144 ") with SP Project Holdings and Terra Nueva
On May 5, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the authority to enter in a loan
arrangement with SP Project Holdings in which SP Project Holdings may lend to
SPNEC an amount up to the net proceeds of the Share Purchase Agreement with MPIC
(net of taxes, costs, and fees), under the terms and conditions approved and
recommended for board approval by the Related Party Transactions Committee of
SPNEC, and the proposed on-lending from SPNEC to Terra Nueva of the proceeds of
this loan.

On June 2023, SPNEC entered into an IAA with SP Project Holdings whereby SP
Project Holdings shall extend a loan to SPNEC wherein the latter shall exclusively use
the proceeds of the loan for on-lending to Terra Nueva. Per JAA, SPNEC shall not
directly or indirectly use the proceeds of the Loan for any other purpose without SP
Project Holdings's prior written consent. The [AA shall have a term of one (1) year,
subject to extension mutually agreed by the parties.

On the same date, SPNEC entered into an JAA with Terra Nueva whereby SPNEC shall
extend a loan to Terra Nueva wherein the latier shall exclusively use the proceeds to
acquire the Project Land, as defined in the IAA. Per IAA, Terra Nueva shall not directly
or indirectly use the proceeds of the Loan for any other purpose without the Lender's
prior written consent. The [AA shall have a term of one (1) year, subject to extension
mutually agreed by the parties.

In 2023, SPNEC received advances from SP Project Holdings which were then
subscquently advanced to Terra Nueva amounting to £300.0 million.

Deed of Assignment of deposit between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings

On December 11, 2023, SP Project Holdings entered into a Deed of Assignment with
the Parent Company whereby the former assigned the deposits in Terra Solar amounting
to 825,96 million to the latter. In 2023, the Group recognized other income amounting
to P25.96 million presented as part of “Other income - net” in the consolidated
statement of income.
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b. LHHC

MOA with LHHC
On April 19, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with LHHC to secure land
covering a total area of 56.81 hectares for a total amount of P270.0 million.

¢. PIC

MOA with PIC

On February 20, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with PIC, which was
later amended on March 3, 2021, to secure land covering a total area of 68.62 hectares
for a total amount of £267.0 million.

d. SPCRPI

Project Development Services Agreement ("PDSA") and Amendment Agreement with
SPCRPI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a PDSA with SP Project
Holdings wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide project development services,
including site identification, permitting and land acquisition, covering a total area of
925.61 hectarcs, for a consideration of B150.0 million, exclusive of VAT.

On October 5, 2022, SP Project Holdings assigned all of its rights and obligations under
the PDSA to SPCRPL.

As of December 31, 2022, the Parent Company has fully paid the services rendered by
SPCRPI and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition” in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

CS8A4 with SPCRPI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a separate CSSA with
SPCRPI wherein SPCRPI shall provide support services, including EPC, logistics,
warehousing and other
contractor-related services during the construction of the Parent Company’s Phase |
Project for a consideration of 100.0 million, exclusive of VAT.

On October 5, 2022, the parties agreed to amend the consideration of the CSSA from
P100.0 million to P219.5 million, exclusive of VAT, As of December 31, 2022, P219.5
million was capitalized in CIP.

¢. Solar Maintenance Services Corporation (“SMSC™)

Support Services Agreement between SPNEC and SMSC

On September 29, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a Support Services
Agreement with SMSC, an affiliate of the Parent Company, wherein SMSC shall
pravide support services during the construction and development of the Parent
Company’s Phase | Project. Manpower services recognized for the year ended
December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the
year cnded June 30, 2022, amounted to P43.6 million, P23.5 million and nil,
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respectively, which were capitalized in CIP.

Property Management Agreement between SP Calatagan and SMSC

SP Calatagan has annual property management agreement with SMSC to maintain and
manage the solar power plant. In Janvary 2022, SPCC renewed its contract for a period
of onc year until December 31, 2022. The agreement was automatically renewed and
extended for another period of one year, subject to standard escalation of service fee at
the rate of 10%. [n 2023,
SP Calatagan recognized outside services amounting to #9.9 million presented as part
of “Costs of sales and services” in consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Operation and Maintenance Agreement between SP Tarlac and SMSC

SP Tarlac has Operation and Maintenance Agreement with SMSC for the lauer to
operate, maintain and manage SP Tarlac’s solar power plant for 20 years for an annual
fee of #21.5 million with an escalation rate of 2% on the second year of contract and
every other year thereafter. For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Tarlac
recognized professional fees amounting to B14.5 million, which was presented as part
of “Costs of sales and services™ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Property Maintenance and Management Agreement between SP Roofiop and SMSC
SP Rooftop has various property maintenance and management agreements with SMSC
where the latter shall maintain and manage the solar power plants with terms varying
for two (2) years up to 20 years. SP Rooftop shall pay the total of salaries and wages
cost plus 10% to SMSC for employees of SMSC who directly maintain and manage the
solar power plant. For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Rooftop recognized
“Personnel costs” which was presented as part of “Costs of sales and services” in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounting to 0.4 million,

CS5854 between SP Rooftop and SMSC

SP Rooftop has three (3) CSSAs with SMSC where the latter shall provide support
services, including EPC, logistics, warchousing, and other contractor-related services
during the construction of the different projects of SP Rooftop for one year. SP Rooftop
shall pay SMSC the total of salaries and wages cost plus 10% of the employees of
SMSC who directly assisted to the construction of the power plants.

Construction support services recognized as part of CIP and “Personnel cosis™ under
“Costs of sales and services” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
amounted to P5.1 million and 5.4 million, respectively, for the year ended December
31, 2023.

. Individual Stockholder
MOA with SP Calatagan
On February 12, 2019, SP Calatagan entered into a MOA with the Individual Stockholder
to purchase 87.50 hectares of land for 8421.6 million.

On June 28, 2019, the 87.50 hectares of land specified in the MOA were pledged as part
of the securitics to obtain a loan facility of SP Tarlac.
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PART IV - CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Item 13a. Corporate Governance

This portion of the Annual Report has been deleted pursuant to SEC M.C. No. 5, series of 2013,
In compliance with SEC M.C. No. 15, series of 2017, and PSE Circular No. 2017-0079 on
the Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report (“i-ACGR”), the Company’s i-
ACGR will be submitted separately using SEC Form i-ACGR. The Integrated Annual

Corporate Governance Report replaces this section of the Annual Report and the previous
SEC Form ACGR.

Item 13b. Sustainability Report
A copy of the Company's Sustainability Report 1s attached hereto as Annex *C.”

PART V - EXHIBITS AND
SCHEDULES

Item 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C

(a) Exhibits

See the Index and Supplementary Schedules of SPNEC's Audited Financial Statements for the
fiscal years ended 31 December 2023, attached hereto as Annexes “A™ and “B.”

(h) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

Below is a list of the reports submitted on SEC Form | 7-C during the last six (6)-month period
covered by this Annual Report:

Date of Details of the Disclosure
Disclosure
2 June 2023 Amendments to the Articles of Incorporation of the
Company

the Board of Directors of SPNEC approved amendments
to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company on 10
January 2022.

On 7 March 2022, the stockholders of SPNEC approved
the said amendment. On 31 May 2023, the Company filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“"SEC") its
application for increase of the authorized capital stock and
the corresponding Amended Articles of Incorporation of
SP New Energy Corporation (the “*Company”) increasing
the authorized capital stock from One Billion Pesos
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(PhP1.000,000,000.00) divided into 10 billion common
shares at par value of P0.10 per share to Five Billion Pesos
(PhP5,000,000,000.00) divided into 50 billion common
shares at par value of P0.10 per share. On | June 2023, the
SEC approved the Company’s application for an increase

SPNEC held its Annual Meeting of the Stockholders
today, 8 June 2023, via videoconferencing.

The Stockholders of SPNEC approved. among others, the
Company’s Increase in Authorized Capital Stock and
Amendment of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
for the Purpose (“ACS Increase™) including the 1ssuance
of 24,373,050,000 shares to SPPPHI and the subsequent
issuance of shares to Metro Pacific Investments
Corporation as disclosed to the PSE over which waivers
of nnly applicable rights offers are being sought, in
iance with applicable rules.

SPNEC received the approval of the Securities and
Exchange Commussion (SEC) for its increase
Authorized Capital Stock from 10 billion to 50 billion
Shares (ACS Increase). 24.37305 billion Shares were
issued to SPPPHI upon the ACS Increase on June 1, 2023,
and were accordingly recorded in the books of SPNEC.

Pursuant to the disclosure dated May 16, 2023, wherein
SPNEC entered into a Contract to Sell on May 15, 2023,
to acquire 100% of the shares of SPPPHI in various
entities using the proceeds of SPPPHI’s subscription of
24.37305b Shares, SPNEC has acquired 100% of the
shares of SPPPHI in these entities.

Change in sharcholding of a director and principal
officer as a result of the acquisition of SPNEC shares.

Acquisition of SPNEC sharcs by Solar Philippines Power
Project Holdings, Inc. (SPPPHI), an affiliate of SPNEC
controlled by Mr. Leandro Antonio L, Leviste.

of its authorized capital stock.
13 June 2023
comp
18 July 2023
31 July 2023
31 July 2023
02 August 2023

Press Release on the acquisition of SP New Energy
Corporation (SPNEC) and its subsidiaries of over 4000
hectares of land, mostly in the provinces of Nueva Ecija,
Bulacan, Tarlac, and Batangas.

Of these, over 3000 hectares have been secured through
deeds of sale or contracts to sell and over 1000 hectares
through contracts to lease. Over 2000 hectares have
already been approved for conversion to industrial use.

SPNEC has been growing ils assets as part of its
consolidation of projects of Solar Philippines Power
Project Holdings, Inc. (SP)

On May 15 2023, SPNEC entered into a contract to
acquire the shares of 8P in various entities using the
proceeds of SP's subscription of 24.37305 billion shares
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of SPNEC. This was enabled by the approval by the
Securitics and Exchange Commission of SPNEC’s
increase in authorized capital stock on June | 2023,

18 August 2023

Clarification of news article entitled “SPNEC in talks with
fund managers for private placement” on 12 June 2023.

SPNEC confirmed that it is in talks with wvarious
stakeholders, advisers, and potential investors to increase
its public tloat. SPNEC is also preparing to submit a
disclosure with further information on its Plan of Acton to
resume tradinf, including requesting for a temporary
minimum public ownership exemption, in consideration
of the actions that it is taking to increase its public float.

12 October 2023

Results of the October 11 2023 Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Approval of the amendment of the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation to increase its Authorized Capital Stock from
50 billion common shares to 75 billion common shares and
25 billion preferred shares and increase the Company’s
number of directors from seven to nine.,

Approval of the setting the date of a Special Stockholders'
Meeting on December 4 2023 with Record Date of
November 14 2023,

Approval of authorization to execute an agreement for an
investor to subscribe to shares in the Company to support the
above-mentioned increase in Authorized Capital Stock.
Approval of the conduct of a Follow-On Offering, with an
aim to support the expansion of the Company’s project
portfolio and increase the public ownership of its shares.

12 October 2023

Notice of Special Stockholders Mecting held on 4
December 2023 at 9:00 am via videoconferencing, with
14 November 2023 as the Record Date.

13 October 2023

Update on Corporate Actions/Materiall
Transactions/Agreements

MGen Renewable Energy Inc. signs agreement with SP
New Energy Corporation

16 October 2023

Pro Report on the use of IPO and SRO proceeds as
of the quarter ended 30 September 2023

13 November
2023

Clarification that the P200-billion mentioned in Business
Waorld news article pertains to the estimated project cost of
the solar projects that the parties intend to pursue.

14 November
2023

Amendments to the sixth and seventh article of the
Articles of Incorporation of the Company to support the
expansion of the Company's project portfolio

23 November
2023

Compliance Plan for Minimum Public Ownership
("MPO")

SP New Energy Corporation and Subsidiary

2023 Annual Repart (SEC Form 17-A)



24 November
2023

Disposal of SPNEC Shares by Leandro Antonio Levistei;l
Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and Chie
Executive Officer
For clarity, this refers to a donation of shares owned by
Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.
("SPPPHI"), and not a donation of shares by SPNEC.

1 December 2023

URE;I::: on Compliance with Minimum Public Ownership
(" i),

5 December 2023

SPNEC held its Annual Meeting of the Stockholders on 4
December 2023, via videoconferencing.

The Stockholders of SPNEC approved, among others, the
Company’s Amendment of the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation to increase its Authorized Capital Stock and
the subscription of shares by Meralco PowerGen
Corporation or its affiliates (MGen) in support thereof,
and increasc in the number of directors from 7 to 9;
Election of Mr. Rochel Donato R. Gloria and Ms. Amanda
Roselle A, Bengson as Directors, upon the approval of the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation to increase the
number of directors from 7 to 9: and Waiver of any
aplplicab]{: mandatory rights offer or public offering in
relation to or arising from the issuance of shares to MGen;

5 December 2023

Appointment of New Officers of SP New Energy
Corporation

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved,
effective 30 November 2023, the appointment of Rochel
Donato R. Gloria as Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer
(CFO), Alicia G. Brion as the Head of Controllership, in
place of Aresty M. Lapitan, who has been appointed as
Assistant Chief Information Officer,

12 December
2023

SP New Energy Corporation (SPNEC) executed a Deed of
Absolute Sale to acquire 100% of the shares of Prime
Infrastructure, Inc. in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (TSPI) for
Php 6,000,000,000.00.

Together with SPNEC's previously acquired shares in
TSPI, SPNEC is now the beneficial ewner of 100% of
TSP,

12 December
2023

Results of the December 11 2023 Meeting of the Board of
Directors

Approval of acquisition of 100% of the shares of Prime
Infrastructure, Inc. in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (TSPI) for
Php 6,000,000,000.00 (resulting in SPNEC becoming the
beneficial owner of 100% of TSPI), and authorizing Leandro
Antonio L. Leviste to sign any and all documents, necessary
and proper, to effect the foregoing transaction.
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Election of Manuel V. Pangilinan and Amanda Roselle A.
Bengson as new directors of the Company, and election of
Pedro Emilio O. Roxas as independent director, effective on
December 27, 2023. Appointment of the following persons
to the following positions in the Company, effective on
December 27, 2023:

Manuel V. Pangilinan as Chairman, President. and CEQ,
Leandro Antonio L. Leviste as Vice Chairman,

Amanda Roselle A. Bengson as Chief Compliance Officer
and Corporate Secretary,

Dominador M. Camu, Jr. as Chief Operating Officer,

Anthony Matthew N. Co as Assistant Treasurer,
Jo Marianni P. Ocampo as Assistant Corporate Secretary.
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Election of its recently clected Treasurer and Chict
Finance Officer, Rochel Donato R. Gloria, as a member
of the Board of Directors effective 11 December 2023.

19 December Acquisition of Terra Solar Philippines, Inc.
2023
Prior to this acquisition, SPNEC owned 49,999 shares of
TSPI (49.999%) acquired from SPPPHI through a Deed
of Absolute Sale executed on 9 June 2023 and Prime Infra
owned 50000 shares of TSPI (50.001%) With this
gg_c!it_gslj}iun, SPNEC is now the beneficial owner of 100%

21 December Election of New Director to the Board of the Company
2023
The Board of Directors of the Company has approved on 11
December 2023 the election of the Company's recently
elected Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer, Rochel Donato
R. Gloria, as a member of the Board of Directors effective
11 December 2023.

22 December Resignation of Mr. J. Carlitos G. Cruz.
2023

27 December Subscription Payment by MGen Renewable Energy Inc. and
2023 Results of the December 27 2023 Meceting of the Board of
Directors

The Board approved, among others, the Election of
Manuel V. Pangilinan and Amanda Roselle A. Bengzon
as new directors of the Company, and election of Pedro
Emilio 0. Roxas as independent director, effective on
December 27 2023, Appointment of the following persons
to the following positions in the Company:

s T&Iﬁa&unl V. Pangilinan as Chairman, President, and

o Leandro Antonio L. Leviste as Vice-Chairman

+ Amanda Roselle A. Bengson as Director, Chief
Comphiance Officer, and Corporate Secretary

s Dommador M. Camu, Jr. as Chief Operating
Officer

e Anthony Matthew N. Co as Assistant Treasurer

¢ Jo Mananni P. Ocampo as Assistant Corporate
Secretary

28 December sMGreen, the renewable energy development arm of
2023 MGen announced on October 12 2023 that it has agreed
with SP New Energy Corporation (the “Company”) and
with its parent, Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings,
[nc. (“SPPPHI"), to invest Php 15.9 billion to subscribe to
15.7 billion common shares and 19.4 billion redeecmable
g;cfermd voting shares in the Company (the “Subscription
ares™).

28 December Appointment of Officers from SP New Energy Carporation
2023 (“SPNEC™)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code and
Section 177 of the Revised Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the

issuer undersigned, thereto duly authorized, in ~ Mandglvyong Gy on
April 15, 2024

By:

A— v L

MANUEL V. PANGILINAN ROCHEL DONATO R. GLORIA
President and Chief Executive Officer Treasurer and Chief Finance Officer
mj\/é‘t h_——
G BRION AMANDA ROSELLE &. BENGSON
Head antrn!fersh;p Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate

Secretary
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Name Government ID No. Date and Place of
Issuance
Manuel V. Pangilinan Philippine Passport No. December 18, 2018/DFA
P9969361A NCR East
Amanda Roselle A. Bengson | Philippine Passport No. | July 10, 2018/ DFA NCR
P7869583A South
Rochel Donato R. Gloria Philippine Passport No. | November 14, 2019/ DFA
P3844177B NCR East
Alicia G, Brion Philippine Passport No. | August 18, 2018/DFA NCR
PE412528A East
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of SP New Energy Corporation (Consclidated) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2023, for
the six-month period ended December 31, 2022, and for the year ended June 30, 2022, in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from malerial misstatement whether due lo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company to ceass operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders, has
audited the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards an
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the
lairness of presenlalion upon complelion of such audil.

_Manuel V. Pangilinan
Presidont, CEQ and Chairman

Con olier!
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Signed this_ Nkl bt? 20% o004

20" Floor Philamlife Tower, 8767 Paseo De Roxas Avenue, Makati City 1227 Philippines

B +632 8817 2585 | 2 www.solarphilippines ph
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Name Passport Validity period
Manuel V. Pangilinan PO969361A  Valid until 17 Dec 2028
Rochel Donato R. Gloria  P38441778B  Valid until 13 Nov 2029
Alicia G. Brion P8412528A Valid until 17 Aug 2028
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SP New Energy Corporation

20" Floor AIA Tower

#8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SP New Energy Corporation (SPNEC, a
subsidiary of MGen Rencwable Energy, Ine.) and its Subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group™), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and
2022, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in
equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the
six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects,
the financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023, and 2022, and its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022,
and for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
{PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Common Control Transactions

[n 2023, SPNEC and Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc. ("SP Project Holdings™) executed
various deeds of absolute sale of shares where SP Project Holdings transferred and conveyed to SPNEC
all its rights, title and interests in and to various entities for total consideration of 23,175.8 million. The
transactions were common control transactions and accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method
wherein the assels and liabilities of the transferred entities were recognized at their carrying values, and
an equity adjustment was recorded for the difference between the carrying values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed and the consideration given. We considered the accounting for these transactions
#5 4 key audit maltter due to the complexity and significant (inancial impact to the Group.

The Group’s disclosures related to these transactions are included in Notes 2 and 21 (o the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit Response

We reviewed the deeds of absolute sale of shares related to these transaction. We tested management’s
application of the pooling-of-interests method, the balances of the transferred entities to SPNEC and the
resulting equity adjustments. We also reviewed the presentation and disclosures related to the commaon
control transactions in the consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for the Acquisition of Terva Solar Philippines, Inc.

On June 9, 2023, SPNEC acquired 49.99% interest in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (Terra Solar), which
was treated as an investment in associate and accounted for using the equity method. On December 11,
2023, SPNEC acquired additional 50.01% interest in Terra Solar, which resulted to SPNEC obtaining full
ownership and control over Terra Solar. Accordingly, the Group consolidated Terra Solar on a line-by-
line basis and recognized a gain of $5,964.0 million arising from the remeasurement of its previously held
interest in Terra Solar,

The acquisition of Terra Solar was accounted for as business combination under PFRS 3, Business
Combination and accordingly, on the date when the control was obtained the Group performed notional
purchase price allocation using the provisional fair values of the assets acquired and liabilitics assumed
trom Terra Solar which resulted in the recognition of goodwill amounting to B9.95 million.

This matter is important to our audit because the amounts invalved are material and significant
management judgment and estimates are involved in the determination of the provisional fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed from Terra Solar and the determination of the provisional fair
value of the previously held interest, based on the available information as at the acquisition date.

The Group's disclosures related to these transactions are included in Notes 2 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

& perrit Berw 0f Covw) & Y : TURIEA| L Weebinil



SGV

Butlding a beltor
working world

Audit Response

We reviewed the deeds of absolute sale of shares and other documents covering the transactions and
assessed whether the transactions were properly accounted for. We considered the terms of the relevant
agreements and documents in evaluating the Group’s determination of the total costs of acquisition.

We also evaluated management’s basis in determining the provisional fair values of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilitics assumed using the available information as of the acquisition date. We involved
our internal specialist in evaluating the methodologies and assumptions used in arriving at the provisional
fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements,

Impairment Assessment of Deposits for Land Acquisition

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has deposits for land acquisition with a carrying value of

#3.396.8 million for the acquisition of parcels of land. Under PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, an entity
shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Management's assessment of impairment considers information from various sources,
including those about the land acquisition process and the related requirements, the current status of land
acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may affect the timing of completion of the
transaction. We considered this as a key audit matter because of the materiality of the amount involved,
and the significant management judgment required in assessing whether there is any indication of
impairment.

The related disclosures on the Group’s deposits for land acquisition are included in Notes 3 and 10 to the
eonsolidated financial statements,

Audit Response

We obtained manageient’s assessiment on whether there is any indication that the deposits for land
acquisition may be impaired. We read the contracts entered into by the Group and obtained an
understanding of the significant provisions relevant to the assessment, such as the subject properties,
payment terms, and rights and obligations of the contracting parties. In addition, we abtained supporting
documents on the payments made by the Group, and inquired of the land acquisition process and the
related requirements, the current status of land acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may
affect the timing of completion of the transaction, and evaluated how management considered these
information in their impairment asscssment.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

SEC Form 17-A for the year ended December 31, 2023 but does not include the consolidated financial
stutements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
and the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2023, which are expected (o be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
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information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary Lo enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
musstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liguidate the Group or 1o
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance sbout whether the consolidated financial statements as &
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
prufessivnal skepticism (uoughout e audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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& vt vl o @ aaing (atsd Lirmdiai



SGV

Building a belter
warking world

-5

= (Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concem.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date ol our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concerm.

= Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group Lo express an opinion on the consolidated fnancial statements.
We arc responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. 'We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement thal we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation preclodes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Jhoanna Feliza C. Go.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.
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Jhoanna Feliza C. Go

Partner

CPA Certificate No, 0114122

Tax Identification No, 219-674-288
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2023 2022
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 23) B10,040,424,627 B37,232,084
Trade receivables (MNotes 5 and 23) 286,288,062 =
Subscriptions receivable (Notes 16 and 23) 1,319,056 651,115,661
Inventories (Note 6) 24,800,913
Due from related parties (Notes 14 and 23) 126.920,310 821,388,320

Other current asseis (Notes 7, 23 and 29) 744,366,136 18,638,843
Total Current Assets 11,224,119,104 1,528,374,908
Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 9)
At coslt 10,136,123,220 1,671,233,624
At revalued amount 12,467.340,000 -
Deposits for land acquisition (Note 10) 3,396,776,396  2,026,892,396
Intangible assets (Note 22) 13,261,891,642 =
Goodwill (Note 22) 9,954,384 =
Deferred income tax asscts - net (Note 19) 9,646,601 10,201,126
Investment properties (Note 8) - 312,626,010
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 11 and 23) 676,962,959 654,395,146
Total Noncurrent Assets 39,958,695.202  4.675,348,302
TOTAL ASSETS P51,182,814,306 $6,203,723210
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Notes 12 and 23} P482,626,040 P65,218,072
Due to related parties (Notes 14 and 23) 608,442,826 22,770,229
Current portion of:
Long-term debt (Notes 13 and 23) 366,847,748 -
Lease liabilities (Notes 20 and 23) 8.962.861 4,538,676
Total Current Liabilities 1.466,879.475 02,526,977
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent portion of:
Long-term debt (Notes 13 and 23) 2,729,695,924 -
Lease linbilitics (Notes 20 and 23) 381109300 208,599 744
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 19, 21 and 22) 4,086,521,200 =
Other noncurrent lighilities (Notes 15 and 29) 08.633 404 -
Total Noncurrent Liabilitics 7.295,959.828 298,599,744
TOTAL LIABILITIES B5.762.839.303 B391,126,721
{Farward)



December 31

2023 2022
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company
Capital stock (Note 16) B3,437,305,000 P1,000,000,000
Additional paid-in capital (Note 16) 5,713,764,409 4938722 430
Deposit for furure stock subscription (Note 16) 15,894,042,026 =
Equity reserve (Note 21) 525,755,142 =
Revaluation surplus (Note 9) 8,268.091,263 -
Retained earnings (Deficit) 5,546,151.067 {126.,125.941)
39,385,108,907 5,812,596,489
Non-controlling Interests 3,034,866,096 -
Total Equity 42419975003 5812596 489
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P51,182.814,306 P6,203.723.210

Jee accompanying Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements.



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022* AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) (Six Months) (One Year)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Notes 3 and 29) B635.451,217 - -
COSTS OF SALES AND SERVICES
(Note 17) (327,103,277) - -
GROSS PROFIT 308,347,940 - -
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES (Note 18) (207,914,077) (38,010,960) (63.356,174)
FINANCE COSTS (Notes 13 and 20) (167,232,021) (4,532,695) (9,142,009)
INTEREST INCOME (Note 4 and 7) 29,993 447 2,398,960 548,180
OTHER INCOME - net (Notes 9, 14 and 22) 6,008,335,292 — -
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 5,971,530,581 (40,144,695) (71.950,003)
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)
INCOME TAX (Mote 19)
Current 24,680,990 - -
Deferred (731,160) 265,138 {11,370,555)
23,949 830 265,138 (11,370.555)
NET INCOME (LOSS) B5,947,580,751 (P40,409,833) (P60,579,4458)
Net income (loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B5,706,730,751 (P40,409,833) {(F60,579,448)
Non-controlling interests 240,850,000 - -
P5,947,580,751 (40,409 833) [P60,579,448)
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share
(Note 24) B0.2356 (P0.0043) (PO.008T)

* The Parent Company prepared consolidated financial statements as of and for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022
in connection with the change of the fiscal period end from June 30, 2022 w December 31, 2022 (see Notes | and 2).

See accompunyving Notes lo Consolfdated Financial Statements,



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022* AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
(One Year) (Six Months) {One Year)
NET INCOME (LOSS) P5,947,580.751 (P40.409,833) P60,579,448)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent
periods
Revaluation increment on land (net of tax
effect amounting o #2,013.9 million)
(Note 9) 6,041,693,185 - s
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits
(net of tax effect amounting to
B0.1 million) (Note 15) (298,828) - -
6.,041,394.357 - —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) P11,988,975,108 (240,409,833) (R60.579,448)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B11,748.125,108 (B40.409,833) (P60,579,448)
Non-controlling interests 240,850,000 ~ -
L P11,988.975,108 {114(11409‘333] (P60,579,448)

* The Parent Company prepared consolidated financial statements as of and for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022
in connection with the change of the fiscal period end from June 30, 2022 10 December 31, 2022 (see Notes | and 2).

See accompanying Notex to Consalidated Financial Statements,
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023, FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2022* AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

December 31,  December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year)  (Six Months) {One Year)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax P5.971,530,581  (P40,144.695)  (#71,950,003)
Adjustments for:
Gain on remeasurement of previously existing equity
interest in Terra Solar (Note 22) (5,964,035,242) - -
Other income (Note 14) (25,960,000) - -
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (Note 9) (17,834,545) - -
Interest income (Note 26) (29,993.447) (2,398.960) (548,180)
Finance costs (Notes 13 and 20) 167,232,021 4,532,695 9,142,009
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 9, 17 and 18) 216,232,722 2,584,163 5,420,370
Provision for impairment loss (Notes 5,7 and 18) 756,172 - w
Retirement benefit expense (Note 15) 383,870 - -
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 234,726 (545,388) 274,709
Operating income (loss) before working capital changes 318,546,858 (35,972,155) (57,661,005)
Deciease (increase) in:
Trade receivables (Note 5) 126,788,719 - =
Inventories (MNote 6) (745,862) - -
Other current assets (Note 7) (22,654,765) 2,150,545 (20,013,297)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (Note 12) (358,754.383) 52,217,812 6,272,205
Net cash flows from (used in) operations 63,180,567 18,396,202 (71,402,187)
Interest received 29,993,447 2. 398,960 S48.180
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 93,174,014 20,795,162 (70.854,007)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Solar Philippines asscts, net of cash acquired
(MNotes 21 and 22) (8.987,411,875) - -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Natc 9) 33928571 - -
Additions to:
Deposits for land acquisition (Note 10) (723,096,532) (1.405392,463) (541,700,000
Property, plant and equipment (Naote 9)
At cost (677.884,67T)  (460,794,829)  (906,749,770)
Al revalued amount (26,892,762) - -
Investment properties (Note &) - (3126260100 -
Decrease (incrense) in:
Due trom related parties (Note 14) 960,420,000  (279,710,439) (84,499,933)
Other noncutrent assets (Note 1) 107,779,964 (540,176.775)  (112,848,087)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(9,313,157.301) (2.998,700.516) (1,645,797.790)

{Forvard)
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December 31,  December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) {Six Months) (One Year)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issoance of shares of stock, net of
subseriptions receivable and transaction costs (Note 16)  #2,402,413,635 22,127 833,748 F..,S'EISI 338,022

Collection of subscriptions receivable (Note 16) 649,796,605 -
Equity infusion (Note 16) 775,041,979 - -
Deposit for future stock subscriplion (Note 16) 15,894,042,026 - -
Payments of: (Note 27)

Long-term debt (166,261,855) - -

Interest {136,800,476) - -

Lease liabilities (Note 20) (18.526,2129) — (14,004.465)

Dividends (61,570,424) - =
Due (o related parties (114,724,7085) - -
Additional cepital contribution (Noie 16) - - 18,000,000
Net cash flows from financing activities 19,223,410.556  2.127.833.748  2.603.333,557
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (234,726) 545,388 (274.709)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 10,003,192,543  (B49.526,218)  BR6,407,051

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF
PERIOD 37,232,084 B86.758.302 351:25]

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
PERIOD (Notes 4 and 23) P10,040,424,627  PB37.232.084  PER6,758,302

* The Parent Company prepared consolidated financial statements as of and for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022
in connection with the change of the fiscal period end from June 30, 2022 10 December 31, 2022 (see Notes | and 2),

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Finaneial Statements,

A



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. Corporate Information
{a) Organizution

SP New Energy Corporation (the “Parent Company™ or “SPNEC™) was incorporated and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) on

MNovember 23, 2016, primarily to engage in the construction. operation and maintenance of all
types of renewable energy plants and related services.

The common shares of SPNEC are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE™) beginning
December 17, 2021 and traded under the ticker, “SPNEC™.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries are hereby collectively referred to as the “Group”.
All subsidiaries are incorporated in the Philippines (see Note 2). As of April 12, 2024, the
Parent Company has subsidiaries that are in commercial operations (see Note 2).

On March 27, 2023, Metro Pacific Investments Corporation (“MPIC™), a corporation organized in
the Republic of the Philippines, entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Solar Philippines
Power Project Holdings, Inc. (“SP Project Holdings™) to acquire the latter’s rights, title and
interests in and to SPNEC equal to 1.6 billion common shares for a total consideration of

£2 000.0 million (see Note 16),

Subsequently, on November 30, 2023, MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. (“MGreen"”) and SPNEC
entered into a Subscription Agreement, whereby MGreen subscribed (i) 15.7 billion common
shares with par value of 1.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred shares with par value of
£0.01 per share for a total subscription price of #15.9 billion (see Note 16). MGreen is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Meralco PowerGen Corporation (“MGen"), which in turn is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Manila Electric Company (“Meralco™). Meraleo, MGen and
MGreen are registered with the Philippine SEC. The shares of Meralco are listed in the PSE
under the ticker, “MER".

As of December 31, 2023, the shures were not yet issued to MGreen pending the approval of
SPNEC"s increase in authorized capital stock (see Note 16).

As of April 12, 2024, SPNEC 15 35.7% owned by MGreen, 37.93% owned by SP Project
Holdings, and 3.2% owned by MPIC, with the balance as the public float.

(b) Change in Corporate Name and Fiscal Year

On August 8, 2022, the Board of Directors (“BOD") of the Parent Company approved a
resolution to amend the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws to (1) change the corporate name
from “Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation™ to “SP New Energy Corporation”; and

(2) change the Parent Company’s fiscal year from July 1 to June 30 of cach year to Jannary 1 to
December 31 of each year. This was subsequently approved by the Parent Company’s
stockholders on August 30, 2022,

On October 24, 2022, the SEC approved the apphication lor amendment of the Parent Company's

Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws.
N0



On October 28, 2022, the complete requirements for the change in accounting period for tax
purposes were submitted to the Bureau of Intemal Revenue (“"BIR™). On January 11, 2023, the
BIR approved the change in accounting period.

(e) Principal Office Address

On April 12, 2024, the BOD approved the amendment of the Parent Company's Articles of
Incorporation to change Lhe principal office from |12 Legaspi Street, Legaspi Village, Bray. San
Lorenzo, Makati City 1229, Philippines to Rockwell Business Center, Ortigas Avenue,

Brgy. Ugong, Pasig City 1604, Philippines.

(d) Authorization for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the

year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the
year ended June 30, 2022 were authorized for issue by the BOD on April 12, 2024,

[}

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Material Accounting Policy Information

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis, except for
land carried at revalued amount. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine
Peso (®), the Group's functional and presentation currency. All amounts are rounded (o the nearest 8,
unless otherwise indicated.

The amounts in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity, consolidated statements of cash flows and the related notes, as of and for the
six-month period ended June 30, 2022 were presented for the fractional period due to the change of
the reporting period of the Parent Company from fiscal year beginning July 1 and ending June 30
calendar year January | and ending December 31 (see Note 1). As a result, the amounts presented in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity,
consolidated statements of cash flows and the related notes for the six-month period ended
December 31, 2022 are not comparable with those statements for the years ended December 31, 2023
and June 30, 2022.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in complignce with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (“PFRSs") as issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted
by the Philippine SEC.

Basis of Consolidation

The consclidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period
ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company using uniform
accounting policies. When necessary, adjustments are made to the separate financial statements of
the subsidiaries to bring its accounting policies in line with the Parent Company's accounting
policies.
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Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investees and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability (o direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

» Esxposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invalvement with the investee; and

* The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting righis resull in control. To support

this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

# The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and,
» The Group’s voling rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Conscolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to contral the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“OCI™) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests (“NCI™), even if this results in
the NCI having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All
intra-group assets and ligbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash fows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction,

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, non-controlling interests and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.

NCI represents the interests in the subsidiaries not held by the Parent Company and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of income and within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position, separately from equity attributable 1o holders of the Parent Company. NCI shiires
in losses even if the losses exceed the NCI in the subsidiary.

Sttt
Except with respect to SP Holdings, Inc. ("SP Holdings") and Terma Nueva, Ine. (“Terra Nueva™),
which are investment holding entities, the rest of the subsidiaries has power generation as ils primary
purpose of business.

Except for Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation (“SP Calatagan™) and Solar Philippines Tarlac
Corporation (“SP Tarlac™), all other subsidiaries have not started operations.
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The consolidated financial statements comprise the Parent Company and the following subsidiaries of
the Group:

Percentage of Ownership (%)
2023 2022
Subsidiaries Direet Indirect Direct Indirect

Terra Nueva, Inc. (Terra Nueva) 100 - 100 -
Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation (SP Calatagan)' 62 - - -
Solar Philippines Tarlac Corporation (SP Tarlac) 100 = — -
Solar Philippines Rooftop Corporation (SP Rooftop) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Batangas Corporation (SP Batangas) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Batangas Baseload Corporation

(SP Batangas Bascload) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corporation

(SP Central Visayas) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Eastemn Corporation (SP Eastern) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Retail Electricity, Inc. (SPREI) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Southern Mindanao Corporation

(SP Southern Mindanao) 100 - - .
Solar Philippines Southemn Tagalog Corporation

{SP Southern Tagalog) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation

(SP South Luzon) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Tarlac Bascload Corporation

(SP Tarlac Baseload) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Visayas Corporation (SP Visayas) 100 - - -
Solar Philippines Western Corporation (SP Western) L0 - - -
SP Holdings, Inc. (SP Holdings) 100 - - -
Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (Temra Solar) 100 - - -
Laguna Rooftop Solar Corporation (Laguna Rooftop) o0 - - -

* Egvavmis fndrrent iy 1O0% apfber atvided e preferre siock

The following significant transactions affected the Parent Company’s investments in subsidiaries in
2023:

Acquisition of Solar Philippines Assets
In 2023, SPNEC executed several Deeds of Absolute Sale of Shares (“DOASS") with certain
affiliates for the following transactions;

Date Counterparty Asset Aequired Consideration
{in millions)
May 15, 2023 SP Tarlac 822417
SP Project Holdings St Rooftop _ 100,/
June 9, 2023 Solar Philippines Asscts 80.5
June 29, 2023 SP Calatagan 502.%
November 20, 2023 | Leandro L. Leviste SP Calatagan 249.9

On November 9, 2023, SPNEC eatered into a Deed of Donation and Acceptance with Countryside
[nvestments Holdings Corporation (*Countryside™), whereby Countryside donated and conveyed all
its rights and obligations in SP Holdings, Inc. ('SP Holdings™) 1o SPNEC.

Leandro L. Leviste is the major shareholder of SP Project Holdings and Countryside.

LT
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The foregoing share sale and donation transactions were accounted for using the pooling-of-interests
method. Detailed information of the transactions is included in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Acquisition of controlling interest in Terra Solar from Prime Infrastructure, Inc. (" Prime Infra”)

As provided under the Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA") between SP Project Holdings and
Prime Infra and Prime Metro Holdings Corporation (“Prime Metro™), SPNEC acquired Prime Infra’s
50.01% interest in Terra Solar on December 1 1. 2023 for B6,000.0 million. Thereatter, Terra Solar
became a wholly owned subsidiary of SPNEC.

This step acquisition is accounted for using the acquisition method. Detailed information of the
transaction is included in Note 22 to the consolidated financial stalements.

SP Calatagan

SP Calatagan is registered with the Board of Investments (“BOI™) entity. Under the provisions of
Republic Act No. 9513, "Renewable Energy (“RE™) Act of 2008", the Company shall be entitled to
seven (7) years income tax holiday (“ITH™) from start of actual operations or two (2) months from the
date of commissioning or testing, whichever comes earlier, duty-free importation of machineries for a
period of 10 years and exemption from VAT, among others.

While all of the common shares of SP Calatagan are held by SPNEC and the preferred shares hy
KEPCO Philippines Holdings, Inc. (“KEPCO”), the voting interest is shared 62% and 38%, in favor
of SPNEC. The preferred shares are voting, non-participating and earn cumulative dividends at

P0.08 per share until December 31, 2035 subject to availability of retained eamings and approval of
the BOD. These are convertible to commaon stock at the option of KEPCO through

December 31, 2022 and at the option of SP Calatagan after December 31, 2035, provided the
cumulative dividends are paid. Unpaid dividends are entitled to compounded interest at 9.5% per
annun until fully paid. As at December 31, 2023, undeclared dividends on the SP Calatagan preferred
shares amounted to P256.7 million, and accumulated interest recorded amounted (o 11.0 million.

SP. Tarlac
SP Tarlac 1s also registered with the BOI and is entitled to 7-year I'T beginning September 12, 2019,

All of the common shares of SP Tarlac are held by SPNEC while all redeemable preferred shares
totaling #1,500.0 million are held by Prime Metro. Such redeemable preferred shares are non-voting
and entitled to cumulated fixed dividend at a rate of 12% per annum, subject to availability of
retained eamings and approval of the BOD. These shares are redeemable at the option of SP Tarlac
after five (5) years from issuance and convertible to common stock equivalent to 50% equity at the
option of Prime Metro.

As at December 31, 2023, cumulative undeclared dividends amounted #589.9 million,

Laguna Rooftop

Laguna Rooftop was incorporated and registered with the SEC on July 6, 2021, primarily to engage in
the development, financing, construction, testing, operation, maintenance and ownership of rooftop
solar electricity generation projects tendered by Mitsubishi Motors Philippines Corporation
(“MMPC”) and its subsidiary, Asian Transmission Corporation (“ATC™),

Material partly owned subsidiaries with material economic ownership interesi
The consolidated financial statements include additional information about subsidiaries that have NCI

that are material to the Group. Management determined material partly owned subsidiaries as those
with balance of NCI greater than 5% of the total NCI and those subsidiaries which type of activities

that are important to the Group as at the end of the year.
AT




The following are the summarized financial information of SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac as of and for

afy=

the year ended December 31, 2023:

SP Calatagan SP Tarlac
Summarized balance sheet information
Current assets P697.606,656 P4R3,642,795
Noncumrent assets 5.674,606,019  6,765,727,668
Current liabilities 288,533,947 591,246,084
Noncurrent liabilities 1403366474 2,200 906,373
Summarized comprehensive income information
Revenue from contract with customer P609.281,878 P430,568,929
Costs of sale of electricity (225,986,476)  (267.,640,960)
Gross profit 473,295 402 162,927,969
Finance costs (106,336,371)  (167,762,523)
Greneral and administrative expenses (51,953,283) {33,030,536)
Other income 28,638,095 16,791,424
Provision for (benefit from) income tax 26,761,760 8,225,408
Net income (loss) 316,882,083 (29,299,074)
Other comprehensive income 78,381,150 22,450,093
Total comprehensive income (loss) 395,263,233 (6,848,981)
Summarized cash Nows information
Operating P457,619,789 P240,993,169
Investing (47,455,146) (18,449,129)
Financing (334,360,453)  (277,861,215)
Exchange rate effect on cash R3,580 255736
Net increase (decrease) in cash 75,887,770 (55,061,439)

NCI
The NCI in the consolidated financial statements represents mainly the ownership of KEPCO in
SP Calatagan, Prime Metro in SP Tarlac, and of DGA SP B.V. (“DGA") in Laguna Rooftop.

New

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for

s, Int tio

the adoption of new standards effective 2023. The Group has not early adopted any standard,
interprefation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

The adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the consolidated linancial statements.

Amendments to Plilippine Accounting Standards (“PAS™) | and PFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to
accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy

disclosures that arc more useful by:

o

o

Replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a

requirement to disclose their ‘matenal’ accounting policies, and

Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about

accounting policy disclosures

The amendments (o the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance.
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Amendments to PAS 8, Defimtion of Accounting Estimites

The amendments introduce a new definition of accounting estimates and clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of
errors.  Also, the amendments clarify that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an
input or a change in 4 measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not
result from the correction of prior period errors.

Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under PAS 12, so that it no
longer applies lo transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The amendments also clarify that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax
purposes, it is a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law) whether such
deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the hiability recognized in the financial statements
{and imterest expense) or w the related asset component (and interest expensc).

Amendments to PAS 12, International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

The amendments introduce a mandatory exception in PAS 12 from recognizing and disclosing
deferred tax asscts and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

The amendments also clarify that PAS 12 applies to income taxes arising from tax law enacted or
substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two Model Rules published by the Organization for
Economic Cooperation and Development (“OECD™), including tax law that implements qualified
domestic minimum top-up taxes. Such tax legislation, and the income taxes arising from it, are
referred to as *Pillar Two legislation” and *Pillar Two income taxes’, respectively.

The temporary exceplion [rom recognilion and disclosure of information - 7 -elered Laxes and Lhe
requirement lo disclose the application of the exception, apply immediately and retrospectively
upon adoption of the amendments in June 2023,

Meanwhile, the disclosure of the current tax expense related to Pillar Two income taxes and the
disclosures in relation to periods before the legislation is effective are required for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,

The Group has yet to implement BEPS 2.0 Pillar Two because the Group’s entities are operating
in jurisdiction/s (Philippines) which the legislation has not yet been enacted or substantially
enacted as of December 31, 2023, The Group has not excecded the threshold amount in
consolidated revenue of €750 million, hence there is no impact on the consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2023.

Summary of Material Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Busin inati G ill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition 15

measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any NCI in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the NCI in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s

LU LTI



-8-

identifiable assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in general and
administrative expenses.

When a business is acquired, an assessment is made of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of
income.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statement of income, Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured al cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for NCI, and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 1f the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts (o be recognized at the acquisition date. Tf the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gain is recognized in the consolidated statement of income,

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting date in
which the business combination occurs, the provisional amounts of the items for which the
accounting is incomplete are reported in the consolidated financial statements. During the
measurement period, which shall be no longer than one (1) year from the acquisition date, the
provisional amounts recognized at acquisition date are retrospectively adjusted to reflect new facts
and circumstances obtained that existed as at the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected
the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. During the measurement period,
additional asscts or liabilities are also recognized if new information is obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as at the acquisition date and, if known, would have resulted in the
recognition of those assets and liabilities as at that date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) that are expected to
benefil from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units,
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Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGU retained.

Business Combination of Entities under Common Control

Business combination of entities under common ¢ontrol are accounted for by applying the pooling-oi-

interests method. The pooling-of-interests method generally involved the following:

» The assets and liabilities of the combining entitics are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements at their carrying amounts. No adjustments are made to reflect fair value or recognize
any new assets or liabilities at the date of combination. The only adjustments that are made are
those adjustments to harmonize the accounting policies.

e Nonew goodwill is recognized as a result of the combination. The only goodwill that is
recognized is any existing goodwill relating to either of the combining entities. Any difference
between the consideration paid or transferred and the entity acquired is reflected within equity,

e The consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income and cash flows refleet the result
of the combining entities from the date when the combination takes place.

* Comparative financial information are presented as if the entities had always been combined, or
on date the common control existed on the combining entities. whichever comes earlier.

The effects of any intercompany transactions are eliminated to the extent possible.

Equity reserve is recognized for the difference between considerations paid or transferred and the
net assets of the entity acquired through business combinations invalving entities under common
control.

Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group has elected to present all items of recognized income and expense in two statements: a
statement displaying components of profit or loss (consolidated statements of income) and a second
statement beginming with profit or loss and displaying components of OCT (consolidated statements
of comprehensive income).

C N Classificatio
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position based on
the current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;
expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent
A liability is current when:

It is expected o be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.

The terms of the lability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the

issuc of equity do not affect its classification,
0
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The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities,
respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of financial position comprise cash on hand
and in banks and short-term deposits with original maturities of three (3) months or less from dates of
acquisition and that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Pinancial
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"™), or fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash How characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. The Group itially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset o be classified and measured al amortized cost or FVOCI, il needs to
give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI™)" on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assels refers to how il manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or bath.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at FVOCIH with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt mstruments)
Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

» Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets ar amortized cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures {inancial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

# the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and intérest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (“EIR™)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
subscriptions receivable, due from related parties, short-term investments and bonds (under other
current assets), and long-term receivables (under other noncurrent assets) as of December 31, 2023
and 2022 (see Notes 4, 5, 7, 11, 14, 16 and 23).

The Group has no financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL.

Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these are not held for trading or not designated as
at FVPL upon the inception of the habihity. These include hiabilities ansing trom operations or
borrowings.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, such loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities are derccognized, as well as
through the amortization process.

The Group’s loans and borrowings include trade and other payables (excluding payable 1o
government agencies), due to related parties, long-term debt and lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 (see Notes 12, 13, 14, 20 and 23).

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group has no financial liabilities at FVPL.

Derecognition of
Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assets)
is derecognized when:

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed obligation (o pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement and either
() the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the
control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
“pass-through™ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel is measured at

the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay,



Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprebensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assels

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs"™) for all financial assets except
debt instruments held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two (2) stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures lor which there has been a significant increase in credit nisk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated
statements of financial position, ifand only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultancously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if
the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of
business, event of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and all of the
counterparties.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value
measurement 18 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the Liability
tukes place either:

o in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.
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A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

¢ Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant (o the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fuir value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and labilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

[nventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (weighted average method) and net realizable value
(“NRV™). The NRV of finished goods and work-in-process is based on estimated selling price, less
estimated costs of completion (for work-in-process) and the cstimated costs nccessary to make salc.
The NRV for raw materials is the current replacement cost. In determining NRV, the Group
considers any adjustment for obsolescence.

Plant construction materials
Plant construction materials are carried at cost and are presented as noncurrent assets as these are
intended to be used in the construction of a project.

A ces to Suppliers

Advances 1o suppliers pertain to advance payments made for purchases of construction materials,
other services, and rental of equipment. Advances to suppliers is measured on initial recognition at
cost, and is reclassified to the proper asset or expense account and deducted from the suppliers’
billings as specified on the provision of the contract.

Property, plant and equipment, except for land and construction in progress, is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment in value, if any, The initial cost of property,
plant and equipment consist of the purchase price including import duties, borrowing costs (during
construction period) and other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the
property, plant and equipment, and the borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful
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lives, depreciation and amortization. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, 11s cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or
loss as incwred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its
use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met,

Depreciation and amortization of an item of property, plant and equipment begin when it becomes
available for use, i.e.. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation and amortization cease at the earlier
of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, and the date the asset is derecognized. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lease term or the economic life of the related asset, whichever is shorter.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

An item of property, plant and equipment, and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognized.

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted, prospectively, 1f appropriate. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Category Number of Years

Solar power plant o

Right-of-use assets 25-30

Machinery and equipment 8

Land improvement 5

Office and warehouse equipment 5

Transportation equipment 5

Fumiture and fixtures 5

Leasehold improvements 5 or term of the lease, whichever 1s shorter

Land

Land is measured at fair value less impairment losses, if any. Valuations are performed with
sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its fair value.

A revaluation deficit is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to the extent
that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the revaluation surplus. Upon
disposal, any revaluation increment relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained
earnings. The appraisal increment, net of the related tax effect, is credited to the “Revaluation
surplus™ account included as OCI in the consolidated statermnent of comprehensive incomne and as
other component of equity in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position,
excepl to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same assel previously recognized in
the consolidated statement of income, in which case the increase is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income.
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Construction in progress (“CIP")

CIP represents structures under construction and is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment
losses, if any. This includes costs of construction and other direct costs. Costs also include interest
on lease liability and amortization of right-of-use assets incurred during the construction period.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time that the assets are put into operational use.

Right-of-use ("ROU") assets

ROU assets are included as part of property, plant and equipment. The Group recognizes ROU assets
al the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). ROU
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The initial cost of ROU assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, Lhe recognized ROU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their
estimated nseful life and the lease term. ROU assets are subject to impairment (refer to Impairment
of Nanfinancial Assets policy).

Investment Properties
Investment propertics include parcel of lands held by the Group for capital appreciation and are
carried ut cost including transaction costs, net of accumuluted depreciation.

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
disposal,

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party.
Transfers are made from investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by
commencement of pwner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If the property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to
the date of change in use.

Intangible Asset
[ntangible assct pertains to the Power Supply Agreement of Terra Solar that was existing at the time
of the acquisition (see Notes 22 and 29).

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment
loss. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed at the individual asset level as having either
tinite or indefinite useful lives,

A
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Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic lives of 20 years using the
straight-line method and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
assets may be impaired. At a minimum, the amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date. Changes in the expected
usefil life or the expected consumption pattern of future economic benefit embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as change in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense of infangible assets with finite lives is recognized in
the consolidated statement of income.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are assessed for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of intangible assets
with indefinite useful life 1s done annually at every reporting date to determine whether such
indefinite useful life continues to exist. Otherwise, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.

Intangible assets generated within the business are not capitalized and expenditures are charged to
profit or loss in the year these are incurred.

Project development costs

Project development costs pertain to power plant project in the development phase which meet the
“identifiability” requirement under PAS 38, Intangible Assets, as they are separable and susceptible
to individual sale and are carried at acquisition cost. These assets are transferred to “Property, plant
and equipment” when construction of the power plant commences. During the period of
development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Value-Added Tax (“VAT™)

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from
purchases of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services

(input VAT) exceeds VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is
recognized as an asset in the consolidated statement of financial position to the extent of the
recoverable amount.

Retirement Benetit Obligation
The Group has an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit plan covering substantially all of its

qualified employees.

The defined benefit obligation is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
actuarially determined by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

s Current service cost
* Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset

Current service costs are recognized as expense in profit or loss.
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Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the
consolidated statements of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to retained camings
through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods, but are closed directly to retained eamnings at the
end of every reporting period.

Deposits for Land Acquisition

Depaosits for land acquisition pertan to non-refundable deposits and payments made in relation to the
acquisition of parcels of land that are intended for future expansion, and are stated at the amount paid
less any impairment in value. Upon successful transfer of title, the deposits for land acquisition shall
be reclassified to land as part of either investment property or property, plant and equipment.

Impairme N ial

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that these nonfinancial assets
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is
required, the Group estimates these nonfinancial assets’ recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amounl, the asset is considered impaired and is wrilten down (o its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the ime value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises. In the case of input VAT, an allowance is provided for any portion of the input
VAT that cannot be claimed against output VAT or recovered as tax credit against future income Lax
liabiliry.

An assessment is made at each reporting date To determing whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. [f such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. Any previously recognized
impairment loss 15 reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior periods. Such reversal is recognized in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Capital Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value and is classified as equity for all shares of stocks issued

Additional paid-in capital (*APIC"
When the shares of stock are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value
is credited (o the APIC account,

Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as underwriting, accounting and legal fees,
printing costs and taxes are reduction to the APIC. If APIC is not sufficient, the excess is charged
against the “Retained eamings™ account.

Subscriptions Receivable

Subscriptions receivable represents unpaid portion of subscriptions and is presented as current assets
when it is expected to be collected within 12 months after the financial reporting date. Otherwise,
this is presented as reduction from equity.
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Deposits for Future Stock Subscriptions
Deposits for future stock subscriptions represent funds received as payment for additional issuance of
shares,

The Parent Company classifies a contract to deliver its additional equity instruments as a *Deposit for
tuture stock subscriptions™ if and only if, all of the following elements are present as of the reporting
period:

4. the unissued authorized capital stock of the Parent Company is insufficient (o cover the amount of
shares indicated in the contract;

b. there is BOD's approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock;

¢, there is stockholders’ approval of the said proposed increase; and

d. the application for the approval of the proposed increase was presented for filing or has been filed
with the SEC.

Retained carnings (deficit) represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, prior
period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments. When the
retained earnings account has a debit balance, it is called “deficit”™. A deficit is not an asset but a
deduction from equity.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement al the inception. The armangement is, or conlains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
assel or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Group assesses at contract inception all arrangements to determine whether it is, or contains, a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right Lo control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a Lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) ROU assets
Refer to ROU assets policy.

i) Lease liahilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminale.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in
the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Shori-term leases

The Group applies the short-lerm lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of vehicle

(i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

wi m
Sale of electricity
Revenue from sale of electricity is based on the Renewable Energy Payment Agreement (“REPA™),
Power Supply Agreements (“PSAs”) and Power Purchase Agreements (“PPAs”). Sale of electricity
is recognized over time as the power generated by the Group is transmitted through the transmission
line designated by the buyer for a consideration and is presented as “Revenue from contracts with
customers” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Revenue from sale of electricity
is based on sales price and recognized monthly based on the actual energy delivered.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue
from contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

Significant financing component

Revenue from installation services included in contracts with customers have significant financing
component considering the period between the customer’s payment of the price of the revenue from
installation services and time of the transfer of control over of the installed asset, which is more than
one year. The transaction price for such contracts is determined by discounting the amount of
promised consideration using the appropriate discount rate. The Group concluded that there is a
significant financing component for those contracts where the customer elects to pay in arrears
considering the length of time between the customer's payment and the transfer of installed asset to
the customer, as well as the prevailing interest rates in the market.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues, using the EIR method, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
netl carrying amount of the financial asset.

Costs and Expenses

Costs and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or depletions of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to equity participants. Costs and expenses are generally recognized
when the services are used or the expenses arise.

Costs of sale of goods

Costs of sale of goods include direct materials, personnel expenses, utilities, and other manufacturing
costs. This is recognized when the inventories are sold and title is transferred to the buyer,

A
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Costs of sale of electricity

These include expenses incurred by those directly responsible for the generation of revenues from
solar energy (i.e., plant operations, plant mainténance and power plant preventive maintenance
schedule), at operating project location. Costs of sales of electricity are expensed when incurred.

Costs af installation services

Costs of installation services mainly consist of costs of personnel directly engaged in providing
installation services. These also include construetion costs such as direct materials and those indirect
costs related to contract performance. These are generally recognized when the installation services
are used or the expenses arise.

General and administrative expenses

(General and administrative expenses are incurred in the direction and general administration of
day-to-day operations of the Group. General and administrative expenses are generally recognized
when the services are used or the expenses arise.

Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities in the respective
functional currency spol rale prevailing it the date of transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the eod of the reporting peniod.  All differences are taken to profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.c., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognizes the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration, If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expenses
relating to any provision are presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expected

future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the nsks specific to the hability, When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense,
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Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, al the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the income tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable income tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences
between the income tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting dare.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced (o
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying (ransaction either in
other comprehensive income (“OCT”) or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Eamings (L.oss) Per Share (“EPS")

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to common shareholders of
the Group with the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, after
giving retroactive effect to any stock dividends or stock splits, if any, declared during the vear.

Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner, with the net income for the year attributable to

common shareholders of the Group and the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the year, adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential common shares.



Operating Segments Reporting

Operating scgments are components of SPNEC Group that are engaged in business activities from
which they may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by
SPNEC Group's Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") to make decisions about how resources
are to be allocated to the segment and assess their performances, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

The Group's operating businesses are organized and managed separately on a per company basis,
with each company representing a strategic business segment. Previously, the Group has no
operating segments as it has not yet commenced its commercial operations as of December 31, 2022,
Finaneial information on operating segments are presented in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
stalements,

Conti 3
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

E Afler the Financial R ing Date

Events after the financial reporting date that provide additional information about the Group's
position at the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events afier the financial reporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes (o consolidated financial statements when material.

F

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2024
»  Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify:

o That only covenants with which an entity must comply on or before reporting date will affect
a liability's classification as current or non-current,

o That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral nght.

o That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an cquity instrument
would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are etfective tor annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024
and must be applied retrospectively.

»  Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liahility in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments specify how a seller-lessee measures the lease hability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction in a way that it does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss thal
relates to the right of use retained.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024
and must be applied retrospectively. Earlier adoption is permitted and that fact must be disclosed.

O
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*  Amendments to PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Dusclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments specify disclosure requirements to enhance the current requirements, which are
intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024.
Earlier adoption is permitted and that fact must be disclosed.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025
e PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace
PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of
insurance contracts (i.c., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of
entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with
discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that
15 more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are
largely bascd on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core
of PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach)

* A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration
contracts

On December 15, 2021, the FSRSC amended the mandatory effective date of PFRS 17 from
January 1, 2023 to January 1, 2025, This is consistent with Circular Letter No. 2020-62 issued by
the Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) years after
its effective date as decided by the IASB,

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, with
comparative figures required. Early application is permitted.

o Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability

The amendments specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and
how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January |, 2025.

Earlier adoption is permitted and that fact must be disclosed. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information.
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Deferved effectivity
o Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale ar Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer (o an associate or joint
venture involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gan or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that does not constitute i business, however, is recognized only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.

On January 13, 2016, the Financial and Sustainability Reporting Standards Council deferred the
original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the IASB completes its
broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result in the simplification
of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.

3. Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs require management to
make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and related notes. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial statements are
based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The items are those matters which the Group assess to have significant risks arising
from estimation uncertaintics:

ludgments
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. This judgment is based upon
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

Derermination of Control Over an Investee Company

Control is presumed to exist when an investor s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
invesiee, The Group has established that it has the ability to control its subsidiaries by virtue of either
100% or a majority of the voting interest in the investee company.,

Determination of Acquisition Date in Business Combinations
The acquisition date is the date the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree, generally the specified
closing or completion date of the business combination.

The date on which control passes is a matter of fact. In determining the acquisition date, the Group
considers all the terms and conditions of the arrangements and their economic effects. One or more of
pertinent facts and circumstances surrounding a business combination are considered in assessing
when the acquirer has obtained control of the acquiree:

1A O
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When the consideration is transierred;
When scquiree shares or underlying net assets are acquired;
When the acquirer is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee;

»  Agreement date designed to achieve an overall commercial effect of business combination and
economically justified by the parties;

The date on which the Group obtains control over the Solar Philippines Assets is the date on which
the Group legally transfers the consideration, acquires the assels, and assumes the liabilities of Solar
Philippines Assets.

Assessment of Acquisition as Business Combination

Where asset is acquired through the acquisition of corporate interests, management considers the
substance of the assels and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition
represents an acquisition of a business. The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business
combination where an integrated set of activities is acquired in addition to the asset.

Where such acquisitions are not judged to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as
business combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date.
Otherwise, corporate acquisitions are accounted for as business combinations. The cost of the
acquisition is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their relative fair values, and
no goodwill or deferved tax is recognized.

The Parent Company’s acquisition of Terra Solar have been accounted for as business combination
(see Note 22).

Business Combination of Entities under Common Control

A combination involving entities or businesses under common control is ‘a business combination in
which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party or partics
both betore and after the business combination, and that control 1 not transitory’. This will include
transactions such as the transfer of subsidiaries or businesses between entities within a group,
provided the transaction meets the definition of a business combination in PFRS 3,

The transactions entered by the Parent Company with SP Project Holdings and Countryside were
determined to be common control business combinations (sce Note 21),

Change in Operating Segmentis

The Group changed the structure of its intermal organization that caused the composition of its
reportable segments o change. Previously, the Group has no operating segments as il has not yet
commenced its commercial operations, As of December 31, 2023, the Group’s operating businesses
are organized and managed separately on a per company basis, with each company representing a
strategic business segment. Financial information on operating segments are presented in Note 26 of
the consolidated tinancial statements. The reported operating segment information 15 in accordance
with PFRS 8.

Assessing Impairment of Deposits for Land Acquisition

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is indication that the deposits for
land acquisition may be impaired. Management's assessment of impairment considers information
from various sources, including those {rom the land acquisition process and the related requirements,
the current status of land acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may affect the iming

of completion of the transaction.
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As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, management has assessed that there were no indicators that the
deposits for land acquisition may be impaired. The carrying value of deposits for land acquisition
amounted to #3,396.8 million and £2,026.9 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively
{see Note 10).

Evaluating Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The Group applied the following judgments mn the determination of the amount and tming of revenue
recognition;

ldentifving Performance Obligations

The Group identifies performance obligations by considering whether the promised goods or
services in the contract are distinct goods or services. A good or service is distinct when the
customer can benefit from the good or service on its own or together with ather resources that are
readily available to the customer and the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service to the
customer is separately identifiable from the other promises in the contract.

The Group assesses performance obligations as a series of distinet goods and services that are
substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer if:

1. each distinct good or services in the series are transferred over time; and
2, the same method of progress will be used (i.c., units of delivery) to measure the entity's
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation

For sale of electricity, the obligation under each contract is a single performance obligation.

For installation services where the Group has to deliver the components of solar photovoltaic
(“PV"™) systems and perform installation sérvices, the obligations are combined and considered as
a single performance obligation since these are not distinct within the context of PFRS 15 as the
Group provides a significant service of integrating the goods or services with other goods or
services promised in the contract into a bundle of goods or services that represent the combined
output for which the customer has contracted. The risk of transferring individual goods or
services 15 inseparable because substantial part of the Group's promise to the customer is to
ensure the individual goods or services are incorporated into the combined output.

For revenue from manufacturing of goods performance obligation is comprised of
non-distinct goods or services, which include issuance of materials to production, assembly,
testing and packaging considered as single performance obligation,

Further, allocation of transaction prices is not necessary as the obligation under each contragt
with customers are accounted for us a single performance obligation and the Giroup does not have
uny other ancillary services to be performed in conneet to ull the contructs with customers

(see Note 29),

Revenue Recognition

The Group recognizes revenue when it satisfies an identified performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is considered to be
transierred when the customer obtains control. The Group determunes, al contracl inceplion,
whether it will transfer control of a promised good or service over time. If the Group does not
satisfy a performance obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time.

For sale of electricity, the Group concluded that sale of electricity is to be recognized over time,
since the customer simultancously receives and consumes the benefits as the Group supplies

electricity.
LR
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Revenue from manufacturing of goods is recognized over time or at a point in time. For wrnkey
contracts where in the products created have no alternative use to the Group and the Group has
right to payment for performance completed to date including the related profit margin, in case of
termination for reasons other than the Group’s failure to perform as promised, revenue is
recognized over time. For goods manufactured not covered by customer purchase orders or firm
delivery schedule, revenues are recognized at a point in time.

For revenue from sale of installation services, the Group concluded that revenue from sale of
installation services is recognized over time as the satisfaction of the performance obligations
creales assets that the customers control as the assets are created.

s ldentifying Methods for Measuring Progress of Revenue recognized over Time
The Group determines the appropriate method of measuring progress which is either through the
use of input or output methods. Input method recognizes revenue on the basis of the efforts or
inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation while output method recognizes revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value to the customer of the goods or services transferred
to date.

For sale of electricity, the Group determined that the output method is the best method in
measuring progress as actual electricity is supplied to customer, The Group recognizes revenue
based on the actual renewable energy generation (see Note 29),

For revenue from manufacturing of goods, the Group measures progress lowards complete
sansfaction of the performance obligation using an input method (i.e., costs incurred).
Management believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of goods or
services to the customer because the Group provides integration service to produce a combined
output and each item in the combined output may not transfer an equal amount of value to the
customer,

For installation services, the Group determined that the input method (on the basis of cost
incurred) is the best method in measuring progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with ¢ustomers
in 2023:

Sale of electricity #619.252 204

Sale ol installation services 16199013

Total revenue from contracts with customers B635.451.217
Estimates

Estimating Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses under PFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows, including
collectability, collateral values and other credit enhancements, when determining impairment losses,
Increases or decreases to the allowance balance are recorded as general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Under PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, additional judgments are also made in assessing a significant
increase in credit risk in the case of financial assets measured using the general approach. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances,
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The Group’s impairment calculations are outputs of statistical modeis with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
impairment models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

¢  The Group's criteria for defining default and for assessing il there has been a significant increase
in credit risk;

* The segmentation of financial and contract assets when impairment is assessed on a collective
basis;
The choice of inputs and the various formulas used in the impairment calculation;
Determination of relationships between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs: and,

= Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the impairment models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Measwrement of ECL
ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are
measured as follows:

» Financial assets thal are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all
cash shortfalls over the expected life of the financial asset discounted by the effective interest
rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract und the cush flows that the Group expects w receive,

o Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the
effective interest rate,

The Group leverages existing nsk management indicators (e.g., internal credit risk classification and
restructuring triggers), credit risk rating changes and reasonable and supportable information which
allows the Group to identify whether the credit risk of financial assets has significantly increased.

As of December 31, 2023, the total allowance for ECL recognized on trade receivables amounted to
P69.3 million (see Note 5). The aggregate carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand), trade receivables, subscriptions receivables, short-term investments and bonds (under
other current assets), due from related parties and long-term recervables {(under other noncurrent
assets) amounted to #11,385.5 million and £1,525.2 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively (sce Notes 4, 5, 7, 11 and 14).

Frovisional Fair Value Assessment as a result of the step-acquisition of Terra Solar

In 2023, the Group’s acquisition of Terra Solar was accounted for using the acquisition method which
require extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments to allocate the purchase price to the fair
market values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and habilitics at acquisition date. It also requires the
acquirer to recognize gain on bargain purchase or goodwill. The Group's acquisition of Terra Solar
has resulted in goodwill. The Group valued certain assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including
any identifiable intangible assets from the acquisition. The valuation had not been completed by the
date the consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the BOD. Pending the
valuation, the Group provisionally determined the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed {rom the acquisition. See Note 22 for the detailed information on the transaction.
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As of December 31, 2023, the Group has yet to finalize the determination of the fair values of the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed from the acquisition of Terra Solar (see Note 22). The Group

determines the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed from

the acquiree without quoted market prices based on the following:

» For assets and liabilities that are short-term in nature, carrying values approximate fair values;
and

*  Forintangible assets, fair values are determined based on multi-period excess eamings method
which estimates the sum of the discounted future excess carnings attributable to the intangible
assets.

In 2023, the Group remeasured its previously held equity interest in Terra Solar, previously an
associate, to fair value and recognized the resulting gain in profit or loss, as a result of its step-
acquisition upon obtaining control on December 11, 2023 (see Note 22),

Estimating NRV for Inventories

The Group provides allowance for inventories, whenever NRV becomes lower than cost due to
damage, physical deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The allowance
account is reviewed periodically to reflect the accurate valuation in the financial records. As of
December 31, 2023, total inventories and (otal allowance for impairment loss amounted lo

P24 million and #27.5 million, respectively (see Notes 6).

Revaluation of Land

The Group carries its land at revalued amount with changes in fair value recognized in OCL The fair
value of the Group's land measured using the fair value model is based on the valuation carried out
by an independent appraiser as of December 31, 2023. The valuation was arrived by reference (o
market evidence of ransaction prices of similar properties.

External appraisers used market approach to value the land properties by using sales comparison
method in particular. The valuation analysis involved key assumptions such as listing prices of
reasonably comparable properties and adjustments related to the characteristics of the land propertics
such as size, location, utility, and other relevant conditions.

[n 2023, the total increase in land as a result of revaluation amounted to #7,919,.9 million. As of
December 31, 2023, the total revaluation surplus amounted to £8,268. 1 million, net of the deferred
income tax liability, As of December 31, 2023, carrying value of revalued land amounted to
P12.467.3 million (see Note 9).

Estimating useful {ives of Property, Plant and Equipment (except Land and CIP)

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment (except land and CIP) based on
the period over which these assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives are
reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical
wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of these
assets. In addition, estimation of the useful lives is based on collective assessment of industry
practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible that future
results of operations could be matenially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by
changes in the factors mentioned. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period
would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment (except land and CIP) amounted to
P7.497.9 million and #281.7 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 9).



Estimating Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Group assesses impairment of nonfinancial asscts whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

e Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
e Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
and

« Significant negative industry or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of assets in an
arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present vahie of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life,
For impairment loss on specific assets, the recoverable amount represents the fair value less costs to
sell,

The carrying amounts of assets that are subject to impairment testing when impairment indicators arc
present (such as obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes to the manner in which the asset
15 used, worse than expected economic performance, or other external indicators) are as follows:

2023 2022
Other current assets* (Note 7) P168.,555.877 B18.638 844
Property, plant and equipment — at cost (Note 9) 10,136,123,220 1,671,233 624
Deposits for land acquisition (Note 10) 3396,776,396  2,026,892.396
Intangible assets (Note 22) 13.261,891,642 -
Investment properties (Note 8) - 312,626,010
Other noncurrent assets** (Note 11) 357,985,321 654,395,146

$27,321,332,456  P4.683,786.020

*Exciuding shovi-term invessmenis
** Evchudimg Inng-term receivabley

There were no indicators of impairment of nonfinancial assets for the for the year ended
December 31, 2023 for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended
June 30, 2022,

Estimating the Realizability of Deferved Income Tax Assets

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant management estimate is required to
determine the amount of deferred income tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely
tming and level of future taxable income together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of recognized deferred income tax assets amounted to P41.4 million and #30.2 million as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 19). The Group did not recognize deferred
income Lax assets on the carryforward benefits of unused net operating loss carryover (“NOLCO™)
amounting to #479.2 million and P254.4 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, us
management believes that there is no sufficient future taxable income to allow all or part of the
deductible temporary difference to be utilized before its expiration (see Note 19),
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4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2023 2022
Cash on hand and in banks $9,934 772 578 P37,232.084
Short-term deposits 105,652,049

#10,040,424,627 P37,232,084

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of up to three (3) months and earn interest at the
prevailing short-term deposit interest rates.

Cash in banks carn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Total interest earned from the
Group's cash and cash equivalents, net of final tax, amounted to ®9.5 million, 2.4 million and
P0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended

December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, respectively,

Cash in banks include the balance of escrow account where the net proceeds of the Initial Public
Offering ("[PO") and Stock Rights Offering (“SRO") of the Parent Company are deposited. As
provided in the escrow agreement, the escrow agent shall release to the Parent Company the offer
proceeds within five (5) banking days from the receipt of an instruction letter from the Parent
Company directing such release and certifying that the amount released shall be used solely in
accordance with the purpose stated in the use of proceeds of IPO and/or SRO.

In the event of any change in the use of proceeds, the Parent Company shall provide the escrow agent
with a copy of the certification by the Parent Company’s corporate secretary of the board resolution
approving such new use of proceeds and a certification by the Parent Company's corporate secretary
that the new use of proceeds has been disclosed to the PSE in accordance with applicable PSE rules.

Trade Receivables
The Group’s trade receivables as of December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Trade receivables

Third parties (Note 29) P351,397.454
Related party 4,189,066
355,586,520
Less allowanee for doubtful accounts (69,298.458)
P286,288. 062

Movement in allowunce for doubtful accounts are as [ollows:

Effect of business combination under common control (Note 21) P69,.645,553
Provision for impairment loss (Note 18) 75,280
Reversal (422,375)
Balanee at end of period P69, 298,458

Trade receivable arises from the revenue from the sale of electricity, sale of goods and services.
These ure either interest or non-interest bearing depending on the clause indicated in the contract and
generally collectible within 40 to 60 days.

The Group has no trade receivables as of December 31, 2022,

LT



6, Inventories

The Group's inventorics at NRV as of December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Cost
Mounting structures #19.423.306
Panels and inverters 12,924 499
Cables 10,297,327
Others 9,696,238
52,341,370
Less allowance for impairment loss (27.540.457)
P24 800913
Maovement in allowance for impairment loss follows:
Effect of business combination under common control (Note 21) B29, 382,300
Reversal {1,841,843)
Balance at end of period #27.540,457

Other inventories include cost of consumables, supplies accessories and electricals, which includes
cost of batteries, switch boards and transformers, that will be used in the construction projects of SP
Rooftop,

Inventories charged to costs of sales and services for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to
BA.7 million (sec Note 17).

The Group has no inventorics as of December 31, 2022,

7. Other Current Assets

2023 2022

Short-term investments P575,810,259 P
Input VAT 41,086,277 -
Bonds (Note 23) 35,267,363 15,552,038
Deferred trunsaction costs (Note 16) 32,106,975 -
Advances to suppliers 15,330,330 -
Creditable withholding taxes 6,748,265 -
Others (Notes 18 and 29) 43,626,491 3,086,805
749,975,960 18,638,843

Less allowance for impairment (5,609,824) -
$744,366,136  P18.638.843
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Movements in allowance for impairment loss on input VAT are as follows:

Effect of business combination under common control (Note 21) 25,133 866

Provision for impairment loss (Note 18) 680,892

Reversal (204,934)

Balance at end of penod B35, 609,824
Bonds consist of:

Beneficiary Contract Term Expiry Date Amount
Department  DAR conversion Refundable upon 20,267,363
of Agrarian  order conversion of
Reform land and
{("DAR™) compliance with

the conditions set
forth in the DAR
conversion order

Angeles Power Supply Callable upon August 10, 2024 15,000,000
Electric Agreement for demand

Corporation |5 MW, solar power
(“AEC")  project

Total £35.267,363

Short-term investments pertain to the restricted interest-bearing accounts opened and established hy
SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac in accordance with certain loan and service agreements that will serve as
a cash reserve or deposit to service the principal and/or interest payments due on the long-term deb,
and as performance security to their respective PSAs (see Note 29). For the year ended

December 31, 2023, interest eamed from short-term investments amounted to 14,9 nullion.

Advances to suppliers pertain to advance payments made by the Group to third-party suppliers for the
purchase of materials.

Others inelude other prepayments and advances to employees of SP Project Holdings that are subject
to liguidation within 30 days.

Investment Properties

As of December 31, 2022, investment properties consist of several parcels of land located in

Nueva Ecija with total area of 316.46 hectares for the solar power plant of Terra Solar. These
properties were acquired from various landowners through various Deeds of Absolute Sale (“DOAS™)
Agreements execuled in 2022

The total cost of the investment properties, including land-related costs amounted to #312.6 million
as at December 31, 2022,

In 2023, as a result of the consolidation of Terra Solar (see Note 2), the investment properties were
reclassified as land under property, plant and equipment (see Note 9).
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2022
Transportation Construction
Equipment in Progress ROLU Assets Total
Cost:
Balances at beginning of period P—  PO21385.618 P301,837.803 P1,223.223421
Additions (Notes 14 and 20) 207,600 468,164,123 — 468371723
Balances at cnd of period 207,600  1,389.549,741 301,837,803  1,691,595,144
Accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses:
Balances al beginning of period - - 14,927,309 14,927,309
Deprecistion and amortization
(Note 18) 13,840 - 2,584,193 2,598,033
Amortization capitalized to CIP = - 2,836,178 2,836,178
Balances at end of period 13,840 - 20,347,680 20,361,520
Net book value P193,760 P|,389.549,741 P251,490,123 P1,671,233.624
Solar Power Plants

As of December 31, 2023, solar power plants of SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac (“Solar Power Plants™)
are pledged as collateral for their respective long-term debt contracted separately for the respective
projects (see Note 13).

[n 2023, the Group recognized gain on sale of property, plant and equipment amounting to
P17.8 million presented as part of “Other income — net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

CiP
This pertains to capitalized costs related mainly to the SPNEC's Phase | and SP Tarlac's expansion
projects (see Note 28).

ROU assets

The Group entered into various land lease agreements in Concepeion, Tarlac, and Sta. Rosa, Nueva
Ecija with various third-party lessors for the development of various projects under non-cancelable
lease agreements,

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s total land area under lease is at 454,92 hectares and
347.42 hectares, respectively.

The costs of ROU assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the lease term. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the remaining terms of the leases range between 20 to 30 years
(including extension of five (5) years) (see Note 20).
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At revalued amount
Land
Effect of business combination under common control (Note 21) B3,775,546,200
Additions 36,070,190
Reclassifications from:
Investment properties (Note 8) 312,626,010
Deposits for land acquisition (Note 10) 287,506,687
Revaluation increment during the year B.055,590.913
P12.467,340,000

As part of the business combination under commaon control, a total of 135.68 heetares of land of
SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac with combined value of #3,775.5 million were transferred to SPNEC
(see Note 211,

SPNEC opted to adopt the appraisal accounting consistent with the provisions of PFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. Consequently, it engaged an independent firm of appraisers to conduct a
revaluation of the consolidated land area of the Group. The appraisers used Level 3 key observable
inpuls to measure the fair value of the land and determined that it is in the range of #2,300 - #4,900
per square meter.  The resulting values are as follows:

Entity Land Area Acquisition  Appraised value as of Revaluation
{in hectares) cost December 31, 2023 Increment in 2023
{In Millions)
Terra Nueva 534.760 P636.2 P8,556.1 B7.919.9
SP Calatagan 105.26 2.390.7 2421.1 304
SP Tarlac 30.41 1,384.8 1,490.1 105.3
670.43 B4411.7 B12.467.3 #8.055.6

The foregoing properties of SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac were used as collateral to secure their
respective long-term debis (see Note 13).

The total value of the land - at cost, is P4,411.7 million as of December 31, 2023,

10. Depaosits for Land Acquisition

Following is a summary of the deposits for land acquisition of the Group:

Entity 2023 2022
Land Arca Deposit Paid Land Area Deposit Paid
(in hectares) (in hectares)
Provincia Investmenis
Corporation (“PIC™) 68.62 B267,000,000 68.62 P267,000,000
Lupang Hinirang Holdings
Corporation “LHHC™) 56.81 270,000,000 56,81 270,000,000
Leandro L. Leviste 87.50 421,618,085 - -
Various landowners 2,092.72 2.438,158,311 1,727.36 1,489,892.396
2,305.65 #3.396,776,39%6 1,852.79  B2026,892,396
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The §7.50-hectares property with deposit for land acquisition to Leandro L. Leviste is pledged to a
local bank for the loan obtained from a local bank by SP Tarlac (see Note 13).

Following is the movement in the Group's deposits for land acquisition with various landowners:

2023 2022
Balances at beginning of penod #1.489,892.396 #84,499 933
Effect of business combination under common
control (Note 21) 12,676,070 -
Additions 723,096,532 1,405,392,463
Reclassifications from (to):
Deposit (Note 11) 500,000,000 -
Land (Note ) (287,506,687) >
Balances at end of period #2.438,158.311 PRI 480.892 396

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the remaining balance amounting to P1,111.8 million and
2674.1 million, respectively, will be payable when the conditions under the contracts to sell are
satisfied.

1. Other Noncuarrent Assets

2023 2022
Long-term receivables (Note 29) P318,977,637 B
Input VAT 138,451,932 144,640,016
Deferred input VAT 78,188,325 480,000
Project development costs 75,062,130 -
Plant construction materials 50,624,254 -
Refundable deposits (Note 14) - 500,000,000
Others (Note 20) 15,786,849 9,403,298
677,091,127 654,523,314

Less allowance for impairment of input VAT (128,168) (128,168)

#676,962,959 P654,395,146

Terra Nueva paid SP Project Holdings B500.0 million on December 26, 2022 for the latter to assist in
the land conversion activities covering 975.75 hectares of land acquired by Terra Nueva (Note 14).

As of December 31, 2023, deposits pertaining to a total of 898.59 hectares of land with conversion
order issued by the DAR have reclassified to the “Deposits for land acquisition” account.

Project development costs pertain to pre-development costs incurred by Terra Solar in relation to the
construction of its solar power project (see Note 22).
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12, Trade and Other Payables

2023 2022

Accounts payable
Related parties (Note 14) P185,013,429 P15,039.314
Third parties 49,127,667 -
Interest payable (Note 13) 99,315,778 -
Accrued expenses (Note 29) 89,591,394 2,836,359
Income tax payable 21,707,307 -
Withholding tax payable 13,793,524 47,298,615
Accrued purchases 10,743,183 -
Other payables 13,333,758 43,784
P482,626,040 P65,218.072

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing and settled within one (1) year in the normal course of

business.

Accrued liabilities pertain to unbilled liabilities for costs of benefits to host communities provided
under Department of Energy (“DOE") Energy Regulations No. |-94, professional fees, difterential
cost of replacement energy charged by Meralco consistent with the provisions of the Power Supply

Agreement of SP Tarlac,

As agreed between Meralco and SP Tarlac, the latter may offset the payment for such replacement
energy against the billings for energy sold every month. As of December 31, 2023, the total cost of
replacement energy to be offset against SP Tarlac’s fature billings to Meralco amounted to

B107.5 million (see Note 29).

Other payables pertain to statutory liabilitics that are to be remitted to the appropriate government

agency.

13. Long-term Debt

Following are the details of the long-term debt assumed through business combination:

Original Loan Cutstanding  Interest
Entity Amount Intercst mie Repayment schedule balance Expense
{In Millions)
SP Tarlac #22750  7.83%, subject 1o 20} semi-annual P1.935.8 #105.2
repricing in July installments starting
2024 and second January 3, 2021 until
repricing in July 3, 2031
July 2029
5P 3400.0  S-year benchmark 24 semi-annual 1,198.8 513
Calatagan plus a pre-agreed installments starting
spread October 3, 2018 unil
April 3, 2029
Total 31346 1565
Less unamortized debt transaction cost (38.0)
3,086.6
Current portion {366.9)
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,729.7
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Movements in the debt transaction costs are as Tollows:

SP Tarlac SP Calatagan Total
Effect of business combination
under common control P35,943.554 P7,300919 P43,244 473
Amortization during the period (4.142,179) (1.095,966) (5,238.145)
Balance at the end of period P31,801,375 6,204,953 #38.006,328

SP Tarlac
Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (R2,225.0 million Loan)

On June 18, 2019, SP Tarlac signed an OLSA with BDO Unibank, Tnc, (“BDO") for a long-term loan
facility of P2,225.0 million to solely finance the construction of the Concepcion Solar Project.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total interest expense amounted to #105.2 million and is
presented as part of “Finance costs™ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. As of
December 31, 2023, acerued interest relating to the long-term debt amounted to B77.6 million

(see Note 12).

Under the OLSA, SP Tarlac is required to maintain a maximum debt-to-equity ratio of 50:50. In
addition, a debt service coverage ratio (“DSCR") of at least 1.20x. As of December 31, 2023,
SP Tarlac’s DSCR is al 0.94x and SP Tarlac has obtained a waiver for the compliance of the
minimum DCSR from BDO.

As of December 31, 2023, the OLSA is sccurcd by the following:

SP Tarlac’s solar power plant with net book value of #4,513.5 million (see Note 9)
Tarlac 1A Project with revalued amount of #1,490.0 million (see Note 9)

Leasehold rights over leased Tarlac | A Project land of 61.48 hectares (see Note 20)
Parcels of land with land area of 87.50 hectares owned by SP Calatagan (see Note 14)
SP Tarlac’s common stocks

SP Calatagan
Omnibus Loan and Security Agreement (R3,400.0 million Loan)

On February 14, 2017, SP Calatagan signed an OLSA with BDO, Philippine Business Bank (“PBB™)
and United Coconut Planters Bank (“UCPB") (collectively referred to as the “SP Calatagan Lenders”™)
tor a long-term loan facility of #3,400.0 million to finance the repayment of short-term loan lacility,
including accrued interests, and project advances from SP Project Holdings and Solar Philippines
Commercial Rooftop Projects, Inc. (“SPCRPI™), which were used to partially finance the construction
of the Calatagan Solar Power Project. On April 3, 2017, SP Calatagan received the full proceeds of
the long-~term loan.

e ileot o

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total interest expense amounted to £51.3 million and was
presented as part of “Finance costs” in the consolidated statement of income. As of

December 31, 2023, accrued interest relating to the long-term facility amounted to #21.7 million
{see Note 12),

Under the OLSA, SP Calatagan is required to maintain a maximum debi-to-equity ratio of 70:30 and

maintain a debt service coverage ratio (“DSCR™) of at least 1.20x. As of December 3 1, 2023,
SP Calatagan’s debt-to-equity ratio is 70:30 and DSCR is at 1.30x.
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As of December 31, 2023, the loan is secured by the following:

ISP Calatagan’s solar power plant presented as part of *Property, plant and equipment” with net
book value of #2,508.9 million as of Diecember 31, 2023 (see Noie 9);

2. SP Calatagan’s Project Lands with revalued amount of B2,421.1 million as of December 31, 2023
(see Note 9); and

3, SP Calatagan's capital stock comprising of common stock and preferred stock amounting to
£1,099.5 million and #305.9 million, respectively.

14. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if, among others, one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, the parties are subject to common control, or the party is an associate or a joint
venture. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common
significant influence which include affiliates.

Affiliates are related entities of the Group by virtue of common ownership and representation to
management where significant influence is apparent.

Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accounts with related parties shall be settled in cash.
The transactions are made at terms and prices agreed upon by the partics.

Following arc the Group's related party transactions for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the
six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
outstanding balances as of December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Trangactions during the Outstanding
peviods ended balance ag of December 11
December 31, December 31,
23 20022 June 30, 2023
(Une Year)® (%o Modths) {Lhe ¥ car) 013 112 e LConditions
Deposiis for lund
acquisition (Note 7)
Deposits;
Individual non-interest  Unsecured;
Sivckholder 411 618,085 B B P421,61H,085 P bearing  Not limpalred
LHHC - - - 270,00,k 270,008,000 =tho- -do-
pIC = = - 267,004 D0 267,006,000 o~ -t
FOSHAIR085  P537,000.000
Deposit (Mot 21)
Dcppiiii;
pot-fnlerest
5P P_ni'ncr. Iluldini: f Fﬂw - i Fﬁﬂﬂimimﬂ bﬂn_ﬂl_ Unuw&d-
Bae from related
parties
Due and
demandalile;
mmp-inferest  Unsecured;
AP Project Holdings PH1 433,396 BB, 700,000 - FAT, 967930 8, 700,000 bearing  Not impoired
SPLRPI 2,100,000 19,098 320 - 11,654,070 19,098 320 =t s
Iriivighaal
Beckbolder 7293310 - - 7293310 - ~tlo- -da-
SPCLE 5,000 = = 5000 = -do- do-
SP Holdings — 251,890,000 - 793,590,000 - -

ll!t,!ll'.l,;!]_h PA21,I88,310
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Trangaetions during the Chatatanding
periods ended halance as of December 31
December 31, December 31,

2023 2022  June 30, 2022
(e an]- (Six Momiths) (e Year) pl k] gz Terms Cenditions
Dae to related
parties
Dt and

demandable;

noh=inierest
5P Project Holdings #326,103,072 P 666300 P536.656,775 PL.T70229 bearing Ungeeured
Coumtrvside 17551682 - - 37.552.682 - == o
TREI 33,988,926 - - 33,948,916 - o o=
DGA 244,443 - - 144 443 - -l -3

Po0Y. 442,826 #22.770229
Acconnts payahle
(Mote 10)
Due and

demandable;

pon-inleresl
SPCRM PHS, 714,433 - [ RS, T14.,453 [l bearing Unsecured
SP Project Holings L8 040,000 A0,80:0 000 24 000,000 65 881 659 12,700,000 ~tl- =ilo-
SMSEC HS 454 481 23450, 790 - 31,869 361 2,339,094 =i =igp=
SPMMC 547,956 - - 547,956 - ~dis- -z~

FIRS.013.429 B15,039.094

*Includes effect of business combination (see Notex 21 and 22J

i,

SP Project Holdings

Deed of Assignment between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings

On January 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered into by the Parent Company, as the
assignee, and SP Project Holdings, as the assignor, whereby, SP Project Holdings assigned to the
Parent Company all of its rights and obligations under the September 6, 2016 lease agreement
covering a total land area of 169.9 hectares, among others, and the Parent Company accepred and
assumed all of the said rights and obligations thus assigned, pursuant to the said Deed of
Assignment (see Note 20).

Management Services Agreement (“MSA ") between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings

On April 30, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MSA with SP Project Holdings to provide
execulive and leadership support and execute its strategic direction while managing ils business
operations for a period from May 1, 2021 to April 30, 2024, rencwable upon mutual agreement of
both parties, for a monthly fee of #2.0 million, subject 1o 5% annual escalation.

The MSA covers all necessary administrative and advisory services on management, investment
and technical matters involving the Parent Company’s operations, including but not limited to
human resources, legal, finance, and information technology.

Prior to May 2021, the administrative and finance functions of the Parent Company were being
handled by SP Project Holdings at no cost to the Parent Company. Starting May 2021, the key
administrative and finance functions are performed by SP Project Holdings through the MSA.
Management fee recognized for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period
ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022 amounted to B26.0 million,
#12.8 mullion and #24.0 million, respectively, presented as “Management fees” under

“General and administrative expenses™ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 18).
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Construction Support Services Agreement ("CSSA") with SP Project Holdings

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a CSSA with SP Project Holdings
wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide support services, including engineering, procurement
and construction (“EPC"), logistics, warehousing and other contractor-related services during the
construction of the Parent Company's Phase 1 Project.

Construction support services recognized for the year ended December 31, 2623, for the six-
month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022 amounted to
P36.0 million, P68.0 million and nil, respectively, which were capitalized as part of CIP
{see Note 9).

Administrative Services Contract ("ASC") between SP Calatagan and SP Project Holdings

On May 27, 2020, SPCC entered into an administrative service contract with SPCRPI, an
affiliate, to provide necessary and advisory services on management, investment and technical
matters involving SPCC's operations, including but not limited to human resources, legal, finance
and information technology. Under the contract, SPCC shall pay SPCRPI a monthly fee

#1.0 million for a period of ten (10) years from January 1, 2020. On January 22, 2021, SPCRPI
executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all of its rights and obligations under the
administrative service contract to SP Project Holdings. In 2023, SPCC recognized professional
fees amounting to #6.0 million, which is presented as “Management fees” under “General and
administrative expenses™ in the consolidated statement of income (see Note 18).

Site Acquisition Services Agreement (“SASA") between Terva Nueva and SP Project Holdings
On December 26, 2022, Terra Nueva entered into a SASA with SP Project Holdings to cover
total land area of 992.73 hectares for a consideration of #150.0 million for site acquisition
services, exclusive of VAT, from October 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022,

As of December 31, 2022, Terra Nueva has fully paid for the site acquisition services rendered by
SP Project Holdings and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition” in the
consolidated statement of financial position (sec Note 10).

Deposit and Services Agreement between Terva Nueva and SP Project Holdings

On December 26, 2022, Terra Nueva entered into an agreement with SP Project Holdings,
wherein the latter shall provide assistance, representation, facilitation of documentation and
submission of necessary documents and liaison with relevant govemnment units, agencies and
offices including government owned and controlled corporations to secure land use conversion
orders from the DAR for the 992.73 hectares acquired by the former including the delivery of the
relevant conversion orders from the date of the agreement until December 31, 2024. To facilitate
and expedite the performance of the services by SP Project Holdings, Terra Nueva has provided
the former a refundable deposit amounting to #500.0 million which was presented in “Deposits™
as part of “Other noncurrent assets” as of December 31, 2022 (see Note 11).

In 2023, SP Project Holdings has secured multiple land conversion orders from DAR for parcels
of land with a total land area of 992.73 hectares. Terra Nueva then reclassified the Deposits
amounting to #500.0 million as part of land-related costs under “Deposits for land acquisition”
account {sec Note 10).

Intercompany Advance Agreement ("14A4 ") with SP Project Holdings and Terra Nueva

On May 5, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the authority to enter in a loan arrangement with
SP Project Holdings in which SP Project Holdings may lend 1 SPNEC an amount up to the net
proceeds of the Share Purchase Agreement with MPIC (see Note 14) (net of taxes, costs, and
fees), under the terms and conditions approved and recommended for board approval by the
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Related Party Transactions Committee of SPNEC, and the proposed on-lending from SPNEC to
Terra Nueva of the proceeds of this loan.

On June 2023, SPNEC entered into an IAA with SP Project Holdings whereby SP Project
Holdings shall extend a loan to SPNEC wherein the latter shall exclusively use the proceeds of
the loan for on-lending to Terra Nueva. Per IAA, SPNEC shall not directly or indirectly use the
proceeds of the Loan for any other purpose without SP Project Holdings's prior written consent.
The TAA shall have a term of one (1) year, subject to extension mutually agreed by the parties.

On the same date, SPNEC entered into an TAA with Terra Nueva whereby SPNEC shall extend a
loan to Terra Nueva wherein the latter shall exclusively use the proceeds to acquire the Project
Land, as defined in the IAA. Per IAA, Terra Nueva shall not directly or indirectly use the
proceeds of the Loan for any other purpose without the Lender’s prior written consent. The 1AA
shall have a term of one (1) year, subject to extension mutually agreed by the parties.

In 2023, SPNEC rececived advances from SP Project Holdings which were then subsequently
advanced to Terra Nueva amounting to £300.0 million.

Dieed of Assignment of deposit between SPNEC and SP Project Holdings

On December 11, 2023, SP Project Holdings entered into a Deed of Assignment with the Parent
Company whereby the former assigned the deposits in Terra Solar amounting to #25.96 million
to the latter. In 2023, the Group recognized other income amounting to #25.96 million presented
as part of “Other income - net” in the consolidated statement of income,

LHHC

MOA with LHHC
On April 19, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with LHHC to secure land covering
a total area of 56.81 hectares for a total amount of #270.0 million (see Noie 10).

PIC

MOA with PIC

On February 20, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with PIC, which was later
amended on March 3, 2021, to secure land covenng a total arca of 68.62 hectares for a total
amount of P267.0 million (see Note 10),

SPCRPI

Project Development Services Agreement (“PD5A ") and Amendment Agreement with SPFCRP]
On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a PDSA with SP Project Holdings
wherein SP Project Holdings shall provide project development services, including site
identification, permitting and land acquisition, covering a total area of ¥25.61 hectares, for a
consideration of #150.0 million, exclusive of VAT.

On October 5, 2022, SP Project Holdings assigned all of its rights and obligations under the
PDSA to SPCRPIL

As of December 31, 2022, the Parent Company has tully paid the services rendered by SPCRPI

and has presented this as part of “Deposits tor land acquisition” in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 10},
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On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a separate CSSA with SPCRPI wherein
SPCRPI shall provide support services, including EPC, logistics, warchousing and other
contractor-related services during the construction of the Parent Company's Phase | Project for a
consideration of #100.0 million, exclusive of VAT,

On October 5, 2022, the parties agreed to amend the consideration of the CSSA from
£100.0 million to #219.5 million, exclusive of VAT. As of December 31, 2022, #219.5 million
was capitalized in CIP (see Note 9).

Solar Maintenance Services Corporation (“SMSC™)

Support Services Agreement between SPNEC and SMSC

Un September 29, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a Support Services Agreement with
SMSC, an affiliate of the Parent Company, wherein SMSC shall provide support services during
the construction and development of the Parent Company’s Phase 1 Project. Manpower services
recognized for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended

December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022, amounted to P43.6 million,

#23.5 million and nil, respectively, which were capitalized in CIP (see Note 9),

Property Management Agreement between SP Calatagan and SMSC

SP Calatagan has annual property management agreement with SMSC to maintain and manage
the solar power plant. In January 2022, SPCC renewed its contract for a period of one year until
December 31, 2022, The agreement was automatically renewed and extended for another period
of one year, subject to standard escalation of service fee at the rate of 10%. In 2023,

SP Calatagan recognized outside services amounting to #9.9 million presented as part of *Costs
of sales and services” in consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 17).

Operation and Maintenance Agreement between SP Tarlac and SMSC

SP Tarlac has Operation and Maintenance Agreement with SMSC for the latter to operate,
maintain and manage SP Tarlac’s solar power plant for 20 years for an annual fee of

P21.5 mullion with an escalation rate o' 2% on the second year of contract and every other year
thereafter. For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Tarlac recognized professional fees
amounting to P14.5 million, which was presented as part of *Costs of sales and services” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (see Note 17).

Property Maintenance and Management Agreement between SP Rooftop and SMSC

SP Roofiop has various property maintenance and management agreenents with SMSC where
the latter shall maintain and manage the solar power plants with terms varying for two (2) years
up to 20 years. SP Rooflop shall pay the total of salaries and wages cost plus 10% to SMSC for
employees of SMSC who directly maintain and manage the solar power plant. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, SP Roofiop recognized “Personnel costs” which was presented as part of
"Costs of sales and services” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounting
to #0.4 million (see Note 17).

CS5A between SP Roofiop and SMSC

SP Rooflop has three (3) CSSAs with SMSC where the latter shall provide support services,
including EPC, logistics, warchousing, and other contractor-related services during the
construction of the different projects of SP Rooftop for one year. SP Rooftop shall pay SMSC the
total of salaries and wages cost plus 10% of the employees of SMSC who directly assisted to the
construction of the power plants.
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Construction support services recognized as part of CIP and “Persannel costs” under “Cosis of
sales and services” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income amounted to

P5.1 million and P5.4 million, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2023

(se¢ Notes 9and 17).

f.  Individual Stockholder
MOA with SP Calatagan
On February 12, 2019, SP Calatagan entered into a MOA with the Individual Stockholder to
purchase 87,50 heclares of land for P421,6 million.

On June 28, 2019, the 87,50 hectares of land specified in the MOA were pledged as part of the
securilics to obtain & loan facility of SP Tarlac (see Notes 7, 10 and 13).

I5. Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Group has an unfunded non-contributory defined benefit plan covering substantially all of its
qualified employees. The defined benefit obligation is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31 , 2023 are as
follows:

Eftect of business combination under common control (Note 21) #2.628,137
Current service cost 290,944
Interest cost 092,926
Remeasurements arising from changes in:

Financial assumptions 1,122,862

Deviation of experience assumptions (205,332)
Transferred liability (724,983)
Balance al end of the year £3,204.554

[n 2023, the principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the projected benefit obligation were
discount rate and salary increase rate were 6.10% and 8.0%, respectively. As of December 31, 2023,
the Group recognized retirement benefit obligation of #3.2 million presented under other noncurrent
liabilitics in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2023, assuming all ather
assumptions were held constant:

Increase (Decrease) in

Increase/Decrease Defined Benefit

in Percentage Point Obligation
Discount rate +1% (B440,381)

-1% 545,803

Future salary mcreases +1% 525319
-1% (435,666)

Employee turnover -10% 133,877
+10% (133.877)
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The maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments as of December 31, 2023 are as follows:

Mare than 1 to 10 years P3,642,143
More than 1010 15 years 1,981,946
More than 15 to 20 vears 10,988,836
More than 20 years 43,711,040

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2023 is
17 to 22 years.

16.

Equity

Capital Stock and Additional Paid-in ital
The details of the Parent Company’s capital stock as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

20213 2022
Shares Amount Shares Amount

Common shares - 0.1 par value per
share
Balances at beginning of period 10,000.000,000 #1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 B1,000,000,000
Increase in authorized capital stock 40,000,000,000  4,000,000,000 - -

Balances at end of period 50,000,000,000 BS,000,0600,000 10,000,000,000 BL 000,000,000
Issued and outstanding:

Balances al beginning of period  10,000,000,000 #1,000,000,000  ¥,124 350,005  ©#¥12,435,001

Issuance of shares 24,373.050,000 2437305000 1.875.649.995 187,564,999

Balances at end of period Hé?ﬂiﬂlﬂﬂﬂ FJﬁSTéﬂSE[I Iﬂiﬂﬂllﬂﬂgfm Fllﬂﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬂimﬂ
IPO

On Decemhber 17, 2021, the Parent Company completed its TPO and was listed i the PSE under the
stock symbol “SPNEC™.

SRO

On September 15, 2022, the Parent Company completed its SRO and issued 1,875,649,995 new
common shares for a total consideration of #2,813.5 million or at #1.50 par value. The Parent
Company offered the option to pay in installments, with a down payment of 25% and the balance of
75% within three (3) months of the offer period. This resulted in an additional paid-in capital of
P2.591 4 million, net of transaction costs of #34.5 million.

On December 1, 2022, the Parent Company extended the payment period for partially paid Right
Shares for a period of three (3) months, from December 5, 2022 to March 5, 2023,

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, subscriptions receivable resulting from those that subscribed on
installment payment amounted to P1.3 million and £651.]1 million, respectively. As of

April 12, 2024, the Parent Company has already received at least 99,.84% of the payments and is
currently coordinating with the relevant parties for the completion of the requirements of its SRO.

First Increase in Authorized Capital Stock

On June 1, 2023, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for increase in authonzed
capital stock from #1.0 billion divided into 10,0 billion common shares at B0.10 per share, to

P5.0 billion divided into 50.0 billion common shares at P0.10) per share.
OO A
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Investment by MPIC

On March 27, 2023, MPIC entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (“SPA™) with SP Project
Holdings to acquire its rights, title and interest in and to SPNEC for a total of 1,600.0 million
common shares (“Sale Shares") for a total consideration of 2,000.0 million. MPIC paid the total
consideration on May 10, 2023,

On May 5, 2023, SPNEC cntered into an Option Agreement with SP Project oldings and MPIC,
which grants the MPIC Group the option to acquire up to 17,400.0 million shares of SPNEC,
comprising up to 10,000.0 million primary shares for up to #12,500.0 million (Primary Option) and
up to 7,400.0 million secondary shares for up to #9,250.0 million (Secondary Option). Together with
the initial acquisition by MPIC from SP Project Holdings of the Sale Shares, a full exercise of these
options may result in the MPIC Group investing a total of P23,750.0 million for 19,000.0 million
shares and becoming the largest shareholder with approximately 42.82% ownership in SPNEC. The
Option Agreement was terminated on October 12, 2023,

Subscription Agreement with SP Project Holdings
On May 10, 2023, SPNEC reccived £2,437.3 million from SP Project Holdings for the subscription
of 24,373.05 million common shares at 0.10 par value.

In 2023, transaction costs incurred amounting to ®34.9 million were presented as a direct charge
against “Deficit”,

Capital Infusion

In 2023, SPNEC received cash infusion from SP Project Holdings amounting to B775.0 million, as
additional paid-in capital to SP Project Holdings' existing subscription in SPNEC, This was
recognized as additional paid-in capital under equity.

Second Increase in Authorized Capital Stock
At its October 11, 2023 meeting, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following:

4. Amendment of its Articles of Incorporation to increase its authorized capital stock from 50 billion
common shares with par value of £0.10 per share to 75 billion common shares with par value of
P0.10 per share and 25 billion preferred shares with par value of P0.0] per share, divided into
Class A preferred shares and Class B preferred shares.

i.  The BOD shall determine: (a) the features of the Class A preferred shares (whether voting
or non-voling) at each issuance of the Class A preferred shares; (b) the frequency of
issuance of Class A preferred shares (which may be issued in one or more series), and
(c) the preterence as to redemption, dividends and other preterences for each issuance of
Class A preferred shares. The Class A preferred shares shall not have pre-emptive rights
over other issuances or re-issuance of preferred shares or common shares

ti.  Class B preferred shares shall be (a) voting; (b) non-cumulative; (¢) not entitled to any
economic returns or dividends; (d) redeemable at the option of the Parent Company, at
issue price, at such terms and conditions as may be determined by the BOD (and shall be
immediately relireable upon redemption thereof); and (¢) in the event of the liquidation,
dissolution or winding up of the Parent Company (whether voluntary or involuntary),
Class B preferred shares shall have preference over the common shares in respect of the
assets of the Parent Company available for distribution after payment of the liabilities of
the Parent Company;

b. Authonzanon to execute an agreement for an investor to subscribe o shares 1n the
Parent Company to support the above-mentioned increase in authorized capital stock.
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¢. Conduct of a Follow-On Offering with an aim to support the expansion of the Parent Company’s
project portfolio and increase the public ownership of its shares,

These were subsequently approved by the stockholders of the Parent Company on December 4, 2023,

In 2023, the Parent Company paid filing fees amounting to #32.1 million, which was presented as
"Deferred transaction costs™ under “Prepayments and other current assets” (see Note 7). This shail be
reclassified to retained earnings upon approval of the Parent Company’s second increase in
authorized capital stock and issuance of shares.

On January 17, 2024, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application for increase in authorized
capital stock.

Investment by MGreen

On October 12, 2023, SPNEC and SP Project Holdings entered into an Option Agreement with MGen
which grants MGen the option to subscribe, out of the second increase in authorized capital stock,

(1) 15.7 billion common shares with par value of 21.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred shares
with par value of 0,01 per share for a total subscription price of 15,9 billion. The BOD of the
Parent Company shall comprise of nine (9) directors, wherein MGen shall elect five (5) directors and
SP Project Holdings is allowed to elect no more than two (2) directors. On the same date, MGen, by
virtue of & Deed of Assignment and Assumption, assigned all its rights and obligations under the
Option Agreement to MGreen.

On November 30, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Subscription Agreement with MGreen to subscribe
(i) 15.7 billion common shares with par value of P1.0 per share and (ii) 19.4 billion preferred shares
with par value of #0.01 per share for a total subscription price of P15.9 billion, On

December 27, 2023, MGreen completed the acquisition of 50.53% voting equity interest of SPNEC
with the full payment of the common and redeemable voting preferred shares subscription price.

On December 6, 2023, the Parent Company filed its application for the aforementioned increase in
authorized capital stock with the SEC. As of December 31, 2023, the Parent Company presented the
cash subscription amounting to P15.9 billion as “Deposits for future stock subscription” under Equity.
On January 17, 2024, upon the SEC’s approval of the application for increase in authorized capital
stock, the subscribed shares were issued to MGreen,

Pledge of Parent Company's shares owned by SP Project Holdings

On June 25, 2021, SP Project Holdings executed a pledge over all the Parent Company's shares it
holds to secure a loan by its affiliate, PIC, from ACEN Corporation (formerly AC Energy
Corporation; "ACEN"). ACEN is a corporation organized in the Republic of the Phulippines, and its
shares are listed in the PSE under the stock symbol “ACEN". The pledged stock certificates of the
Parent Company’s shares were delivered to and is in the custody of the lender. The lender has agreed
to provisionally return the stock certificates representing the pledged shares and to have the same
placed under escrow for the exclusive purpose of enabling the TPO.

On January 25, 2023, 8P Project Holdings executed definitive agreements with ACEN to provide
500 million shares of SPNEC as pre-payment for part of the loan’s principal and payment of interest,
other fees, and in consideration of ACEN releasing its pledge over shares owned by SP Project
Holdings in SPNEC.
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17, Cost of Sales and Services

Costs of sales and services for the year ended December 31,

2023 are as follows:

Depreciation and amortization (Note 9) P210.,672,075
Insurance 26,389,038
Manpower services (Note 14) 25,163,828
Security services 12,569,952
Salaries and wages 11,123,826
Inventories issued (Note 6) B,714.838
Rentals 6,731,915
Others 25,737,805

£327,103,277

Others include charges of Independent Electricity Market Operator of the Philippines (“TEMOP™),
professional fees, supplies, repairs and maintenance and utilities.

18. General and Administrative Expenses

December 31,  December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) (Six Months) (One Year)
Professional fees R67.000,766 P6,401,289 P6,540,000
Taxes and licenses 40,924,882 6,848,628 10,592,654
Management fee (Note 14) 32,040,000 12,800,000 24,000,000
Rentals 8,252,107 - -
Insurance 7,503,489 2,121,316 -
Bid-related costs 7.499.277 - 1,634,000
Penalties and surcharges 6,180,173 1,819,212 48,055
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 9) 5,560,646 2,598,033 5420370
Provision for impairment loss
(Notes 5 and 7) 756,172 - -
PSE filing fees - - 12465411
Others (Notes 5 and 7) 32,196,565 5,422 482 2,655,684
£207,914,077 38,010,960 P63,356,174

Others include government share, benefits to host communities, premiums, notarial fees, trust fees,

utilities, miscellaneous and representation.
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19, Income Taxes
a. A reconciliation between statutory income tax and effective income tax are as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) (Six Months) (One Year)
Income tax benefit at statutory
income tax rate (B1,280.445) (P4,170.289) (B7,195,000)
Adjustments for:
Movements in unrecognized
deferred income tax assets 31,893,033 8,254,469 5,908,169
Montaxable income (3,583,334) - -
Income from ITH-registered
activity 1,641,858 - -
Transaction costs charged to
APIC and retained
camings (5.415454) (3,452 558) (10,066,198)
Interest income subject to
final tax (2.384,139) (744.149) (54,818)
Nondeductible expenses 3,078,311 377,665 37,292
Provision for (benefit from)
deferred income tax $23,949 830 P265,138 (B11,370,555)

b. The Group's deferred income tax assets and liabilities presented in the consolidated statements of
financial position are as follows:

2023 2022
Deferred income tax assets P9,646,601 B10,201,126
Deferred income tax liabilities (4.086,521,200) -
The components of the Group’s recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as
follows:
2023 2022
Deferred income tax assets:
Lease liabilities #37,081,548 B30,219,583
Long-term receivables 3,626,393 =
Retirement benefit obligation 320,455 =
Contract liabilities 209,658 -
Others 145,936 -
41,383,990 30,219,583
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Revaluation of land (2,756,030,419) -
[ntangible asset (1.326,189,164) =
ROLI Assets {36,039,006) (20,018,457)

(4.118,258.589) (20,018.457)
(P4,076,874,599)  P10.201,126
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As of December 31, 2023, the Group has NOLCO for which no deferred inconie tax assets have been
recognized as follows:

Period Incurred Valid Until Amount

January | to December 31, 2023 December 31, 2026 B224 836,886
July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 December 31, 2025 68,221,542
July 1, 2021 to Junc 30, 2022 Junc 30, 2027 172,229,330
January 1 to June 30, 2021 June 30, 2026 6,762,211
January | to December 31, 2020 December 31, 2025 7.162,169
P479,212,138

The movements in NOLCO are as follows:

2023 2022
Balances at beginning of period P254,375,252 P190.618.674
Additions 224,836,886 68,221,542
Expirations = (4,464,964)
Balances at end of period B479,212,138 P254 375,252

No deferred income tax asset was recognized on the carryforward benefits of NOLCO as of

December 31, 2023 and 2022 as management estimates that there would be no sufficient future taxable
income yet to allow all or part of the deductible temparary difference to be utilized prior to their
expiration.

rparite Recov Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act
On June 20, 2023, the BIR issued Revenue Memorandum Circular (RMC) No. 69-2023 reverting the
Minimum Corporate Income Tax (“MCIT”) rate to 2% of gross income effective July 1, 2023
pursuant to Republic Act (“RA™) No. 11534, otherwise known as the “Corporate Recovery and Tax
[ncentives for Enterprises (“CREATE")" Act. MCIT rate was previously reduced from 2% to 1%
effective July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023 upon the effectivity of CREATE Act in 2021.

Bavanihan to Recover as One Act (Bavanihan 2
On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations (“RR") No. 25-2020 implementing

Section 4 (bbh) of Bayaniban 2 which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years 2020 and
2021 can be carried over as a deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consccutive taxable
years immediately following the year of such loss.

20.

Leases

Lease liabilities as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

2023 2022
Balances at beginning of period F303,138.420 P203, 878,848
Additions through business combination under
common control (Note 21) 08,120,014 -
Adjustments (16,616,847T) =
Interest expense capitalized to CIP" (Note 9) 13,213,102 4,726,877
[nterest expense (Note 26) 10,743,700 4,532,695
Payments {18,526,228) —
Total lease linbilites 390,072,161 303,138,420
Current portion of lease lLiabilitics 8,962,861 4,538,676
Noncurrent portion of lease linbilities B381.109,300 B208.599,744

*Incurred during the construction peviod foee Note 29)



-52-

Additions through business combinations under common control pertain to SP Tarlac's various land
leases with a total land area of 102.49 hectares, out of which 61.48 hectares were held as security for

the OLSA (sec Note 13).

Parent Company as a lessee

In 2019, the Parent Company entered into a land lease agreement with various landowners to develop
solar farm projects in Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija for a total area of 95.8 hectares. The land was made
avalable for use on January 1, 2019 with a one (1) year rent-tree perod plus 25-year term.  Further,
the lease is subject for renewal of 5 years upon mutual agreement by the parties.

On January 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered between the Parent Company, as the
assignee, and SP Project Holdings, as the assignor, whereby, the latter assigned all of its rights and
obligations under the September 6, 2016 lease agreement for certain parcels of land with a total arca
of 179.6 hectares in Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija. The Parent Company accepted and assumed all of the
said rights and obligations thus assigned, in pursuance of the said Deed of Assignment. Further, as
agreed by the parties, the lease of the updated total land arca of 169.9 hectares commenced in

March 2021.

[n May 2021, the Parent Company entered into a land lease agreement with various landowners to
develop solar farm projects in Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija for a total land area of $1.75 hectares, The
land was made available for use on the execution date of the contract with a one (1) year renl-free
period plus 25-year term. Further, the lease is subject for renewal of five (5) years upon mutual

agreement by the parties.

As of April 12, 2024, leased lands that have DAR order equal to 352.42 hectares of leased land, of
which 169.9 hectares of leased land have DAR Certificate of Finality Order.

Set out below are the amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
{One Year) (Six Months) (Omne Year)

Interest accretion of lease liabilites #10,743,700 4,532 695 0,142,009
Amortization of ROU assets 9,982,698 2,584,193 5,420,370
Expenses relating to leases of

low-value assets (included in

costs of sales and services,

Note 17) 6,731,915 - =
Expenses relating to leases of

low-value assets (included in

general and administrative

expenses, Note 15) 8,252,107 - -
Total amounts recognized in the

consolidated statements of

comprehensive income B35,710,148 P7.116,888 P14,562,379
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21. Business Combination of Entities under Common Control

Acquisition of Solar Philippines Assets
On February 24, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of 100% of the
outstanding shares of SP Project Holdings and affiliates in the Solar Philippines Assets.

On May 5, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the modified acquisition by SPNEC of 100% of the
shares of SP Project Holdings in various Solar Philippines Assets to be at cost and paid in cash using
the proceeds SPNEC received from the subscription of SP Project Holdings of 24.37 billion common
shares of SPNEC (see Note 16).

On May 15, 2023, SPNEC (“Buyer™) entered into a Contract to Sell Shares with SPPPHI and
Individual Stockholder (“Sellers™) for the Buyer to purchase Sellers” rights, titles, and interests in und
to the Solar Philippines Assets, using the proceeds of SPPPHI's subscription of 24.37 billion of the
Buyer’s comman shares, premised on the approval of the Buyer’s first increase in authorized capital
stock (see Note 14),

On the same date, SPNEC entered into DOASS with SPPPHI for the former to purchase the latter's
rights, titles, and interests in SP Tarlac and SPRC for a total purchase price of £2,342 .4 mllion.

On June 9, 2023, SPNEC entered into another DOASS with SPPPHI for the former to purchase the
latter’s rights, titles, and interests in and to the following Solar Philippines Assets for a total purchase
price of B80.5 million.

Solar Philippines Batangas Corporation

Solar Philippines Batangas Baseload Corporation
Solar Philippines Central Luzon Corporation
Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corporation
Solar Philippines Eastern Corporation

Solar Philippines Retail Electricity, Inc.

Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation

Solar Philippines Southern Mindanao Corporation
Solar Philippines Southern Tagalog Corporation
Solar Philippines Tarlac Baseload Corporation
Solar Philippines Visayas Corporation

Solar Philippines Western Corporation

Laguna Rooftop Solar Corporation

Terra Solar Philippines, [nc.

4 & B & ® 8 @ @ B 8 @& & 2w

On June 29, 2023, SPNEC entered into a DOASS with SPPPHI for the former to purchase the latter’s
rights, titles, and interests in and to SPCC for a purchase price of P502.8 million. Consequently, on
November 20, 2023, SPNEC entered into a DOASS with the Individual Stockholder to acquire the
latter’s rights, titles, and interests in and to SPCC for P249.9 million.

On November 9, 2023, SPNEC entered into a Deed of Donation and Acceptance with Countryside for
the latter to cede, transfer and convey SP Holdings shares by way of donation, including any and all
liabilities and obligations attached to such shares.

Leandro L. Leviste is the major shareholder of SP Project Holdings and Countryside.
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Prior to the transactions, SPNEC has no existing interests in and to the Solar Philippines Assets. The
aforementioned transactions resulted in SPNEC owning 100% interest in the Solar Philippines Assets,
excepl for SP* Calatagan, Laguna Rooftop and SP Central Luzon in which SPNEC acquired 62%,
60%, and 1% interests, respectively, and excluding preferred shares in SP Tarlac,

SPNEC acquired the Solar Philippines Assets through the transfer of shares with SP Project Holdings
and Countryside. As the transactions were outside the scope of PFRS 3, the acquisitions and donation
of shares were accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method, In applying the pooling-of-
interests method, the assets and liabilities of acquired entities are taken into the merged business at
their carrying value at their respective acquisition and donation dates. Likewise, no goodwill was
recognized in the business combination of entitics under common control (see Note 2).

The Parent Company has obtained the Certificates Authorizing Registration (“CARs™) covering the

shares of the assets transferred, pending the CAR related to the acquisition of the Individual
Stockholder’s shares in SP Calatagan.

Ownership % prior to acquisition of SPNEC's

interest
SP Project  Individual Country after
Name of entitics (o be transferred lloldiogs  Stockholder side  SPNLC _ acquisition
Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation
{SP Calatagan) 55.35 6.65 - - 62
Solar Philippines Tatlac Corporation (SP Tarlac) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Rooftop Corporation (SP Rooflop) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Batangas Corporation
(SP Batangas) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Batangas Baseload Corporation
(SP Batangas Baseload) 100 - - - 1o
Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corparation
(5P Central Visayas) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Eastern Corporation (SP Eastern) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Retail Electricity, Inc, (SPREI) 10 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Southern Mindanao Corporation
(S Southern Mindanao) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Southern Tagalog Corporation
(SP Southern Tagalog) 100 - = 4 100
Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation
(SP South Luzon) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Tarlae Bascload Corporation
(SP Tarlac Bascload) 100 = = = 100
Solar Philippines Visayas Corparation (SP Visayas) 100 - - - 100
Solar Philippines Western Corporation (SP Western) 100 - - - 104
SP Holdings, Inc. (SP Holdings) - - 100 - 100
Laguna Rooflop Solar Corporation
{Laguna Rooftop) 60 - - - 60
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Details of the balances of the Solar Philippines Assets which were consolidated o the Group at the
respective acquisition and donation dates are as follows:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P187,150,952
Trade rececivables 413,076,781
Inventories 24 055,051
Due from related parties 265,952,000
Other current assets H48,137,129
Property, plant and equipment
At cost B,022,735,408
At revalued amount 3,775,546,200
Deposits for land acquisition 434,194,156
Deferred income tax assets - net 1,107,678
Other noncurrent assels 559,216,378
14.331,171,733
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 542 958.643
Other current liabilities 122,494,306
Long-term debt 3.262,805,527
Lease liabilitics 098,120,014
Dividends payable 61,570,424
Due to related parties 666,408,376
Deferred income tax liabilities - net 748,221,668
Other noncurrent liabilities 105,898,267
P5.608477,225
Total Identifiable Net Assets P8,722,694,508
Less: Non-controlling interests 2,794,016,096
Other comprehensive income closed to Revaluation surplus 2,226,398,078
Olher comprehensive income closed lo Delicil 736,450
3,701,543,882
Consideration paid 3.175,788,740
Equity reserve ®525,755.142

From acquisition dates to December 31, 2023, the contribution of the acquired Solar Philippines
Assets (o revenue and net loss are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers P637.329.6660
Costs of sales and services {327,103,279)
Gross profit 310,226,387
General and administrative expenses (70,217,345)
Finance costs (157,434,925)
Interest incomsa 22.876,610
Other income - net 22202 474
Net income P127,743,201
Net income (loss) attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company (R113,106,799)
MNon-controlling inferests 240,850,000
#127,743,201




i
If the transactions had taken place at the beginning of 2023, the contribution of the Solar Philippines
Assets (o revenue and net loss would have been P1,154.7 million and B22.9 million, respectively.

Consideration transferred was paid in cash on the respective acquisition dates of the subsidiaries. Net
cash outflow on acquisition is as follows:

Cash consideration P3,175,788,740
Legs: cash acquired with the subsidiaries’ (187,150,952)
Net cash outflow #2,088,637,78%

'Includid in cash flowa from investing activities.

. Business Combination

Acquisition of controlling interest in Terra Solar from Prime Infra

As provided under the MOA between SP Project Holdings, Prime Infra and Prime Metro, SPNEC
acquired Prime Infra’s 50.01% interest in Terra Solar on December 11, 2023 for 26,000.0 million.
Thereafter, Terra Solar became a wholly owned subsidiary of SPNEC,

Prior to the acquisition, SPNEC has 49.99% interest in Terra Solar and Prime Infra has 50.01%
interest in Terra Solar. The aforementioned acquisition resulted to SPNEC owning 100% equity
interest in Terra Solar, The transaction was accounted for using the acquisition method under
PFRS 3, Business Combination.

As of December 31, 2023, the Group is still in the process of completing the determination of fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired, including the identifiable assets. As allowed by PFRS,
the Group has provisionally assessed the fair values of the assets scquired and liabilities assumed.
The provisional fair values will be adjusted within one year from the acquisition date once relevant
information has been obtained.

The Group remeasured its previously held interest in Terra Solar based on the provisional fair value
which resulted in a remeasurement gain of 5,964.0 million presented as part of “Other income - net”
in the 2023 consolidated statement of income.

Details of the provisional fair values of the identifiable net assets of Terra Solar which were
consolidated to the Group at December 11, 2023 are as follows:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents P1.276.287
Other current assets 4,192 447
Project development costs 75,062,130
Intangible assets 13,261,891 642
Other noncurrent assets 3,334,133
13,345,756.63Y
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 5487317
Deferred tax hability 1,326,189, 164
Due to related parties 33,988,926
1,365,665,407
Total Identifiable Net Assets 11,980,091,232
Consideration 11,990,045.616
Goodwill P9,954 384
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The cost of the business combination is made up as follows:

Cash paid to Prime Infra 86,000,000,000
Fair value of equity interest in Terra Solar prior to business

combination 5,900,045 616
Total consideration P11.990,045.616

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Terra Solar because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies and future market growth. These benefits are
not recognized separately from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

Net cash outflow on acquisition is as follows:

Cash consideration B6,000,050,374
Less: cash acquired with the subsidiaries' (1,276,287
Net cash outflow P5,998,774,087

Incdided dn caeh Mo from investing cetivitie.

No profit and loss for the year was attributable to the additional business generated by Terra Solar. If
the business combination had taken place at the beginning of 2023, Terra Solar would have
contributed a net loss that will reduce the Group's net income by #3.3 million. As of April 12, 2024,
Terra Solar has not vet started its commercial operations.

Initial accounting for the acquisition of Terra Solar has only been provisionally determined as the
acquisition occurred close to the end of the reporting period. At the date of finalization of the
consolidated financial statements, the necessary market valuations and other calculations has not been
finalized and they have therefore only been provisionally determined based on the management's best
estimate of the likely values,

23.

Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Managemeni

Financial Rigk M. ment Objecti Polici

The Group’s principal financial instrumenits comprise of cash and cash eguivalents {excluding cash
on hand), trade receivables, subscriptions receivable, short-term investments and bonds (under other
current assets), long-term receivables (under other noncurrent assets) and due to and from related
parties, trade and other payables (excluding statutory liabilities), long-term debt and lease liabilities.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations.

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework, The Group’s risk management policies are established o identify and
manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks, to set appropriate transaction limits and controls, and
to monitor and assess risks and compliance to internal control policies. Risk management policies
and structure are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's
activities.

The Group has exposure to liquidity and credit risks from the uses of its financial instruments, The
BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing this risk as summarized below:
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Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand)

The Group applies the low credit risk simplification for cash and cash equivalents. The probability of
default and loss given defaults are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk
mvestments. [t 18 the Group's pohicy to measure ECLs op such mstruments on a 12-month basis.
However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance
will be based on the lifetime ECL. The Group uses the ratings from the external credit rating
agencies to determine whether the debt instrument has significantly increased in credit risk and to
estimate ECLs.

Trade receivables

One of the Group’s sale of electricity is with National Transmission Corporation (“TransCo"), a
government-owned and controlled corporation, which accounts for 22% of the total trade receivables.
Any failure on the part of TransCo to pay their obligations to the Group would significantly affect the
Group’s business operations. As a practice, the Group monitors closely its collections from TransCo
and may charge interest on delayed payments following the provision of the REPA. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis (o ensure that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Due from related parties and Bonds

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual charactenistics of each
counterparty. The credit quality is further classified and assessed by reference to historical
miormation about each of the counterparty's lustorical default rates. Based on assessment of
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default, the Group has assessed
that the outstanding balances are exposed to low credit risk. ECL on these balances have therefore
been assessed as insignificant.

With respect to the credit risk arising from other financial assets, the Group's exposure to eredit risk
arises from default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments. The Group's cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), trade
receivables, subscriptions receivable, due from related parties, short-tenm investments and bonds
(under other current assets) and long-term receivables (under other noncurrent assets) amounted o
P11,385.5 million and #1,525.2 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively,

redi i Fi ial As
Financial assets are classified as high grade if the counterparties are not expected to default in settling
their obligations., Thus, the credit risk exposure is minimal. These counterparties normally include
customers, banks and related parties who pay on or before due date. Financial assets arc classified as
a standard grade if the counterparties settle their obligation with the Group with tolerable delays. Low
grade accounts are accounts, which have probability of impairment based on historical trend. These
accounts show propensity of default in payment despite regular follow-up actions and extended
payment terms. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, financial assets categorized as neither past due
nor impaired are viewed by management as high grade, considering the collectability of the
receivables and the credit history of the counterparties. Meanwhile, past due but not impaired
financial assets are classified as standard grade.

With respect to the credit nisk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise of
cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), trade receivables, subscriptions receivahle,
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short-term investments and bonds (under other current assets), long-term receivables (under other
noncurrent assets) and due from related parties, the Group's exposure (o credit risk arises from default
of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis per class of financial assets that were past due
is as follows:

2023
Past due but not impaired
Nelther past Lisy
due than 3 to More than
nor impaired 30 days 60 days 60 days  Impaired Total
{fn Thousand Pesos)
Cash and cash
equivalents® #10,040,120 - - B PLO040,120
Trade recelvables 286,288 - - - 69,596 JEE HR4
Subscriptions receivable 1,319 - - - - 1,319
Short term investments 575,810 - - - - 575,810
Bonds 36,037 - - - - 36,037
Due from related parties 126,920 - - - - 126,920
Long-term receivables 318,978 - - - — 318,978
P11,385472 P (= B~ P69,596 P11,455,068
*Exchudes cash on hund
2022
Past due but nol impaired
Meither past due Less than dto  More than
nor impaired 30 dovs 60 days 60 days  Tmpaired Total
fin Thousand Pesos)
Cash and cash
equivalents™ #7132 I B - [ #37,132
Subscripiions receivable 651,116 - - = - 651,116
Bonds 15,552 - - - - 15,552
Due from related parties 821,388 — - - - B21,388
1,525,188 B B o P PI,525188
*Eveludey cush on hand
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group's objectives 1o managing liquidity risk is (o ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking adverse effect to the Group's credit
standing.

The Group Manages liquidity risk by maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility. As part of its liquidity risk management, the Group regularly evaluates its projected and
actual cash flows,
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The tables below summarizes the maturity profile as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 of the Group's
financial assets used for liquidity purposes based on contractual undiscounted cash flows, and
financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2023
1te More than
On Demand <1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
{fn Thousand Pesos)
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents” #10,040,120 = 2 P1O040,120
Trade receivables 191,893 94,395 - - 286,288
Subseriptions receivable 1,319 - - - 1,319
Short-term investments 575,810 - = - 575,810
Due from related parties 126,920 - - - 126,920
HBonds 36,037 - - - 36,037
Long-term receivables - - 318,978 - 318,978
#10,972.099 PU4.395 BRIIR9TR P P11,385472
Financial linbilities at amortized cost:
Trade and other payables** B~ P23 e B~ P323732
Due to related parties 608,443 - - - G5, 443
Lease liubilities*** - 23,527 128,834 677,113 829474
Long-term debt*** - 374,150  1,554450  1,205950 3,134,550
Pe08A43  B721.409 P1,683.284 PI1,883.063 P4,896,199
*Ercludes cavk an fand
**Excludes stanmory Nabiflties
**®lnchides fiture inferes! payimenie
2023
1to More than
On Demand < | Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
{In Thousand Pesox)
Finuncial ussets at amortized cost;
Cash and cash cquivalenis® P37.132 p B B- P37,132
Subscriptions reccivable 651,116 - - - 651,116
Due from related partics 821,388 - - - B21,38%
Bonds 15,552 - - — 15,552
P1,525,188 P P— P~  P1,525.188
Financial liabilitics at amortized cost:
Trade and other payables** P17.875 B P I B17.875
Due to a related party 22,770 - - - 22,770
Lease liabilitics*** 4,539 4,539 101,981 567,270 678,329
B45, 184 #4539 R101,981 #B567.270 P718,974
*Exeludes cosh on hand
*=Eycludes stansory Habilittes
=& e ludes fisture inferest paymenty
irV and Cat f Fi tnunents

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), Trade receivables, Subscriptions receivable,
Bonds and short-term investments (under other current assets), Long-term receivables (under other
noncurrent assets), Trade and other pavables (excluding statutory liabilities) and Due to and from

related parties
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The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.

Long-term Receivables

In 2023, the fair value of long-term receivables was computed by discounting the expected cash flows
using the applicable rate of 5.58%. As of December 31, 2023, the fair value and carrying value of the
long-term receivables amounted to #353.3 million and B300.0 million, respectively.

Lang-term Debt

The lair value of long-lerm debt was calculated based on the discounled value of future cash flows
using the applicable risk-free rates for similar types of loans adjusted for credit risk (Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy). The discount rates used in 2023 ranges from 6.50% to 8.87%. Asof
December 31, 2023, the fair value and carrying value of the long-term debt amounted to

£3,141.7 million and £3,096.5 million, respectively.

Lease Liahilities

The fair values for the Group's lease liabilities are estimated using the discounted cash flow
methodology adjusted for credit risk (Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy). The discount rates used are
6.84% to 9.35% and 8.5Y% as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The tair value of the
lease liabilities amounted 1o #368.7 million and #233.1 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022
respectively, while the carrying value of the lease liabilities amounted to 2390, 1 million and

P303.1 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the fair value of lease liabilities are measured using Level 3
valuation technique, For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers into
and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Capital Management

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in business
and economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares.
No significant changes have been made in the objectives, policies and processes of the Group for the
for the year ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for
the year ended June 30, 2022,

The Group considers the following as its core capital:

2023 2022
Capital stock #3,437,305,000 #1,000,000,000
Additional paid-in capital 5,713,764,409 4,938,722 430
Deposit for future stock subscription 15,894,042,026 -
Equity reserve 525,755,142 -
Revaluation surplus 8.268,091.263 -
Retained eamings (Deficit) 5,546,151,067 (126,125941)

P39,385.108,907 P5,812.596.489

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries, except for SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac, are not subjeet to
any extemally imposed capital requirement. SP Calatagan and SP Tarlac were able 1o meel their
capital management objectives as of December 31, 2023,
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24. Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The basic/diluted carnings (loss) per share amounts were computed as follows:

December 31,  December 31,
2023 2022 June 30, 2022
(One Year) (Six Months) (One Year)

(1) Net income (loss) attributable

to cquity holders of the
Parent Company B5,706,730,751 (P40, 400 833)  (PA0,579,448)

(b) Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding  24,217,612,500  9,374,783.335  6.,999,350,005

Basic/diluted carnings (loss) per
share (a/h) P0.2356 (P0.0043) (P0.0087)
The Group does not have any dilutive potential commen shares as at December 31, 2023 and
2022,
25, Significant Laws

Renewable Energy Act of 2008
On January 30, 2009, Republic Act No. 9513, An Act Promoting the Development, Utilization and

Commercialization of Renewable Encrgy Resources and for Other Purposes, otherwise known as the
“Renewable Energy Act of 20087 (the "Act”), became eftfective,

The Act aims to;

a)

b)

c)

d)

accelerate the exploration and development of renewable energy resources such as, but not
limited to, biomass, solar, wind, hydro, geothermal and ocean energy sources, including hybrid
systems, to achieve energy self-reliance, through the adoption of sustainable energy
development strategies to reduce the country’s dependence on fossil fuels and thereby mimimize
the country’s exposure to price fluctuations in the intemational markets, the cffects of which
spiral down to almost all sectors of the economy;

increase the utilization of renewable energy by institutionalizing the development of national
and local capabilities in the use of renewable energy systems, and promoting its efficient and
cost-effective commercial application by providing fiscal and non-fiscal incentives;

encourage the development and utilization of renewable energy resources as tools to effectively
prevent or reduce harmful emissions and thereby balance the goals of economic growth and
development with the protection of health and environment; and

establish the necessary infrastructure and mechanism to carry out mandates specified in the Act
and other laws.

As provided in the Act, RE developers of RE facilities, including hybrid systems, in proportion (o and
to the extent of the RE component, for both power and non-power applications, as duly certified by
the DOE, in consultation with the BOI, shall be entitled to the following incentives, among others:
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Income Tax Holiday (“TTH™) — For the first seven (7) years of its commercial operations, the duly
registered RE developer shall be exempt from income taxes levied by the National Government:

Duty-free Importation of RE Machinery, Equipment and Materials — Within the first ten (10)
years upon issuance of a cerfification of an RE developer, the importation of machinery and
equipment, and materials and parts thereof, including control and communication equipment,
shall not be subject to tariff duties;

Special Realty Tax Rates on Equipment and Machinery — Any law to the contrary
notwithstanding, realty and other taxes on civil works, equipment, machinery, and other
improvements of a registered RE developer actually and exclusively used for RE facilities shall
not exceed one and a half percent (1.5%) of their original cost less accumulated normal
depreciation or net book value;

NOLCO - the NOLCO of the RE developer during the first three (3) years from the stant of
commercial operation which had not been previously offset as deduction from gross income shall
be carried over as deduction from gross income for the next seven (7) consecutive taxable years
immediately following the year of such loss;

Corporale Tax Rate — Afler seven (7) years of ITH, all RE developers shall pay a corporate tax of
ten percent (10%) on its net taxable income as defined in the National Internal Revenue Code of
1997, as amenied by Republic Act No. 9337;

Accelerated Depreciation — If, and only if, an RE project fails to receive an ITH before full
operation, it may apply for accelerated depreciation m its tax books and be taxed based on such:

Zero Percent VAT Rate — The sale of fuel or power generated from renewable sources of energy,
the purchase of local goods, properties and services needed for the development, construction and
installation of the plant facilities, as well as the whole process of exploration and development of
RE sources up to its conversion into power shall be subject to zero percent (%) VAT;

Cash Incentive of RE Developers for Missionary Electrification — An RE developer, established
after the effectivity of the Act, shall be entitled to a cash generation-based incentive per kilowatt-
hour rate generated, equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the universal charge for power needed to
service missionary areas where it operates the same;

ix. Tax Exemption of Carbon Credits — All proceeds from the sale ot carbon emission credits shall

be exempt from any and all taxes; and

Tax Credit on Domestic Capital Equipment and Services — A tax credit equivalent to ane hundred
percent (100%) of the value of the VAT and custom duties that would have been paid on the RE
machinery, equipment, materials and parts had these items been imported shall be given to an RE
operating contract holder who purchases machinery, equipment, materials, and parts from a
domestic manufacturer for purposes set forth in the Act. RE developers and local manufacturers,
fabricators and suppliers of locally produced RE equipment shall register with the DOE, through
the Renewable Encrgy Management Bureau (“REMB™). Upon registration, a certification shall
be issued to each RE developer and local manufacturer, fabricator and supplier of locally-
produced renewable energy equipment to serve as the basis of their entitlement to the incentives
provided for in the Act. All cenifications required to qualify RE developers to avail of the
incentives provided for under the Act shall be issued by the DOE through the REMB.
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As provided in the Act, all manufacturers, fabricators and suppliers of locally-produced RE
equipment and components duly recognized and accredited by the DOE, in consultation with DOST,
DOF and DTI, shall, upon registration with the BOI, be entitled to the privileges set forth under this
section:

1. Tax and Duty-free Tax and Duty-free Importation of Components, Parts and Materials. — All
shipments necessary for the manufacture and/or fabrication of RE equipment and components
shall be exempted from importation tariff and duties and value added tax: Provided, however,
That the said components, parts and materials are: (i) not manufactured domestically in
reasonable quantity and quality at competitive prices; (ii) directly and actually needed and
shall be used exclusively in the manufacture/fabrication of RE equipment; and (iii) covered
by shipping documents in the name of the duly registered manufacturer/fabricator to whom
the shipment will be directly delivered by customs authoritics: Provided, further, That prior
approval of the DOE was obtained before the importation of such components, parts and
materials;

il.  Tax Credit on Domestic Capital Components, Parts and Materials. — A tax credit equivalent
to one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of the value-added tax and customs duties that
would have been paid on the components, parts and materials had these items been imported
shall be given to an RE equipment manufacturer, fabricator, and supplier duly recognized and
accredited by the DOE who purchases RE components, parts and materials from a domestie
manufacturer: Provided, That such components, and parts are directly needed and shall be
used exclusively by the RE manufacturer, fabricator and supplier for the manufacture,
fabrication and sale of the RE equipment: Provided, further, That prior approval by the DOE
was obtained by the local manufacturer;

iii.  Income Tax Holiday and Exemption. — For seven (7) years starting from the date of
recognition/accreditation, an RE manufacturer, fabricator and supplier of RE equipment shall
be fully exempt from income taxes levied by the National Government on net income derived
only from the sale of RE equipment, machinery, parts and services; and

V. Zero-rated value added tax transactions — All manufacturers, fabricators and suppliers of
locally produced renewable energy equipment shall be subject to zero-rated value added tax
on its transactions with local suppliers of goods, properties and services.

Department Circular No, 2022-11-0034
In November 2022, the DOE issued Department Circular No, 2022-11-0034 which amends the

Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Act. The amendment removes the nationality requirement
imposed on the business engaged in the exploration, development, and utilization of solar, wind,
hydropower and ocean energy, thereby allowing the entry of foreign capital into the country's
renewable energy industry.

BIR Kulimg OT-323-2021
On December 27, 2021, IEMOP released its guidelines and procedures for the implementation of the

BIR Ruling OT-323-202| published last August 24, 2021, Changes to Transco's FIT billing system/
FIT revenue payment process are effective on January 2022 billing month and March 2022 payment
date. A significant change brought about by the BIR ruling includes invoicing requirements whereby
the ruling has recognized that the distribution utilities (“Dus”) are the customers/ buyers of the
electricity generated and sold by the RE developers, who are the generator/ seller, to the market.
Therefore, the RE developers should issue the official receipts (“ORs") under the names of the Dus
based on the settlement statements and payments/rémittances made by the IEMOP payment facility.
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(*COCs™ for Generation Facilities

On October 12, 2023, ERC published Resolution No. 2023-17 that outlines the revised rules on
application for COC and the standards, requirements and procedures for its issuance. Article IX
Transitory Provisions of the resolution stated that for existing generation facilities with pending
application for renewal of COC filed before the ERC, the validity period of such COC is extended
until 2024, and the date of which shall be the day and month of its original expiry. Generation
facilities with issued Provisional Authority to Operate (“PAO™), the validity period of such PAQ is
extended until 2024, and the date of which shall be the day and month of its original expiry. After
which the generation company shall apply for issuance of COC or PAO not later than 60 calendar
days prior to the expiration of the extended validity period.

- Operating Segment Information

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment revenue and segment
expenses are measured in accordance with PFRSs. The classification of segment revenue is
consistent with the consolidated statements of income. Segment expenses pertain to the costs and
expenses presented in the consolidated statements of income excluding interest expense and financing
charges, depreciation and amortization expense and income taxes which are managed on a per
company basis.

SPNEC has only one geographical segment as all of its operating assets are currently located in the

Philippines. SPNEC Group operates and derives principally all of its revenue from domestic
operations. Thus, geographical business information is not required.
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December 31, 2022
Eliminating
SPNEC Terra Nueva entries® Total
Current assets £3,114,526,970 P16,207,181 (P1,603,059.243) PI1,528,374,908
Noncurrent assets 3,070,703,855 1,604,744 446 (100,000) 4.675,348,302

Total

P6,185,230,825

P1,621,651,627

(P1,603,159,243)

B6,203,723,210

Current habilitics P69,626,975 P1,625,959,245 (P1,603,059,243) 92,526,977
Noncuwirent liabilities 298,599,744 - - 298,599 744
Total P368.226,719 B1,625959245 (B1,603,059.243) 391,126,721
*FPerfaing jo imtercompany iransactions that were eliminuted upon consolidation.
June 30, 2022

SPNEC
Current assels B1.449.247 690
Noncurrent assets 1,954,480,680
Total P3.403,728 370
Current liabilities P40,331,284
Noncurrent liabilities 289,340,172
Total $329,671,456

27, Changes in Liabilitics Arising From Financing Activities

December 31, 2023

Effeet of Business

Comblnation under
December Commun Control December 3,

3, 2031 (Motes 21 und 22) Cash Nows Others 2023

Due to related parties 2,770,229 PAIZA19450  (P114,724,705) B6T,977,852 Polg, 442,826
Long-term debt - 3,262.805,527 (1n6,261,855) - 3,096.543,6T2
Accrued interest - 79,627,929 (136,800476) 156,488,315 99,315,778
Lease linhilities 303,138.420 98,121,014 (18,526,129 T.339.956 J0,072161

Totul linbilities from

PAL5 P31 133

finuncing activities

December 31, 2022

December 31,

July 1, 2022 Cash flows Others 2022

Due to a related party B22,792 348 B (#22,119) B22.770.229

Lease liabilities 293 878,848 - 9,259,572 303,138.420
Total liabilities from

financing activitics P316,671,196 P PO, 237 453 P325,908,649




June 30, 2022

July 1, 2021 Cash flows Others June 30, 2022
Due to a related party B22,792 348 B P P22,792,348
Lease liabilities 289,525,826 (14,004,465) 18,357,487 203 878,848
Total liabilities from

financing activities P312318,174  (B14,004,465) F18,357 487 P316,671.196

. Service Contracts with the DOE

The Group has the following Solar Energy Service Contracts (SESC), Solar Energy Operating
Contracts (SEOC) and Wind Energy Service Contract (WESC) with the DOE.

SPNEC

Sta. Rosa Nueva Ecija 2 Solar Power Project {“NE 2 Project”)

SPNEC is developing a two-phase 500 MW, (“MW ") solar power plant located in Nueva Ecija and
is divided into two (2) Phases. Solar Energy Service Contract (“SESC™) No. 2017-06-404 was
assigned by an affiliate, Solar Philippines Commercial Rooftop Projects, Inc. (“SPCRPI”) on
December 29, 2017, The assignment was approved by the DOE with the issuance of a new
Certificate of Registration (“COR™) and a Certificate of Confirmation of Commerciality.

The first phase of the NE 2 Project is a 225 MW . solar power plant (“Phase 17) in Barangay Las
Piftas, Pcfiaranda, Nucva Ecija with sub-phascs of Phasc 1 A at 50 MW, and Phasc I1B at

175 MWy.. The Parent Company targets that Phase 1A shall be commissioned by mid-2024 while
Phase 1B is planned to be commissioned by end of 2025. The second phase of the NE 2 Project is a
275 MW . solar power plant (*Phase 2").

The Parent Company began construction of Phase 1A on December 27, 2021 and is 56.26% complete
as at December 31, 20235,

Green Energy Auction Program ("GEAP")

On June 24, 2022, the Parent Company was awarded as one of the winning bidders by the DOE on its
First Green Energy Auction Round, The Parent Company will supply the electricity from the
2B0MW,. NE 2 Project. The winning bids under the GEAP, which are expected to commence
operations between 2023 and 2025, will be awarded 20-year power supply agreements. [n 2022, the
Parent Company submitted a surety bond as one of the requirements for the bidding process. Also,
the Parent Company submitted a performance bond amounting to B2,765.8 million valid until

August |, 2024.

Total premiums paid were B7.5 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The unamortized portion of

the premium included as prepaid premiom amounied to #5.0 million and #3.0 million as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively (see Note 7).
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sl Calatagan

SP Calatagan owns and operales a 63.4 MW, solar photoveltaic (“PV™) facility situated in Calatagan,
Batangas. It has an Energy Regulatory Commission (“ERC™) awarded Feed-in-Tariff (“FIT™)
Certificate of Compliance ("COC™), which entitles SP Calatagan to a base FIT rate of P8.69 per kWh,
subject to an annual escalation, to be approved by the ERC.

WESC

On December 23, 2019, SP Calatagan entered into WESC No. 2019-10-126 with the DOE granting
SP Calatagan the exclusive right to explore, develop and atilize the wind energy resource with the
contract area covering a lotal of 486 hectares. The WESC allows for five years non-extendable term
for pre-development within which the developer should be able to declare commerciality.

A Certificate of Confirmation of Commerciality shall be issued by the DOE to affirm the declaration.
The contract shall remain in force for the balance of a period of 25 years from the effective date.

One year before the expiration of the initial 25-year period, SP Calatagan may submit to the DOE an
extension of the WESC for another 25 years under the same terms and conditions so long as

SP Calatagan is not in default of any material obligations under the WESC.

GEAP

On June 24, 2022, SP Calatagan was awarded as one of the winning bidders by the DOE on its First
Green Encrgy Auction Round. SP Calatagan will supply the electricity from the 30 MW Calatagan
Wind Project. The winning bids under the GEAP, which are expected to commence operations
between 2023 and 2025, will be awarded 20-year power supply agreements, SP Calatagan submitted
a performance bond amounting to 571.1 million valid until August 1, 2024,

SP Tarlac

SESC

On August 15, 2017, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Tarlac, entered into a SESC with the DOE granting
SPCRPI the exclusive right to explore, develop and utilize the energy resource with the contract area
covering a total of 646.0 hectares. The SESC allows for two years non-extendable term for
pre-development within which the developer should be able to declare commerciality.

A Certificate of Confirmation of Commerciality shall be issued by the DOE to affirm the
declaration, The contract shall remain in force for the balance of a period of 25 years from the
effective date. One year before the expiration of the initial 25-year period, SP Tarlac may submit to
the DOE an extension of the SESC for another 25 years under the same terms and conditions so long
as SP Tarlac is not in detault of any material obligations under the SESC.

On September 27, 2017, SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all its rights and
obligations under the SESC No. 2017-07-442, including all of its annexes to SP Tarlac which has
been approved. On October 6, 2017, the DOE acknowledged and approved the Deed of Assignment
between SPCRPI and SP Tarlac. On that same day, the DOE issued a COR under the name of

SP Tarlac as an RE Developer of Solar Energy Resources in Concepcion, Tarlac which covers
SESC No. 2017-07-442,

On October 20, 2017, SP Tarlac issued its Declaration of Commerciality stating the commercial
viability of the Tarlac 1A Project and was confirmed and approved by the DOE by issuing a
Confirmation of Commerciality on December 6, 2017,

SP Rooftop
On December 14, 2022, the DOE awarded SP Rooftop with SEOC No. 2022-11-644, for the

exclusive right to explore, develop and operate its 2.04 MW DMPI Bugo Solar Power Project. The
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SEOC has a contract period of 25 years and will expire on 2047, SP Rooftop shall develop,
construct, install, commission, and operate the solar PV system within the period of the first five-year
work program.

SP Batangas
On December 20, 2019, the DOE awarded SP Batangas with SESC No, 2019-02-500 for the

exclusive right to explore and develop the Padre Garcia Solar Power Project. SP Batangas shall
undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting and other studies of Solar Energy resources in
Lipa City and Padre Garcia, Batangas. The SESC allows for two (2) years non-extendable term for
pre-development within which SP Batangas should be able to declare commerciality.

SP Batangas Baseload

On August 22, 2017, SPCRPI, an affiliate of the SP Batangas Baseload, was awarded the

SESC No. 2017-05-384 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Balayan Solar Power
Project, respectively, wherein SPCRPI shall undertake exploration, assessment, harnessing, piloting
and other studies of the solar energy resources in Balayan and Calaca, Batangas. On May 26, 2021,
SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all his rights and obligations to SP Batangas
Baseload. As of April 12, 2024, SP Batangas Baseload is stull awaiting for the acknowledgment and
approval from the DOE of the Deed of Assignment between SPCRPI and

SP Batangas Baseload.

SP Central Visayas

On February 9, 2017, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Central Visayas, was awarded

SESC No. 2017-02-364 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Medellin Solar Power
Project, wherein SPCRPI shall undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting and other
studies of the solar energy resources in Medellin, Cebu. On March 23, 2022, SPCRPI executed a
Deed of Assignment transferring all his rights and obligations to SP Central Visayas.

On March 23, 2022, SP Central Visayas has submitted to the DOE the neeessary documents for the
transfer of the SESC under the name of SP Central Visayas. As of April 12, 2024, SP Central
Visayas is still awaiting for the acknowledgment and approval from the DOE of the Deed of
Assignment between SPCRPI and SP Central Visayas.

SP Eastern
On April 11, 2019, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Eastern, was awarded SESC No. 2018-03-479 for the

exclusive right to explore and develop the Tayabas Solar Power Project, wherein SPCRPI shall
undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting and other studies of the solar energy resources
in Tayabas, Quezon, On March 23, 2022, SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all its
rights and obligations to the Tayabas Solar Power Project. On March 23, 2022, SP Eastern has
submitied to the DOE the necessary documents for the transfer of the SESC under the name of

SP Eastern. As of April 12, 2024, SP Eastern is still awaiting for the acknowledgment and approval
from the DOE on the Deed of Assignment between SPCRP] and SP Eastern.

SP Southern Mindanao

On December 23, 2019, SPCRPI, an affilinte of SP Southern Mindanao, was awarded SESC No.
2019-05-514 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the General Santos Solar Power Project,
wherein SPCRPI shall undertake exploration, assessment, harnessing, piloting and other studies of the
solar energy resources in General Santos City, South Cotabato. On March 23, 2022, SPCRPI
executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all its rights and obligations to General Santos Solar
Power Project. On March 23, 2022, SP Southemn Mindanao applied with the DOE for the transfer of
the SESC under the name of SP Southern Mindanao. As of April 12, 2024, §P Southern Mindanao is
still awaiting for the acknowledgment and approval from the DOE on the Deed of Assignment
between SPCRPI and SP Southern Mindanao,
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SP Southern Tagalog

On April 11, 2019, SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Southern Tagalog, was awarded the

SESC No. 2018-03-477 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Cabatang Tisong Solar
Power Project, wherein SPCRPI shall undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting and
other studies of the solar energy resources in Cabatang Tiaong, Quezon. On March 23, 2022,
SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment transferring all his rights and obligations to SP Southern
Tagalog. On the same date, SP Southern Tagalog has submitted to the DOE the necessary documents
for the transfer of the SESC under the name of SP Southern Tagulog. As of April 12, 2024,

SP Southern Tagalog is still awaiting for the acknowledgment and approval from the DOE of the
Deed of Assignment between SPCRPT and SP Southern Tagalog.

SP South Luzon
The following SESCs were awarded to SP South Luzon,

SESC No. Award Date Project Name
2019-10-531 December 20, 2019 Binangonan and Cardona, Rizal and Laguna de Bay
Solar Power Project

2019-05-513 December 23, 2019 Pili and Naga City, Camarines Sur Solar Power Project

SP Tarlac Bascload

On July 18, 2017, SPCRPI, an affiliatc of SP Tarlac Bascload, was awarded SESC No. 2017-05-385
for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Calamba-Tanauan Solar Power Project, wherein the
SPCRP1 shall undertake exploration, assessment, hamessing, piloting and other studies of the solar
energy resources in Tarlac City and La Paz, Tarlac. On May 26, 2021, SPCRPI executed Deed of
Assignment transferring all his rights and obligations to SP Tarlac Baseload. As of April 12, 2024,
Tarlac Baseload is still awaiting for the acknowledgment and approval from the DOE of the Deed of
Assignment between SPCRPI and SP Tarlac Baseload.

SE Visayas

On December 27, 2019, DOE awarded SP Visayas with SESC No. 2019-05-512 for the exclusive
right to explore and develop the Kananga-Ormoc Solar Power Project, wherein SP Visayas shall
undertake exploration, assessment, harmessing, piloting and other studies of the solar energy resources
in Kananga and Ormoc City, Leyte. Further, on that same day, the DOE issued and approved a COR
under the name of SP Visayas which recognizes SP Visayas as a RE developer.

GEAP

[n 2022, the SP Visayas was awarded as one of the winning bidders by the DOE for the first round of
the GEAP, which promotes the acceleration of renewable energy systems and the promotion and
commercialization of 1ts application, encourage free and active private sector participation and
investment in all energy activities, and provide adequate capacity to meet demand. In 2022,

SP Visayas submitted a surcty bond, as part of the bidding requirements. Also, SP Visayas submitted
a performance bond amounting to P2,963.4 million valid until December 2, 2024,
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Terra Solar
The following SESCs were awarded to SPCRPI, an affiliate of Terra Solar,

SESC No. Award Date Project Name
2017-02-365 February 9, 2017 100 MW Iba-Palauig 1
2017-06-421 August 22, 20217 100 MWMaragondon-Naic 1
2017-06-407 August 22, 20217 140 MW San lldelfonso, Bulacan
2017-06-405 August 22, 20217 140 MW San Rafael | Bulacan
2017-07-434 April 11, 2019 100 MW Santa Rosa Nueva Ecija

On June 30, 2021, SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignmen transferring all its rights and obligations
to Terra Solar. On March 27, 2023, Terra Solar applied with the DOE for the approval of the
assignment of the SESCs. As of April 12, 2024, Terra Solar awaits the approval of DOE,

0
The following SEOCs were awarded to Laguna Rooftop. Each SEOC has a contract period of 25
years and will expire on 2047.

SEOC No. Award Date Project Name Capacity (MW,)
2022-03-618 April 5, 2022 ATC Solar Power Project 1.752
2022-05-623 June 9, 2022 MMPC Phase 1 Solar Power Project 4.097
2022-05-624 June 10,2022 MMPC Phase 2 Solar Power Project 0.130

The BOI approved Laguna Roofiop’s registration as RE Developer {or the following projecs:

Award Date Project Name Capacity (MW,)
December 19, 2022 ATC Solar Power Project 1.752
January 16, 2023  MMPC Phase 2 Solar Power Project 0.130
August 24, 2023 MMPC Phase | Solar Power Project 4.096

The BOI certifications served as the basis of entitlement to incentives under RA No. 9513, otherwise
knawn as the RE Act of 2008, which grants Laguna Rooftop income tax holiday lor a period of seven
(7) years from the start of its commercial operation, duty free importation of machineries for ten (10)
years, and zero-rated VAT among others.

On November 24, 2023, Laguna Rooftop received the Distributed Energy Resources Centificate of
Compliance (COC) from the ERC. On January 8, 2024, the ATC solar power project started its
commercial operations.

As of December 31, 2023, Laguna Rooftop is still in the process of securing the related COC from the
ERC for the MMPC solar power projects.
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29, Contracts and Commitmenis

SPNEC
Change in Allocation of IPO Proceeds
On December 20, 2021, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following:

a) Pending the use of [PO proceeds for future land acquisitions and capital expenditures, eftective
by January 19, 2022, to allow the Parent Company to allocate such TPO proceeds towards bid
bonds, bid security, and other expenses for potential off-take agreements, to enable the Parent
Company to be responsive to contracting opportunities as soon as they arise, in support of the
Parent Company’s strategy to pursue off4ake on an opportunistic basis.

b) The authority to transact with financial institutions to secure bid bonds and bid security for the
projects of the Parent Company.

c) Subject to applicable law, rules and regulations to be clarified, the incorporation and funding of
whaolly-owned subsidiaries to hold the IPO’s use of proceeds and to receive instructions from the
Parent Company for the use of such proceeds.

d) The authority to file and submit all compliance, disclosures and any other reportorial
requirements of the Parent Company to the relevant regulatory agencies and the PSE.

¢) Other ancillary powers and authorities necessary and proper for the execution of the above
approvals,

On February 14, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of land in support
of the Parent Company’s plan to develop ten (10) gigawalt of solar projects, to be funded from
proceeds of a rights oftering and the proceeds from its [PO, as available, and the delegation of
authority to the Parent Company's President or his authorized representative to determine the
location, particular parcels and terms for such land, and authority to execute contracts for this

purpose.

On April 6, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the authorization to allocate TPO
proceeds to advance funding for pursuing off-take agreements and developing projects for Terra
Renewables Holdings, Inc. (“TRHI”) and its associated developments to SP Holdings, given that SP
Holdings is a sharcholder in TRHI and that SP Holdings is to be a subsidiary by the Parent Company,
provided this would only be from the excess of the amount needed by Phase | A of the NE 2 Project
and would form part of the expansion of the Parent Company's projects.

Memorandum of Agreements { "MOA ") berween SP Project Holdings, Prime Infra and Prime Metro
On February 9, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the MOAs between SP Project Holdings and
Prime Infra for their joint ventures in Terra Solar, Solar Tanauan Corporation (“Solar Tanauan™), and
SP Tarlac. The MOAs cover the tollowing:

a) Amendments lo the Shareholders’ Agreement of Terra Solar between SP Project Holdings and
Prime Infra to streamline the decision-making process and reach agreements efficiently and
commercially via deadlock resolution mechanisms. On this basis, the parties agreed to continue
their joint venture in Terra Solar, Terra Solar has signed a 850 MW, Mid-Merit PSA with
Meralco with a scheduled delivery date by the first quarter of 2026, and plans to break ground
within 2023,
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b) Sale of common shares in Solar Tanauan by SP Project Holdings to Prime Infra for 21.0 billion
upon execution of the agreements, which would result in Prime Infra owning 100% of Solar
Tanauan (with the proceeds of this sale going to SPNEC after the share swap, subject to
regulatory approval). Solar Tanauan has a PSA with Meralco for 50 MW,,, has secured over 140
hectares of land, and is currently under construction,

¢) Redemption or purchase of preferred shares in SP Tarlac of Prime Metro by SP Tarlac or SP
Project Holdings for 1.5 billion plus accrued dividends on or before March 31 2024, which, with
additional equity, would result in SP Project Holdings (or SPNEC after the share swap) owning
100% of SP Tarlac. SP Tarlac has a PSA with Meralco for 85 MW, has secured over 140
hectares of land, and currently has 100 MW operating and 50 MW under construction.

Terms of the MOAs applied to SPNEC upon the completion of its share swap with 8P Project
Holdings.

Deed of Assignment between SP Project Holdings and SPNEC

On May 16, 2023, a Deed of Assignment was entered between the Parent Company, as the assignee,
and SP Project Holdings, as the assignor, whereby the latter assigned all its rights and obligations
under the February 9, 2023 MOA with SP Project Holdings, Prime Intra, Prime Metro and SP Tarlac,
including but not limited to SP Project Holdings' right lo purchase Prime Metro’s preferred shares in
SP Tarlac on or before March 31 2024,

Renewable Power Supply Agreement with Angeles Electric Corporation ("AEC")

On February 7, 2022, the Parent Company secured a 10-year Offtake Agreement with AEC,
distribution utility in Pampanga Province, under which the Parent Company will supply AEC
97.8 MWh daily, representing a portion of the NE 2 Project’s capacity to supply energy once
completed. The Offlake Agreement awarded is for a term of ten (10) years commencing on
March 26, 2023, or upon ERC approval, whichever comes later,

On January 23, 2023, the Parent Company and AEC jointly filed the PSA with the ERC. As of
April 12, 2024, the Parent Company and AEC are still awaiting the approval from the ERC.

The Parent Company provided a performance bond in relation to the NE 2 project amounting to
#15.0 million valid until August 10, 2024.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, performance bond amounted to #15.0 million was presented as
part of “Bonds™ under “Other current assets” in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 7).

SP Calatagan

Connection Agreement

[n 2015, the Connection Agreement was entered between SPCRPI, an affiliate of SP Calatagan, and
National Grid Corperation of the Philippines (“NGCP") wherein the Calatagan Solar Power Plant's
generation facility shall connect to NGCP’s transmission system. SPCRPI assigned to SP Calatagan
all of its rights and obligations under this agreement through a deed of assignmenl executed on
February 3, 2017, A copy of the Connection Agreement was sent to the NGCP on the same day.

Transmission Service Agreement

Transmission Service Agreement dated May 24, 2016 was entered between SPCRPI and NGCP for
the 69 kilovolt (“kV”) line of NGCP along the Calatagan, Batangas arca. SPCRPI assigned to SP
Calatagan all of its rights and obligations under this agreement through a deed of assignment
executed on February 3, 2017,
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Metering Service Agreement

The Metering Service Agreement dated May 24, 2016 was entered between SPCRPI and NGCP
wherein the latter is authorized 1o act as the metering service provider of the Calatagan Solar Power
Plant which requires revenue metering facilities and services for measuring the energy consumed
and/or generated by its grid-connected facilities. The term of the agreement started on

February 26, 2016 and would expire on February 25, 2026, unless carlier terminated in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the agreement. SPCRPI assigned to SP Calatagan all of its rights
and obligations under this agreement through a deed of assignment executed on February 3, 2017,

The Connection Agreement, Transmission Agreement, and Metering Service Agreement of SP
Calatagan with NGCP are governed by the rules, terms and conditions for the Provision of Open
Access Transmission Service (“OATS") rules, which govern the provision of transmission services to
qualified grid users.

FIT System

FIT is an incentive scheme under the RE Act of 2009 to attract investments and hasten the
deployment of renewable energy sources. FIT provides priority treatment to renewable energy
developers in terms of connection to the grid, purchase and transmission of and payment for by grid
operators, and a fixed premium rate for a specified period of time. On March 14, 2016, the DOE
issued COE-FIT No. 8-2016-03-05, which entitles SP Calatagan (o a base FIT rate of #8.69 per kWh
for 20 years.

All eligible RE plants shall be entitled to the appropriate FITs as established and such FITs shall be
paid by all on-grid electricity consumers in accordance with FIT system. An RE plant shall be
deemed eligible upon issuance of COC authorizing to operate as FIT-eligible RE plant, subject to the
term and conditions aftached to it, among them, in compliance with the Philippine Grid Code (PGC)
and other pertinent laws, rules and regulations of the ERC. SP Calatagan obtained its COC with

No. 16-06-M-00072L from the ERC on June 29, 2016 valid from June 28, 2016 to June 27, 2021.

On June 24, 2021, SP Calatagan received a letter from the ERC granting a Provisional Authority to
Operate (“PAQ”) for a period of one year from June 28, 2021 to June 27, 2022. On August 28, 2022,
the ERC grant an extension of PAO for a period of one year from June 28, 2022 to June 27, 2023,
pending SP Calatagan’s compliance and submission of the necessary requirements. On August 15,
2023, ERC issued a certification for the second extension of PAO valid for a period of six months
from the date of ils issuance or until February 14, 2024. As of April 12, 2024, ERC is still in the
process of evaluating the requirements for the renewal submitted by SP Calatagan.

On May 26, 2020, the ERC approved Resolution No. 06, Series of 2020 which adopted FIT rate
adjustments, for the years 2016 to 2020 using 2014 as the base year for the consumer price index and
foreign exchange. The said resolution was published in a newspaper of general circulation on
November 17, 2020 and became effective 15 days after.

While waiting for the approval of the FIT rates for the years 2021 to 2023, management has assessed
that the lower between the ERC approved 2020 FIT rates and the TransCo forecasted FIT rates for the
years 2021 to 2023, represent the best estimate of the transaction price SP Calatagan will be entitled
lo in exchange of the delivered energy. Tt is expected that (he adjusted FIT rates applicable for the
years 2021 to 2023 will also be collected in arrears in accordance with the approval of the ERC.

As of December 31, 2023, the long-term receivable from TransCo amounted to #319.0 million
(see Note 11). The current portion of the long-term receivables amounted to #57.3 million is
presented as part of “Trade receivables™ in the consolidated statements of financial position as of
Lyecember 31, 2023 (see Nate 5). For the year ended December 31, 2023, interest accretion on
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receivables from TransCo amounted to #13.5 million which was presented under “Interest income™ in
the consolidate statement of income.

REFA

On March 17, 2016, SP Calatagan and TransCo, designated as the FIT-All Fund Administrator,
entered into a REPA. The REPA-0037 dated March 17, 2016 for the 63.359 MW, Calatagan Solar
Power Plant was deemed cffective as of July 4, 2016 through a letter signed by TransCo Officer-in-
Charge. The REPA govems the rights and obligation of the partics in respeet to the full payment of
all actual rencwable energy generation of SP Calatagan from March 11, 2016 to March 10, 2036, the
period of SP Calatagan’s FIT Eligibility Period.

WESM

Under Section 30 of Electric Power Industry Reform Act (“EPIRA™), the ERC may authorize entities
to become eligible as members, either directly or indirectly, of the WESM. All generating
companies, distribution utilities, suppliers, bulk consumers/end-users and other similar entities
authorized by the ERC, whether direct or indirect members of the WESM shall be bound by the
WESM spot market rules with respect to transactions in the market.

On February 24, 2016, SP Calatagan registered with Philippines Electricity Market System
(“PEMC") as Direct WESM Member and Trading Participant-Generator Category.

Energy Regulations No. 1-94

On March 10, 2016, SP Calatagan entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the DOE for the
establishment of Trust Accounts for Accrued Financial Benefits from the commercial operations of
the 63.359 MW, Solar Power Plant. This is in compliance with the provision in the EPIRA under
R.A. 9136 and more importantly to help recognize the contributions of the hosl communities and the
people affected by the project thereby lessening conflict and promoting cooperation among the
stakeholders. Under this agreement, SP Calatagan should set aside one centavo per kilowatt hour
(#0.01/kWh) of the total electricity sales as financial benefit to its host community.

EE Iﬂljll.'-

PS5As with Meralco75 MW to 85MW PSA

On August 25, 2017, SP Tarlac entered into a PSA with Meralco for the sale of 75 MW up to

BS MW of electricity for a period of 20 years from the commencement date at a price of P2.9999 per
kWh subject to 2% annual escalation. SP Tarlac received the final approval of the 85MW PSA from
the ERC on March 4, 2019. In accordance with 75MW to 85 MW PSA, the commencement is nine
months from the receipt of the provisional approval from ERC which is on August 20, 2018, SP
Tarlac and Meralco agreed that the Commercial Operation Date (*COD™) of the Tarlac 1A Project
was on Seplember 26, 2020. SP Tarlac obtained its COC No. 19-09-M-00182L dated September 12,
2019 from ERC which was valid for “five (5) years from September 12, 2019 to September 11, 2024,

A AR W
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In accordance with the provision of the 75 MW to 85 MW PSA, SP Tarlac shall supply or deemed
supply replacement energy to Meralco from the commencement date of the PSA up to the COD of the
Tarlac 1A Project.

As of December 31, 2023, the current portion of the replacement energy cost payable presented as
others in the “Trade and other payables™ amounted to 12,1 million, and the noncurrent replacement
energy cost payable presented as “Other noncurrent liabilities™ amounted to P95.4 million,

50 MW PSA at P2.3456/kWh

On August 17, 2018, Meralco awarded another PSA to SP Tarlac for the sale of 50 MW of electricity
for a period of 20 years from the commencement date a price of B2.3456 per kWh subject to annual
escalation rate of 16% starting on the 11" contract year. In March 2019, SP Tarlac and Meralco then
jointly requested for the approval with the ERC. As of April 12, 2024, SP Tarlac is still waiting for
the approval of ERC,

Connection Agreement
In 2017, SP Tarlac entered into Connection Agreement with NGCP where the former’s Tarlac | A
solar power plant's generation facility shall connect to NGCP’s transmission system,

Transmission Service Agreement
SP Tarlac has Transnussion Service Agreement dated November 26, 2018 with NGCP for the 69 kV
line of NGCP along the Concepcion, Tarlac area, which is valid until November 25, 2028.

Metering Service Agreement

SP Turlac has a Metering Service Agreement with NGCP wherein the latter is authorized to act as the
metering service provider of the Tarlac 1A Project which requires revenue metering facilities and
services for measuring the energy consumed and/or generated by 1ts grid-connected facilities. The
agreement is valid until March 25, 2029, unless carlier terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the agreement,

Energy Regulations No. 1-94

On June 29, 2020 and January 20, 2021, SP Tarlac entered into Memorandum of Agreements with
host communities in Brgy. Sta. Rosa and Municipality of Concepeion, Tarlac for the establishment of
Trust Accounts for Accrued Financial Benetits from the commercial operations of the Tarlac 1A
Project. This is in compliance with the provision in the EPIRA under R.A. 9136. Under this
agreement, SP Tarlace should set aside one centavo per kilo watt hour (R0.01/kWh) of the total
electricity sales as financial benefit to the host communities. For the year ended December 31, 2023,
benefits to host communitics amounted to 1.9 million which is presented under “General and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 18).

SP Rooftop

EPC Agreements

Robinsons Land Corporation ("RLC")

On October 23, 2018, SP Rooflop entered into five (5) EPC agreements with RLC for the design,
engineering, procurement of components for, and construction of PV systems for the project sites. As
of December 31, 2023, SP Rooftop has completed the construction of four (4) projects and is in the
process of completing the remaining activitics on the remaining project. As of December 31, 2023,
the remaining receivable amounted to #28.4 million (see Note 5).
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Mitsubishi Motors Philippines Coiporation (“MMFPC")

In June 2023, SP Roofiop entered inlo an electrical system modification agreement with MMPC far

the supply, delivery, installation, termination and testing of the electrical works of a solar PV system
for a contract price of 5.8 million. The project was completed and completed on Octaber 20, 2023,

Power Purchase Agreements (“FPA")

SP Rooflop entered into three (3) PPAs for the finance, design, construction, operation and
maintenance of PV system electric gencration (“PSEG™) facilitics on the rooftops of three (3)
establishments. Each PPA shall be for a term of 20-25 years, throughout which SP Rooftop shall
make available all the energy output produced by PSEG facilities installed on the rooftops of each
mall at the applicable payment rates stipulated in each PPA. As of December 31, 2023, SP Rooftop
has three (3) PPAs. Under each PPA, SP Rooftop shall own the PSEG facilities and all the associated
environmental attributes, and shall be entitled to own, claim and retain any and all the tax benefits
and incentives associated with the ownership of the PSEG facilities, unless the respective mall
owners purchase the PSEG facilities as allowed in the purchase option provisions of each PPA.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, SP Rooftop recognized revenue from sale of electricity
amounting to 2.6 million. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding receivable from sale of
electricity amounted to B0.9 million (see Note 5).

Energy Equipment Leasing and Service Agreements (EELSA)

SP Rooftop has entered into six (6) different EELSA where SP Rooftop will develop, construct,
operate and lease solar generation facilities totaling to around 4. 5MW,. Each EELSA shall have a
term of

25 years beginning on the day the solar generation facility unit was commissioned.

Under each EELSA, SP Roofiop shall own the solar generation facility units as well as the
improvements and shall be entitled to retain ownership upon expiration of the term subject to certain
conditions. As of December 31, 2023, the construction of five (5) projects are in progress, while one
has not yet started construction.

SP Retail Electricity
WESM

Under Section 30 of EPIRA, the ERC may authorize entities to become eligible as members, cither
directly or indirectly, of the WESM. All generating companies, distribution utilities, suppliers, bulk
consumers/end-users and other similar entities authorized by the ERC, whether direct or indirect
members of the WESM shall be bound by the WESM spot market rules with respect to transactions in
the market.

On February 18, 2020, SP Retail Electricity was registered with TEMOP as Direct Member — RES
Category.

Laguna Roofiop
PPA with DGA

On September 15, 2020, SP Rooftop and DGA entered into PPAs with ATC and MMPC to finance,
eonstruct, install, test, own, operate, and maintain PV systems. ATC and MMPC agreed to purchase
all the energy output produced by the PV systems at the applicable payment rates stipulated in the
PPAs. The PPAs have a term of 20 years and 25 years, respectively,

Un October 27, 2021, Laguna Roottop entered into a Deed of Assignment with SP Rooflop and DGA

to assign all their rights, benefits, titles and obligations of the Assignors in and to the PPA with ATC
to Laguna Rooftop, respectively. Subsequently, on Apnl 28, 2022, Laguna Rooftop entered into a



- 80 -

similar agreement with the Assignors to assign all their Aights, benefits, titles and obligations in and to
the PPA with MMPC to Laguna Rooftop. ATC and MMPC, unconditionally and irrevocably,
consented, acknowledged and agreed to the assignment.

On October 19, 2022, Laguna Rooftop and MMPC eniered into a compensation agreement wheréin
Laguna Rooftop agreed to pay #14,000 for every day of delay on the agreed project timeline. The
agreed construction completion date and commercial operation date were set on October 15, 2022 and
December 9, 2022, respectively. However, due to delays on the construction, Laguna Rooftop
incurred compensation charges amounting to 5.1 million in 2023,

The commercial operations date of the ATC Solar Power Project is on January 8, 2024, As of
April 12, 2024, the remaining projects of Laguna Rooftop are estimated to be completed in 2024,

Master EPC Contract

On January 7, 2022, Laguna Rooftop entered into a Master EPC Contract with SP Roofiop to
establish a framework within which Laguna Rooftop may issue confirmation memorandums for the
performance of works in relation to the design, engineering, procurement, construction works, testing
and commissioning of PV systems,

Confirmation Memorandums _
In 2022, Laguna Rooftop entered into three (3) confirmation memorandums with SP Rooftop for the
engineering, procurement and construction works of PV systems for the following project sites:

Project Name Location Contract Price
MMPC Phase | Solar Power Project Sta. Rosa, Laguna $149,524,531
ATC Solar Power Project Calamba, Laguna 68,247,200
MMPC Phase 2 Solar Power Project Sta. Rosa, Laguna 8,856,663
P226,628,394

Laguna Rooftop is entitled to claim damages from SP Rooftop on the delay from the date of
provisional acceptance of the PV systems, such claims will be utilized to pay for compensation
charges of MMPC.

As agreed with SP Rooftop, Laguna Rooftop is entitled to claim damages equal to the total
compensation charges finally agreed with MMPC,

Terra Solar

PSA with Meralco

On October 24, 2022, Terra Solar entered into a PSA with Meralco to provide and sell electricity for
Contract Capacity of 850 MW, Terra Solar intends to construct at least 2,500 MW solar power plant
and 400 MW battery energy storage system to make available the Contract Capacity. This shall be
delivered to Meralco into two phases: Phase 1 or 600 MW is scheduled to be delivered by February
26 2026, and the Phase 2 or 250 MW is scheduled (o be delivered by February 26 2027, The PSA
shall expire on the 20" year following the commercial operations date of Phase 2, renewable for
another one year.

On February 15, 2023, Terra Solar and Meralco filed a joint application of the PSA dated

November 2, 2022 for the approval with the ERC. Terra Solar and Meralco obtained the ERC's
approval of the PSA which was docketed under ERC Case No. 2023-014 RC dated August 18, 2023,
Terra Solar and Meralco shall only be allowed to implement the aforementioned PSA upon
submission of required documents to the ERC,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
5P New Energy Corporation

20™ Floor AIA Tower

8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of SP New Energy Corporation (a subsidiary of MGen Renewable Energy, Inc.) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the year
ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2024, Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The schedules
listed in the Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the
responsibility of the Group’s management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying
with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not part of the basic consolidated financial
statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the
financial information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.
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Ihuanna Feliza C. Go

CPA. (.eruf'caie No. 0114122

Tax Identifcation No. 219-674-288

BOA/PRC Reg, No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-00]998-103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid until November 6, 2025
PTR No. 10079942, January 5, 2024, Makati City
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SP New Energy Carporation

20™ Floor AIA Tower

8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of SP New Energy Corpaoration (a subsidiary of MGen Renewable Energy, Inc.) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™) as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the year
ended December 31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated April 12, 2024. Our audits were made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The
Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas,
calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the
Group’s management. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance
defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) and may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is presented for the purpose of complying
with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission,
and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with
PFRSs. The components of these financial soundness indicators have been traced to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the year ended December
31, 2023, for the six-month period ended December 31, 2022 and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and no
material exceptions were noted.
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Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0114122

Tax Identification No. 219-674-288

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid until November 6, 2025
PTR No. 10079942, January 5, 2024, Makati City

Apnl 12, 2024
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of MGen Renewable Energy, Inc,)

AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2023

Schedule

Contents

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Map Showing the Relationships Between and Among the Companies in the
Group, its Ultimate Parent Company and Co-subsidiaries
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

Financial Soundness Indicators

Supplementary Schedules
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Financial Assets

Amounts Receivable tfrom Directors, Otficers, Employees, Related
Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties and Amounts Payable to Related Parties
which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
Long-Term Debt

Indebtedness to Related Parties

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers (not applicable)

Capital Stock



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(A Subsidiary of MGen Renewable Energy, Inc.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2023
Deficit, January 1, 2023 (R121,718,325)
Add: Deferred tax assets (10,201.126)
Deficit, January 1, 2023, as adjusted (131,919,451)
Net loss during the year closed to deficit (P104,993,864)
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income (net of tax)

Benefit from income tax - deferred 910,119
Net loss actual/realized during the year (104,083,745)

TOTAL DEFICIT, December 31, 2023 _(P236,003,196)
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SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

SP New Energy Corporation
{Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
and Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022

Ratio Formula December 2023 | December 2022

Current ratio Dividing total current ussets 7.65 16.52
over total current linbilities

Acid test ratio Dividing total current assets 7.63 16.52
less inventory over total
current liabilities

Solvency ratio Dividing net income excluding 0.70 N/A
depreciation and non-cash
provisions over total

deht obligations

Debt-to-equity ratio Dividing total liabilities over 0.21 0.07
stockholders’ equity

Asset-to-equity ratio Dividing total assets over total 1.21 1.07
stockholders” equity

Interest rate coverage ratio | Dividing earnings before 36.70 N/A
interest and taxes of one
period over interest expense of
the sume period

Net debt-to-equity Ratio Dividing total interest-bearing 0.16 N/A
debis less cash and cash
equivalents over total
stockholders’ equity

Return on equity (%) Dividing the net income 14.02% N/A
(annual basis) by total
stockholders' equity (average)

Relurn on assets (%) Dividing the pet income 11.62% N/A
(annual basis) by the total
assels (average)




¥2015 |ende) ‘9

(ajqoa1)ddp Jou) sianss| 1ayIQ JO SALILNIBS Jo S33URIENG 4
Sajlied paje|=y 07 ssaupaiqapu) “3

{ajqooydde j0u) 1gaq wia -8uoy g

SJUaWaLeIS |edURULY o LojIepljosuc) 33 Sulinp
PajRUILIT 312 YOIYM SallIRd Pajejay Wol) 3)qeAlaIay SIUnowY )

{sallied pajejay uey) 1ayip) s1apioyya0is jediduLg pue
‘saakojdwy ‘s1a01)40 ‘s1019214Q WOl 3)qeAII3Y SIUNOWY *g

S1955Y JRIDURUL] 'Y

sa|npayas Lnyuawsajddng

L W3] "v-£} waog
SIINAIHIOS A¥VLNIWITddNS OL X3IaANI

uopjesodio) efjog eaany saurddyjiyg Jejos



Lrr'E65°6T

98 'E6Z'0SE' L)

101

51355y aAlIBALISQ

TdAd J© 33558 [ejauRuLy
Flusw]saaul 1920
sjuawnsaau] A3inb3

120A4 e 5jas5e |RlDURULY

652'018'545 WNO3DY SALIsTY SDIAISS 130

LE9'LL6'8LE sajqeaanal w3y Suo

950°61E°L S3]qeAla0ay SIUN0IDY 3pRIl-UON

pEP'ECE saafojdwsa o] sadueApy

J S3]GRAISI3. SIJ0U PUB SUBDT

OLE'DZ6"9TL saiued pajejss wouy ang

790'887°982 sa|qeAla0ay apel)

Lvb'E66'6T L29'vTr'or0'0L sjuajeainba ysed pue ysey
159]qeAISa) pUR SuB0T
_— ENH“HEE_ ﬂuﬁﬁaﬂﬂ”ﬂﬁ 35N Y4203 4o uoRRIDOSSE J AU Buinss| Jo auweN SL3SSY TVIINYNIS

£Z07 'LE Joqwadaq jo sy
S13SSV TVIDNWNLS - V 3INAIHIS

NOLLYYOdY0D VD3 VAINN SINIddIMIHd ¥V10S




88 THY PHT
L1°976'986°CE
8E'789'765 'L
60°'GZL'959°9E5

00°6TZ'0LL TL

‘A8 d5 VOa

"INI "SONIGTIOH SIT8YMINIY vyuaL

NOLLYHO4HOD SONIQTIOH SLNIWLSIANI IAISAHLNNGD
"INI ‘SONIGTIOH LJ3rodd ¥3mM0d S3NIddITIHd ¥v10S

pousad jo pua e ajueeg

porad jo Suluuiaq e aouejeg

sallied pajelay 10 awen

£707 ‘1€ J9qwianaq 4o sy
S3LL¥Vd QLYY OL SSINAILEIANI - 3 FINAIHOS
NOLLY¥OJ¥02 Yr123 YAINN S3NIddITIHd ¥V10S




*spaadoud Jjauaq uaWailla) ay) Woly PpaJaNpap aq [jgys USWaIal JO 3w Y3 18 asuejeq Supuesine Aue ‘seskoidws palIacuod ayl yIm
JuawaaiBe uajjum sad sy “JeQUapYUOD sjieISp JSYI0 pue saakoldwa jo uopeuBiSap J awWwel 4] Uo UOHIEWIojUL aU) sdaay Auedwor ay) 10N

PEP'EGS

- PEF'ESS = (108'25£'2) LED'LZR'L 861 6L IVLOL
510)33liq
PEP'ESE PEP'E5S (108'25¢'2) LE0'LT8'T 861 6L saadojdwy
pouad Jo WaLN 10N waun) HO-UITLM paae) SUCLPPY pouad 10393g
pu3 18 3durjeg SIUNDADY Syurnowy jo BujuuiBag 1e souejeg 10 uopRuEisag
pue awey

£70Z "L£ Jaquiadaq Jo sy

(S3LL¥Yd G3LYT3Y NVHL 43HLO) SHIATOHNIOLS TVdIDNId ONY STFA0TIWI ‘S¥IDILH0 ‘SHOLITNIA WOHL T18VAIZIIY SLNNOWY - § ITNAIHIS
NOLLYYOdHOD ¥rid3 YAINN SINIddITIHd ¥Y105




FEFELERCDT = rir CLEREET - » zTer'eie'ss]  [I00'000°D06'SR1) | ¥EPOLE LW 95 5¥ T 800'105") TYLOL
ooa'y - oo’} . . B . ooa's “dhanry vl wRiid)) g e
L i ooa'iL - . * + 00" kA “diay veiens sudd))igd mes
0o0°nL 2 100°0T % . . . noo'ne “tie] wseeg wddyiug oS
boo'aat'c ] o't - . - . 000"t iy peojasg eBuraeg wuida))iad e
DO0'085° T4 . 00055 T . . - {oo'pon"oon" 1) g A "y oo ey sadd)) g o
CHI'05E' 0T . 000'050'0TT = . . ¥ 000'050'07T 3| "sBEpE 5
Fk i 101 . i LR 012 = - Lrmoveines!  |i60'000'00s" el FRTELTEL 9570l '650" 10 Tl "eadnh BuR)
IS Yy
PoBFIG Jumowy | TUaLIN) ok A vonswmi | uogenyspey | e | pesmpegswnowy | wepwey |, . tEOE Kuswg pawian 10
B ] ¥ el

TEOL 4 s3qusag jo v
SHURNIIETS [VERUL BB GOpERe Sl Baep paavup (3 W I SR PR WDy SR Sasy Ynoury - 3 THWIBHIS
NOLLYHOGEOD WIIE YAINN TIMBAMBAG ¥VI05




ol U BT TR B TR {a TH

[FEFE ] kL it )

TUTrirly LRt 1 o] 55 MUy Tl




aajuesens
10 aunjeN

Suipueisino
pue paajuesens
Junowe 830

pasjuesens saLIN3as jo
SSB)2 Y283 Jo 3nsst Jo IPLL

P3)L 51 JUSWAJLIS ST YDIYM
Joy Auedwos ay Ag pazjuesend sapjlnoas jo Ajua Buinsst jo awep

EZ0T "LE 48quadaQ Jo sy
SY3NSSI ¥IHLO 4O SILLAND3S 40 SIALNVEYNO - 4 TINAIHIS
NOLLYYOJH0D ¥rid3 VAINN SANIddIMIHd ¥Y10S




9 B66'SES 09T 000°080'ELE'¥E 000°000° 00005 SIBYS UoWWo])
$Jaoulo SI4BL SII0 PUE UDISIBALOD
annaxa Aay pue siojdang Aq wﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ.ﬂ_ - ‘syueiiem ‘suapjdo Joj um._w___.__nuw_hu_ﬂ:u F E“ .______m N 2Nss] Jo 3L
A p1ay sauByYS J0 JagUIny L PaAISEaS SAIBYS JO JSGUNN WUAN _ ¥
EZOZ “JE Jequadaq jo sy

MZ0LS5 TVLIdYD - 9 3INaIHIS

NOLLYYOJYO0D V123 YAINN 53INIddINIHd ¥V105




ANNEX B !, SOLAR

/ X4 PHILIPPINES

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of SP New Energy Corporation (Consolidated) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 and for the Period from July 1, 2022 lo
December 31, 2022 and for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 In accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporling Standards, and for such internal control as management
delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
malerial misstalement whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless managament either
Intends to liquidate the Company lo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

The Board of Direclors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent audilors, appointed by the stockholders, has
sudited the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or members, has expressad its opinion on the
fairness of niation upon completion of such audit.

LEANDRO L. LEVISTE Passport No.: P0049385C
Chairman of the Board/CEO Expiry date: May 12, 2032
HAZEL fmsz. LAFUENTE Passport No.: P03334628
Assistant Treasurer Expiry date: January 20, 2029
Signed this ___ day of 2023,

20* Floor Philamlife Tower, B767 Paseo De Roxas Avenue, Makall City 1227 Philippines
& 463286172585 | =2 www.solarphilippines.ph



SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, this 17 APR 23 at

MAKATI CITY . Affiants exhibiting their Competent Evidence of Identity:

Document Yt

Page 90
Book .
Series of 2023

Leandro L. Levisie Passport PO049385C Expiring 12 May 2032
Hazel Iris P. Laluenie Passport P03334628 Expiring on 20 January 2029
NOTARY PUBLIC

Zapote cor, Kalayaan Ave., Makali Ciry
Roll No. 66626 / 06-23-16
PTR No. 9565565; 01/03/23; Makati
IBP Lifetime No. 015123; 06-13-16: Manila ]
MCLE Compliance Na, VII-00 13284; 03-24.22
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
5P New Energy Corporation

20" Floor AIA Tower

8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SP New Energy Corporation (formerly Solar
Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation, a subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)
(the Parent Company) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our epinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statcments present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022, and June 30, 2022, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key sudit marters arc those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

A M
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of matenial misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Impairment Assessment af Deposits for Land Acquisition

As of December 31, 2022, the Group has deposits for land acquisition with a carrying value of

#2.026.9 million for the acquisition of parcels of land. Under PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, an entity
shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, Management's assessment of impairment considers information from various sources,
including those about the land acquisition process and the related requirements, the current status of land
acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may affect the timing of completion of the
transaction. We considered this as a key audit matter because of the materiality of the amount involved,
and the significant management judgment required in assessing whether there is any indication of
impairment.

The related disclosures on the Group's deposits for land acquisition are included in Notes 3, 8 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements,

Audit Response

We obtained management’s assessment on whether there is any indication that the deposits for land
acquisition may be impaired. We read the contracts entered into by the Group and obtained an
understanding of the significant provisions relevant to the assessment, such as the subject properties,
payment terms, and rights and obligations of the contracting parties. In addition, we obtained supporting
documents on the payments made by the Group, and inquired of the land acquisition process and the
related requirements, the current status of land acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may
affect the timing of completion of the transaction, and evaluated how management considered these
information in their impairment assessment,

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

SEC Form 17-A for the year ended December 31, 2022 but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report,
and the SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement) and Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2022, which are expected to be made available to us atter that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears Lo be materially misstated,
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and ar¢ considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due (o fraud or eor, design and perforu audit procedures responsive to those risks, wnd
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Ubtamn an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

¢  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, stmcture and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner thal achieves fair presentation.

=  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We arc responsible for the dircction, supervision and performance of the audit. ' We remain solcly
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine thal a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Jhoanna Feliza C. Go.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

=l e

Jhoanna Fel
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0114122
Tax Identificution Nu. 219-674-285
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partmer Accreditation No. 114122-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 1o 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-103-2022, November 71, 2022, valid unul November 6, 2025
PTR No. 9564628, January 3, 2023, Makati City

April 17, 2023
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,

A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, June 30,
2022 2022

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash (Notes 4 and 16) $£37.232,084 BBRA, 758,302
Subscription receivable (Notes 12 and 16) 651,115,661 -
Due from related parties (Notes 11 and 16) 821,388,320 541,700,000
Other current assels (Note 5) 18,638 843 201,789 388
Total Current Assets 1,528,374,908  1.449.247 690
Noncurrent Assets
Depaosits for land acquisition (Note 8) 2.026,892.396 621,499,933
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 1 and 7) 1,389,743,501 021,385.618
Investment properties (Note 6) 312,626,010 -
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) 281,490,123 286,910,494
Deferred income tax asset - net (Note 14) 10,201,126 10,466,264
Other noncurrent assets (Note 9) 654,395,146 114,218,371
Total Noncurrent Assets 4,675,348,302 1,954 480,680
TOTAL ASSETS B6,203,723.210 #3,403,728.370
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Notes 10, 11 and 16) P65,218,072 13,000,260
Due to a related party (Notes 11 and 16) 22,770,229 22,792,345
Current portion of lease liabilities (Notes |5 and 16) 4,538.676 4,538,676
Total Current Liabilities 92,526,977 40,331,284
Noncurrent Liabilities
Lease liabilities - net of current portion (Notes 15 and 16) 298,599,744 289.340,172
Total Liabilities 391,126,721 329.671,456
Equity (Note 12)
Capital stock 1,000,000,000 812,435,001
Additional paid-in capital 4,938,722,430  2,347,338,021
Deficit (126,125,941) (85,716,108)
Total Equity 5,812,596,489  3.074,056,914
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ERU[TY P6,203,723,210  #3,403,728.370

See accompanying Notes to Cansolidared Financial Statements,



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,
A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2022 TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 2022 2021
(Six Months) {(One Year) {Ome Year)
INTEREST INCOME (Mote 4) $1.398.960 P3548,180 86,090
EXPENSES (Note 13) 42,543,655 72,498,183 22,674,993
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 40,144,695 71,950,003 22,668,903
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM)

INCOME TAX - DEFERRED (Note 14) 265,138 (11,370,555) 904,291
NET LOSS 40,409,833 60,579,444 23,573,194
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - = .
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS P40.409.833 B60,579.448 B23 573,194
Basic/Diluted Loss Per Share (Note 17) PO.0043 P0.0087 B0.0511

See aecompanving Notes to Convolidated Financiol Statements,
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,

A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD FROM JULY 1, 2022 TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021

December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 2022 2021
{Six Months) {One Year) {Ome Year)
CASII FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (B40,144,695) (B71.950,003)  (®22,668.903)
Adjusiments for:
Interest aceretion of lease liabilitics (Note 15) 4,532,695 9,142,009 7,648,652
Amortization of right-of-use assets (Note 15) 2,584,193 5,420,370 4,038,265
Interest income (Note 4) (2,398,960) (548,180) {6,090)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) (545,388) 174,709 -
Provision for impaimment of input VAT - - 109,091
Operating loss before working capital changes (35,972,155) (57,661,005) (10,878,985)
Decrease (increase) in other gurment assets 2,150,545 {20,013,297) (869,053)
Increase in accounts pavable and accrued expenses 52,217,812 6,272 205 6,265 885
Cash used in operations 18,396,202 (71,402,187) (5,478.153)
Tnterest received 2,398,960 548,180 6,090
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activilies 20,795,162 (70,854,007) (5,472,063)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Deposits for land acquisition (Note 8) (1,405392,463)  (541,700,000)  (537,000,000)
Other noncurrent asseis (Note %) (540,176,775)  (112,848,087) (802,361)
Property, plant and equipment (Note T) (460,794,829) (906 T49 770 -
Investment properties {Nole 6) (312,626,010) - -
Due from related parties (Note 11) (279,710,439) (84.499,933) -
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) - - (20,121.600)
Cash flows used in investing activities (2,998,700,516) (1,645,797,790) (557,923,961}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares of stock, net of subseription
receivable and transaction costs (Note 12) 2,127,833.748  2,599338.022 555,996,517
Additional capital contribution (Note 12) - 1 8,000,000 -
Payment of lease labilities (Note 15) - {14,004, 465) -
Met advances [rom related parties - - 74257258
Collection of subscription receivable (Note 12) - - 187,500
Net cash flows from financiug activities 2,127,831,748  1.603333,557 563,609,742
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH 545388 (274.709) -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH {849,526,218) 886,407,051 213,718
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 886,758,302 351,251 137,533
CASH AT END OF PERIOD (Notes 4 and 16) P37.232,084  BREG,T5E 302 B350 251

See gecompanying Notes to Convelidated Finaneial Statementsy,



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,
A Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

(a)

(b)

Organization

SP New Energy Corporation (formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)

(the “Parent Company™ or “SPNEC"™) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (*SEC™) on November 23, 2016, primarily to construct,
erect, assemble, commission, operate and maintain power-generating plants, installations, shops,
laboratories, pipelines, repair shops, electrical works, power houses, warehouses, terminals, and
related facilities for the conversion of renewable energy into usable form fit for electricity
generation and distribution: to promote and undertake research, development, utilization,
manufacture, sale, marketing, distribution and commercial application of new, renewable, non-
conventional and environment-friendly energy sources and systems including but not limited to
solar, wind, water, heat, steam, ocean, tidal, hiomass, biogas, chemical, mechanical, electrical,
synthetic, agricultural, and other natural, fossil or non-fossil fuel based, artificial, organic or
otherwise, and of energy systems that use new, renewable and any energy resources applying new
and efficient energy conversion and/or utilization technologies for commercial application; and to
perform other ancillary and incidental activities as may be provided by and under contract with
the Government of the Republic of the Philippines, or any subdivision, instrumentality or agency
thercof, or any government-owned and controlled corporation, or other entity engaged in the
development, supply and disuibution of renewable energy. As of April 17, 2023, the

Parent Company has not vet started commercial operations [sce details in (b) The Project below].

The Parent Company and Terra Nueva, Inc. (“TNI"), its subsidiary, ar¢ hereby collectively
referred to as the “Group”.

Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc. (“SPPPHI”), a company incorporated in the
Philippines, is the ultimate parent company of SPNEC. As of December 31, 2022, SPPPHI holds
54.24% ownership of SPNEC's outstanding common shares.

The Project

On August 22, 2017, Solar Philippines Commercial Rooftop Projects, Inc. (“SPCRPI™), an
affiliate of the Parent Company, was awarded Solar Energy Service Contract (“SESC")

No. 2017-06-404 for the exclusive right to explore and develop the Sta. Rosa Nueva Ecija 2 Solar
Power Project (“the Project™), wherein SPCRPI shall undertake exploration, assessment,
harnessing, piloting and other studies of the solar energy resources in Santa Rosa, Pefiaranda and
San Leonardo, Nueva Ecija. On December 29, 2017, SPCRPI executed a Deed of Assignment
transferring all its rights and obligations provided under the SESC No. 2017-06-404 to the Parent
Company.

A



(c)

i o

On February 23, 2018, the Department of Energy (“DOE") acknowledged and approved the Deed
of Assignment between SPCRPI and the Parent Company. Further, on that same day, the DOE
issued and approved a new Certificate of Registration (“COR™) under the name of the Parent
Company which recognizes the Parent Company as a Renewable Energy (“RE™) developer.

The Project is a 500 megawatt peak (“MWdc™) solar power plant project located in Nueva Ecija
and 15 divided into two (2) Phases. The first phase of the Project 15 a 225 MWdc solar power
plant (“Phase 17) in Barangay Las Pifas, Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija with sub-phases of Phase 1A at
50 MWde and Phase 1B at 175 MWde. The Parent Company targets that Phase 1 A shall be
commissioned by mid-2023 while Phase 1B is planned to be commissioned by end of 2025. The
second phase of the Project is a 275 MWdc solar power plant (“Phase 27).

On August 20, 2019, the Parent Company has declared commerciality which the DOE confirmed
via the release of the Certificate of Confirmation of Commerciality (“*COCOC™) last
November 15, 2021.

On December 27, 2021, the Parent Company began construction of Phase 1A (see Note 7).
Initial Public Offering (“TPO™)

The Parent Company filed an application with the SEC for the registration and an application
with the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (“PSE”) for the listing of all its issued and outstanding
stock on July 29, 2021 and August 20, 2021, respectively,

On November 29, 2021, the SEC and the PSE approved the application of the Parent Company
for the listing of its 8,124,350,005 common shares on the Main Board of the PSE.

The common shares of the Parent Company consisting of 8,124,350,005 shares, inclusive of the
primary offering of 2,700,000,000 common shares and the issued and outstanding shares of
5.424,350,005 common shares, were listed on the Main Board of the PSE on December 17, 2021
and are currently being traded under the stock symbol "SPNEC" (see Note 12).

(d) Stock Rights Offering (“SRO™)

(e)

On February 14, 2022, the Board of Directors (“BOD"™) of the Parent Company approved the
conduct of an SRO where eligible stockholders would have the opportunity to subscribe to shares,
subject to terms to be determined by management and relevant regulatory requirements and

approvals,

On August 25, 2022, the SEC and the PSE approved the application of the Parent Company for
the listing of its 1,875,649,995 common shares on the Main Board of the PSE.

On September 15, 2022, the primary offering of 1,875,649,995 common shares were listed on the
Main Board of the PSE (see Note 12).

Share Swap
On February 24, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of 100% of the

outstanding shares of SPPPHI and affiliates in various entities (“Solar Philippines Assets™)
(see Note 12).
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On July 4, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the authorization to accept the
transfier by way of donation of shares in Solar Philippines eatities owned by Leandro Antonio L.
Leviste (“LLL"), the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Parent Company, or
Countryside Invesiments Holdings Corporation (“CTHC™), including shares in SP Holdings. Inc.
(“SPHI"), which are not directly held by SPPPHI.

(f) Change i Corporate Name and Fiscal Year

On August 8, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved a resolution o amend the Articles
of Incorporation and By-Laws to (1) change the corporate name from Solar Philippines Nueva
Ecija Corporation to SP New Energy Corporation; and (2) change the Parent Company's fiscal
year from July | to June 30 of each year to Jamuary 1 to December 31 of each year. This was
subsequently approved by the Parent Company’s stockholders on August 30, 2022,

On October 24, 2022, the SEC approved the application for amendment of the Parent Company's
Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws,

On October 28, 2022, the complete requirements for the change in accounting period for tax
purposes were submitted to the Bureau ol Intemal Revenue (“BIR™). The BIR approved the
change in accounting period on January 11, 2023,

(g) Principal Office Address

The registered business address of the Parent Company is at 20th Floor, ATA Tower (formerly
Philambife Tower), 8767 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City, Philippines 1226, The principal place of
business based in the Articles of Incorporation is 112 Legaspi Street, Legaspi Village,

Brgy. San Lorenzo, Makati City.

{h) Authorization for the Issuance of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022 and for the period from July 1, 2022 (o December 31, 2022 and for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021 were authorized for issue by the BOD on April 17, 2023.

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated finuncial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (B), the Group's functional and
presentation currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest B, unless otherwise indicated.

The amounts presented in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity, consolidated statements of cash flows and the related notes, which

are for the six months ended December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, are not comparable.

LU T



The consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (“PFRSs") as issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Couneil and adopted
by the Philippine SEC.

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of new standards effective starting July 1, 2022, The Group has not early adopted any
standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yel effective,

The adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

L ]

Amendments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments added an exception to the recognition principle of PFRS 3,
Business Combinations to avaid the issue of potential ‘day 2'pains or losses arising for liabilities
and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Philippine-IFRIC 21, Levies, if incurred separately.

At the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to PFRS 3 to clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

Amendments o PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing
those items, tn profit or loss.

Amendments to PAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach™.
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental
costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities, General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable 10
the counterparty under the contract.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

e Amendments to PFRS 1, Firse-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards,
Subsidiary as a first-time adopter
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The amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS | o
measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported in the Group's
consolidated financial statements, based on the Group's date of transition to PFRS, if no
adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for the effects of the business
combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary, This amendment is also applied to
an associate or joint venture that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of PFRS 1.

=  Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, Fees in the "10 per cent " test for
derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

o  Amendments to PAS 41, Agriculture, Taxation in fair valie measurements

The amendment remaoves the requirement in paragraph 22 of PAS 41 that entities exclude cash
Nows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within the scope ol PAS 41,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidati

The consolidated (inancial stalements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiary as at December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022,

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its invelvement
with the investees and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee,
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

s Power over the investee (i.¢,, existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee),
Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support

this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
aver an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investec;
» Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and,
e The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three clements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obluins control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, Labilitics, income and expenses of a subsidinry sequired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Parent Company ceases (o control the subsidiary.

LI
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Profit or loss and each component of OCT are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the
Group and to the NCI, even if this results in the NCI having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating Lo transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

[T the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the reluted assets (including goodwill),
liabilitics, non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.

Subsidi
The Parent Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Terra Nueva, Inc. (“TNI"), were separately
incorporated and registered with the Philippine SEC.

TNI was incorporated on August 31, 2022 primarily to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire, own,
and hold on assets purely for investment purposes.

-

W Wl ldoaalllvd
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position based on
the current/noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

expected (o be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cyele;
expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period,;

held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent,
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve (12) months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settleraent of the liability for at least twelve (12)
months after the reporting perind.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue ol equity do not affect its classification.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities,
respectively.

Cash

Cash in the consolidated statements of financial position comprise cash on hand and cash in banks,

A S



Financial Ing en
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise (o a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or tair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the fimancial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. The Group initially
measures @ financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at FVPL,
transaction costs,

In order for & financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCL, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)” on the principal
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument
level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assels refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash tlows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or bath.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date,
Le,, the date that the Group commits (o purchase or sell the asseL

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories;

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets designated at FVOCT with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

s Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial assel is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and mlerest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (“EIR™)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income when the asset 1s derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortized cost include cash in banks, subscrniption receivable, due

from related parties, surety and performance bond and cash bond deposit included under other current
assels, as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 (see Notes 4, 5, 9, 11 and 16).
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The Group has no financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL.

Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Financial liabilities are classified in this category if these are not held for trading or not designated as
at FVPL upon the inception of the liability, These include liabilities arising from operations or
borrowings.

Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received, less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, such loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as
through the amortization process.

The Group’s loans and borrowings include accounts payable and accrued expenses (excluding
payable to employees and government agencies), due to a related party and lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 (see Notes 10, 11, 15 and 16).

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the Group has no financial liabilities at FVPL.

ign of Fi al

Financial asset
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assels)
i5 derecogmzed when:

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through™ arangement and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the
control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
“pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement in the assel.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the

Group could be required to repay.

Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
siatements of comprehensive income.
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The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs™) for all linancial assets except
debt instruments held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credil risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated

statements of financial position, ifand only if, there is a carrently enforceable legal right 1o offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the linbility simultaneously. The Group assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if
the right is not contingent on a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of
business, event of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Group and all of the
counterpartics.

Fair Valie Measurement

Fair value is the estimated price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

= in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
» in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the vse of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the tair value hierarchy, described as tollows, based on the lowest
level nput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

LR T
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o Level 2 - Valuation techmigues tor which the lowest level mput that 1s sigmificant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determuines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the higrarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Advances to Contractors

Advances to contractors pertain to advance payments made for purchases of construction materials,
other services, and rental of equipment. Advances to contractors is measured on initial recognition at
cost, and is reclassified to the proper asset or expense account and deducted from the contractor’s
billings as specified on the provision of the contract.

lant an i t
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization and
impairment in value, if any. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consist of the purchase
price including import duties, borrowing costs (during construction period) and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use. Cost also
includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment, and the borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives, depreciation and amortization. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, i1s cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognized m profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition critenia for a provision are met.

Depreciation and amortization of an item of property, plant and equipment begin when it becomes
available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation and amortization cease at the carlier
of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classitied
as held for sale) in accordance with PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, and the date the asset is derecognized. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lease term or the economic life of the related assel, whichever is shorter.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately,

An item of properly, plant and equipment, and any significant part initially recognized is
derccognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognmized.
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The useful lives of propenty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted, prospectively, if appropriate.

Construction in progress represents structures under construction and is stated at cost, net of
accumulated impairment losses, if any. This includes costs of construction and other direct costs,
Costs also include interest on lease liability and amortization of right-of-use (*ROU™) assets incurred
during the construction period. Construction in progress is not depreciated unnil such time that the
assets are put into operational use.

It is the Group's policy to classify ROU assets as part of property, plant and equipment. The Group
recognizes ROU assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The initial cost of ROU
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset. restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories,

Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the recognized ROU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their
estimated useful life and the lease term. ROU assets are subject to impairment (refer to Impairment
of Nonfinancial Assets policy).

[nvestment Properties

Investment properties include parcel of lands held by the Group for capital appreciation and are
measured initially at cost less any impairment in value. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect.

[nvestment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected
from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
disposal.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced
by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another party. Transfers
are made from investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-oceupied property or inventories, the cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. [f the property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment up to
the date of change in use.

[nput Value-Added Tax (*VAT")
Input VAT represents the VAT due or paid on purchases of goods and services that the Group can

claim against any future liability to the BIR for output VAT from sale of goods and services. Input
VAT is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if amy.

VA



Deposits for Land Acquisition

Deposits for land acquisition pertain to non-refundable deposits and payments made in relation to the
acquisition of parcels of land that are intended for future expansion, and are stated at the amount paid
less any impairment in value. Upon successful transfer of title, the deposits for land acquisition will
be reclassified to land as part of either investment property or property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that these nonfinancial assets
may be impaired. 1f any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates these nonfinancial assets’ recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU") fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount, In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss in the year in which it arises, In the case of input VAT, an allowance is
provided for any portion of the input VA'T that cannot be claimed against output VAT or recovered as
tax credit against future income tax liability.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication that
previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. Any previously recognized
impatrment loss 1s reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Capital Stock

Capital stock is measured at par value and is classified as equity for all shares of stocks issued.

Additi aid-in capital (“API
When the shares of stock are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value
is credited to the APIC account.

Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as underwriting, accounting and legal fees,
printing costs and taxes are chargeable to the APIC account. If APIC is not sufficient, the excess is
charged against the “Equity reserve” account,

Subscription Receivable

Subscription receivable represents shares of stock subscribed and issued by the Parent Company but
payment from the sharcholders has not yet been received. Subscription receivable is presented as
current assets when it is expecied lo be collected within twelve months afier the financial reporting
date. Otherwise, this is presented as reduction from equity.

AR A



Retained eamnings (deficit) represent the cuomulative balance of periodic net income or loss, prior
period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments. When the
retained earnings account has a debit balance, it is called “deficit”. A deficit is not an asset but a
deduction from equity.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the
asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The Group assesses at contract inception all arrangements to determine whether it is, or contains, a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration,

Company as a Lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} ROU assets
Refer to ROU assets policy,

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments (o be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expecled (o be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.

The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in the
period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease paymients, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date it the mierest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
Afler the commencement date, the amount of lease liahilities is increased to refleet the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applics the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of vehicle (ie.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option), Lease payments on short-term leases is recognized as expense on
straight-line basis over the lease term,
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[nterest Income

Interest income is recognized as interest acerues, using the EIR method, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
nel carrying amount of the financial asset.

Expenses

Expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outtlows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases m equity, other than those
relating lo distributions to equity participants, and are recognized when these are incurred. Expenses
are generally recognized when the services are used, or the expenses arise,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expenses
relating to any provision are presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the income tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable income tax regulations are subjecl lo interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred come Tax

Deferred ncome tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary ditferences
between the income tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all laxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at ¢ach reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probahle that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recogmized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the delerred income tax assel to be recovered.

A



o l5s

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
heen enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss. Deferred income tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
other comprehensive income (“OCI") or directly in equity.

Deferred income tax assels and deferred income Lax liabilities are offset i a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

ings (L. Per YEPS™
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to common shareholders of
the Group with the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, after
giving retroactive effect to any stock dividends or stock splits, if any, declared during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner, with the net income for the year attributable to
common shareholders of the Group and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year, adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential common shares. As of

December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the Group does not have any dilutive potential common
shares. Hence, diluted EPS is the same as basic EPS.

Operating Segments
The Group has no operating segments as it has not yet commenced its commercial operations as of

December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022,

Conti :
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed
in the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events Afler the Financial Reporting Date
Events after the financial reporting date that provide additional information about the Group's

position at the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.  Events after the financial reporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to consolidated financial statements when material.

Future Changes in Accounting PPolicies

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Group
does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements. The Group intends to adopt the following pronouncements
when they become effective.

Effective beginning an or after January 1, 2023
e Amendments to PAS | and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies
e Amendments to PAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates
» Amendments to PAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
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Effective beginning on or afier January 1, 2024
e  Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
» Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Effective heginning on or after January 1, 2025
s PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Deferred effectivity
e Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Significant Acconnting Estimate and Assumption

The consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs require management to
make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and related notes. The judgments and estimates used in the consolidated financial statements are
based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates,

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The items are those matters which the Group assess to have significant risks ansing
from estimation uncertainties:

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policics, management has made the following
judgment, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements. This judgment is based upon
management’s evaluation of relevan! facts and circumstances as of the date of the consolidated
financial statements.

Determination of Control Over an Investee Company

Control is presumed to exist when an investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its
involvement with the invesiee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
mvestee. The Group has established that it has the ability to control its subsidiary by virtue of 100%
voting interest in the investee company.

Assessing Impairment of Deposits for Land Acquisition

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is indication that the deposits for
land acquisition may be impaired. Management’s assessment of impairment considers information
from various sources, including those from the land acquisition process and the related requirements,
the current status of land acquisition, the timeline of activities and factors that may affect the liming
of completion of the transaction.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, management has assessed that there were no indicators
that the deposits for land acquisition may be impaired. The carrying value of deposits for land
acquisition amounted to B2,026.9 million and P621.5 million as of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022, respectively (see Notes 8 and 11),
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Estimates

Estimating Usefid Lives of ROU Assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of ROU assets based on the period over which each asset is
expected to be available for use and on the collective assessment of industry practices, internal
evaluation and cxperience with similar arrangements. The estimated useful life is revisited at the end
of each financial reporting period and updated if expectations differ materially from previous
cstimates.

The carrying amount of ROU assets amounted to #281.5 million and #286.9 million as of
December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively (see Note 15).

Estimating Impairment of Financial Assets

The measurement of impairment losses under PFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgment, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows, including
collectability, collateral values and other credit enhancements, when determining impairment losses.
Increases or decreases to the allowance balance are recorded as general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Linder PFRS 9, Financial Instruments, additional judgments are also made in assessing & significant
increase in credit risk in the case of financial assets measured using the general approach. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

The Group's impairment calculations are outputs of statistical models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the
impairment models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

e The Group’s criteria for defining default and for assessing if there has been a significant increase
in credit risk;

s The segmentation of financial and contract assets when impairment is assessed on a collective
basis;
The choice of inputs and the various formulas used in the impairment calculation;
Determination of relationships between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs; and,

s Sclection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the impairment models

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

Measuremeni of expected credit losses
ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are
measured as follows:

e Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all
cash shortfalls over the expected life of the financial asset discounted by the effective interest
rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contruet and the cash lows that the Group expects W receive,
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o Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difterence between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by the
effective interest rate,

The Group leverages existing risk management indicators (e.g., internal credil risk classification and
restructuring triggers), credit risk rating changes and reasonable and supportable information which
allows the Group to identify whether the credit risk of financial assets has significantly increased.

No provision for ECL was recognized by the Group for the period from July 1, 2022 to

December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, The aggregate carrying values
of cash in banks, subscription receivable, due from related parties, performance bond and cash bond
amounted to P1,525.2 million and P1,445.3 million as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022,
respectively (Notes 4, 5, 11, 12, and 16).

Estimating Impairment of Nonfinancial Assels
The Group assesses impairment of nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in circumslances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

o Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

» Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business:
and

e Significant negative industry or economic trends including impact of COVID-19 pandemic.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the currying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of assets in an
arm's length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
For impairment loss on specific assets, the recoverable amount represents the fair value less costs to
sell.

The carrying amounts of assets that are subject to impairment testing when impairment indicators are
present (such as obsolescence, physical damage, significant changes to the manner in which the asset
is used, worse than expected economic performance, or other external indicators) are as follows:

December 31, June 30,

2022 2022

Deposits for land acquisition (Note 8) B2,026,892,396 B621,499.013
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 1 and 7) 1,389,743,501 021385618
[nvestment properties (Note 6) 312,626,010 -
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) 281,490,123 286,910,493
Other noncurrent assets (Note 9) 654,395,146 114,218,372
Balances at end of year P4,665,147,176 B1,944.014.416

There were no indicators of impairment of nonfinancial assets for the period from July 1, 2022 to
December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021.
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Esumating the Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assels

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant management estimate is required to
determing the amount of deferred income tax asset that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and level of future tixable income together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of recognized deferred meome tax assets amounted to #30.2 million and #31.0 million as of
December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively (se¢ Note 14). The Group did not recognize
deferred income tux assets on the carryforward benefits of unused net operating loss carryover
(*NOLCO") amounting to 254 4 million and #190.6 million as of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022, respectively, as management believes that there is no sufficient future taxable income
to allow all or part of the deductible temporary difference to be utilized before its expiration

{sce Note 14).

4. Cash
December 31, June 30,
2022 2022
Cash in banks P37,132,084 P886,658,302
Cash on hand 100,000 100,000

#37,232,084  PER6,758,302

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Total interest earned on cash in
banks, net of final tax, amounted to 2.4 million, 0.5 million and 6,090 for the period from
July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Cash in banks include the balance of escrow account where the net proceeds of the IPO and SRO of
the Parent Company are deposited. As provided in the escrow agreement, the escrow agent shall
release to the Parent Company the offer proceeds within five banking days from the receipt of an
instruction letter from the Parent Company directing such release and certifying that the amount
released shall be used solely in accordance with the purpose stated in the use of proceeds of IPO
and/or SRO.

In the event of any change in the use of proceeds, the Parent Company shall provide the escrow agent
with a copy of the certification by the Parent Company’s corporate secretary of the board resolution
approving such new use of proceeds and a certification by the Parent Company's corporate secretary
thit the new use of proceeds has been disclosed to the PSE in accordance with applicable PSE rules.

5. Other Current Assets

December 31, June 30,

2022 2022

Surety and performance bond (Note 20) #15,000,000 #15,000,000
Prepaid premiums (Notes 13 and 20) 2,969,843 1,350,000
Cash bond deposil (Note 15) 552,038 552,038
Others 116,962 3,887,350

P18,638,843 P20, 789 38K
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As part of the bid requirements for the Contract Capacity of 280MWdc under the Green Energy
Auction Program (“GEAP") of DOE, the Parent Company acquired bid security bond and
performance bond. In 2022, the Parent Company paid premiums exclusive of VAT and other charges
of 1,35 million for the bid security bond which was valid until September 15, 2022, and 7.5 million
for the performance bond which shall be valid until August 2, 2023 (see Note 20).

Premiums recognized for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021 amounted to 2.1 million and nil, respectively, presented in “Others” as part
of “Expenses” in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 13),

Others include advances (o employees of SPPPHI used for the operations that are subject for
liquidation within 30 days.

6. TInvestment Properties

As of December 31, 2022, investment properties primarily include parcels of land located in
Nueva Ecija with a total area of 316.46 hectares, These properties were obtained by TNI from
various landowners through various Deeds of Absolute Sale (“DOAs™) Agreements executed in 2022.

The total cost of the investment properties, including land-related costs amounted to P312.6 million
as at December 31, 2022,

The Group did not recognize any rental income and direct operating expenses arising from the
investment properties for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022. As of
December 31, 2022, the carrying amount of the investment properties approximate their fair values.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31, 2022
Transportation Construction

Equipmeni in progress Tuotal
Cost:
Balanece at beginning of the period - #921 385618 $921 385,618
Additions (Notes 9 and 1 5) 207,600 468,164,123 468,371,723
Balances at end of the period 207,600 1,389,549,741 1,389,757.341
Accumulated depreciaton, amortization

and impairment losses:
Depreciation (Note 13) 13,840 - 13,840
Balances at end of the period 13,840 - 13,840
Net book value #193,760 P1.389,549,741 1.389.743.501
June 30, 2022
Construction
in progress

Cost:
Balance at beginning ol the period
Additions (Notes 9 and 15) 921,385,618
Balanee at end of period PO21.385,618

The construction in progress pertains to costs capitalized for the Project of the Parent Company
(kee Note 1),



8. Deposits for Land Acquisition
Memaorandum of Agreements (“MOA")

al  Provincia Investments Corporation ("PIC")
On February 20, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with an affiliate, PIC, which
MOA was later amended on March 3, 2021, o secure land for future expansion in excess of the
capacity contemplated tor the Project. The MOA covers certain parcels of land with a total area of
68.62 hectares.

In October 2022, PIC filed with the National Irrigation Authority (“NIA™) for the issuance of
certificate of non-irrigation coverage for approximately 18.0 hectares. As of April 17, 2023, PIC is
still awaiting the release of the NIA certification and is in the process of preparing the application
for the next batch of lands that will be filed with NIA in 2023,

b) Lupang Hinirang Holdings Corporation ("LHHC")
On April 19, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with an affiliate, LHHC, 1o secure
land for future expansion in excess of the capacity contemplated for the Project. The MOA covers
certain parcels of land with a total area of 56.81 hectares.

LHHC is finalizing the collation of all the necessary documentary requirements to be submitted to
the DOE and Local Government Unit for the issuance of certification as priority project, and to the
NIA for the issuance of certificate of non-irrigation coverage. LHHC aims to submit these
documentary requirements to the appropriate government agencies in 2023,

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, deposits for land acquisition related to these MOAs
amounted to #537.0 million which represent full payment (see Note 11).

Contracts to Sell with Various Landowners

In 2022, the Group entered into Contracts to Sell (“CTS") with various landowners for the acquisition
of parcels of land intended for future expansion. These CTS with a total contract price of

£2.600.8 million, including land-related costs, covers certain parcels of land with a total area of
1,601.93 hectares.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, deposits for land acquisition to vanious landowners,
including land-related costs amounted to #1,489.9 mullion and B84.5 million, respectively
{see Note [1), The remaining balance will be settled when the conditions under the CTS are satisfied.

9, Other Noncurrent Assets

December 31, June 30,

2022 2022

Deposits (Notes 11 and 16) P500,000,000 P
Input VAT 144,640,016 06,601,001
Deferred input VAT 480,000 1,200,000
Advances to contractors - 8,295,392
Others (Note 15) 9,403,298 8,250,146
654,523,314 114,346,539
Less allowance for impairment of input VAT (128,168) (128,168)

P654,395,146  P114218371
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Dieposits pertain to the refundable deposit amounting to #500.0 million that TNT has provided to
SPPPHI 1o facilitate and expedite the performance of services by SPPPHI under the Deposits and
Services Agreement entered into by both parties (see Note 11).

Advances to contractors pertain to advance payments for the purchase of goods and services in
connection with the construction of the Project (see Note 1),

10,

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

December 31, June 30,

2022 2022

Accounts payable (Note 11) P15,039,314 B0 766,610
Withholding tax payable 47,298,615 691,094
Accrued expenses 2,836,359 2,538,034
Other payables 43,784 4,522

P65,218,072 B13,000.260

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within one year. Withholding tax
payable pertains to withholding taxes on professional fees. Accrued expenses includes accrual of
prafessional fees,

11.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if, among others, one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions, the parties are subject to common control, or the party is an associate or a joint
venture.

Affiliates are related entities of the Group by virtue of common ownership and representation to
management where significant influence is apparent.

Except as otherwise indicated, the outstanding accounts with related parties shall be settled in cash.
The transactions are made at terms and prices agreed upon by the parties.

i, Following arc the Group's related party transactions for the period from July 1, 2022 to

December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the rclated outstanding
balances as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022:

A
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Transactions during the Qutstanding
perinds ended halsinees os of
December Jung 30, June 30,
11,1022 022 2021 December 31, June 30,
[Six Months)  {One Year) [Oine Year) 1021 2032 Terms  Conditiung
Depogity (Mote 9)
Refundable, Unsecured;
non-interesy Mot
STPPHIL 500,000,000 | P PEU,0H, i B hearing impaired
Deposiin for land
argisitisn
{MNole B)
Deposits;  Unsecured;
non-imierest Not
LHHC [ = B— P2T0OM000  PITOO000000  PI70,000.000 bearing  tmpuired
FIC = — 367,000,000  267.000.000 267, (0000 iy =
FSIT.000,000  B53I7,000,000
Lhe from related parties
Ulsirmate Parent Company

Due and
demandable; Unsecired;
TR T 2 Nt

SPPPHI PR 700,000 [ B PR 700,000 P bering  impained
Afiilintes:
SPHI 25T MM 000 - = T35 000 340, 7M1 000 =t o~
SPCRPL 19,098,320 - - 14,098, 320 — -t -lo-
12,688 320 541,700,000
FR21IBRAZ0 PS40, 700,000
Dwie tor a velated parey

Due and
demaniable;
niodi-knlerest

SPPPHI P—  B6.966,300 B4045000  P22.770,229 P12.792 348 hnmi Unsecured
Accouwniy pavable
{Mate 10)

Thue and
demutncable;
nom-imterest

SPPPHI #50,800,000 P24,000,000 P4,000.000  #12,700,000 P, 700,000 bearing Unsecured
SMSC 23,450,790 = H 2,339,094 % di: A
#15,035.004 PG 70,000
a. SPPPHI
Deed of Assignment with SPPPHI

On January 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered into by the Parent Company, as the
assignee, and SPPPHI, as the assignor, whereby, SPPPHI assigned to the Parent Company all of
its rights and obligations under the Scptember 6, 2016 leasc agreement covering a total land arca
of 169.9 hectares, among others, and the Parent Company accepted and assumed all of the said
rights and obligations thus assigned, pursuant to the said Deed of Assignment (see Note 15).

Management Services Agreement {"MSA") with SPPPHT

On April 30, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MSA with SPPPHI to provide executive
and leadership support and exccute its strategic direction while managing its business operations
tor a penod from May [, 2021 to Apnl 30, 2023, renewable upon mutual agreement ot both
parties, for a monthly fee of #2.0 million, subject to 5% annual escalation.
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The MSA covers all necessary administrative and advisory services on management, investment
and technical matters involving the Parent Company’s operations, including but not limited to
human resources, legal, finance, and information technology.

Prior to May 2021, the administrative and finance functions of the Parent Company were being
handled by SPPPHI at no cost to the Parent Company. Starting May 2021, the key administrative
and finance functions are performed by SPPPHI through the MSA. Management fee recognized
for the period trom July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021 amounted 1o ®12.8 million, 24.0 million and 4.0 million, respectively, presented as
“Management fee” under “Expenses" in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
{see Note 13).

Construction Suppori Services Agreement ( "CSSA ") with SPPPHI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a CSSA with SPPPHI wherein SPPPHI
shall provide support services, including engineening, procurement and construction (“EPC™),
logistics, warehousing and other contractor-related services during the construction of the Project.

Construction support services recognized for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, amounted to P68.0 million, and nil, respectively, which
were capitalized as part of construction in progress (see Note 7).

Site Acquisition Services Agreement {"SASA ") between TNI and SPPPHI

On December 26, 2022, TNI entered into a SASA with SPPPHI which will cover site acquisition
services covering a total area of 992.77 hectares for a consideration of 150.0 million, exclusive of
VAT, from October 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022,

As of December 31, 2022, TNI has tully paid tor the site acquisition services rendered by
SPPPHI and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition™ in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see Note §).

Deposit and Services Agreement between TNI and SPPPHI

On December 26, 2022, TNI entered into an agreement with SPPPHI, wherein SPPPHI shall
provide assistance, representation, facilitation of documentation and submission of necessary
documents and liaison with relevant government units, agencies and oftices including
government owned and controlled corporations to secure land use conversion orders from the
Department of Agrarian Reform (“DAR") for the 992.77 hectares acquired by TNI and the
delivery to TNI of the relevant conversion orders from the date of the agreement until

December 31, 2024, To facilitate and expedite the performance of the services by SPPPHI, TNI
has provided SPPPHI a refundable deposit amounting to #500.0 million which is presented as
“Deposits™ as part of “Other noncurrent assets™ in the consolidated statements of financial
position (see Note 9).

LHHC
MOA with LHHC

On April 19, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with LHHC to secure land covering
u total arca of 56.81 hectares for a total amount of #270.0 million (see Note 8).
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G

PIC

MOA with PIC

On February 20, 2021, the Parent Company entered into a MOA with PIC, which was later
amended on March 3, 2021, to secure land covering a total area of 68.62 hectares for i total
amount of P267.0 million (see Note 8).

SPCRPI

Project Development Services Agreement (“PDSA ") and Amendment Agreement with SPCRPI
On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a PDSA with SPPPHI wherein SPPPHI
shall provide project development services, including site identification, permitting and land
acquisition, covering a total area of 925.61 hectares, for a consideration of #150.0 mullion,
exclusive of VAT.

On October 5, 2022, SPPPHI assigned all of its nghts and obligations under the PDSA 10
SPCRPL

As ol December 31, 2022, the Parent Company has fully paid the services rendered by SPCRPI
and has presented this as part of “Deposits for land acquisition™ in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 7).

CSSA with SPCRPI

On September 30, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a separate CSSA with SPCRPI wherein
SPCRPI shall provide support services, including EPC, logistics, warehousing and other
contractor-related services duning the construction of the Project tor a consideration of

P100.0 million, exclusive of VAT.

On October 5, 2022, the parties agreed to amend the consideration of the CSSA from
P100.0 million to £219.5 million, exclusive of VAT.

As of December 31, 2022, #219.5 million was capitalized as part of construction in progress
(see Note 7).

Solar Maintenance Services Corporation (*SMSC™)

Support Services Agreement with SMSC

On September 29, 2022, the Parent Company entered into a Support Services Agreement with
SMSC, an affiliate of the Parent Company, wherein SMSC shall provide support services during
the construction and development of the Project. Manpower services recognized for the period
from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021,
amounted to P23.5 million and nil, which was capitalized as part of construction in progress
(see Note 7).



12. Equity

The details of the Parent Company’s capital stock as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 are as
follows:

December 31, 2022 June 30, 2022
Number of Number of
Shares Amount Shares Amount
Commaon shares - B0.1 par value
per share
Authorized 10,000,000,000 #1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 #1,000.000.000
Issued and outstanding:
Balances al beginning of
period B,124350,005  BBI12435001 5424 350,000 B542435 000
Issuance of shares during the
period 1,875.649,995 187,564,999 2 700.000.005 270,000,001
Balances at end of perind 10,000,000,000  ®1,000,000.000 8124 350,005  PR12.435,001

In July 2021, the Parent Company issued five (5) shares to the new directors,

In July 2021 and November 2021, the Parent Company entered into 8 Memorandum of Agreement
with SPPPHI, whereby SPPPHI provided 216.0 million and 2.0 million, respectively, representing
additional payment for shares previously issued. This was recognized as additional paid-in capital
under equity.

PO

On December 17, 2021, the Parent Company completed its IPO and was listed in the PSE under the
stock symbol “SPNEC”, The Parent Company issued 2,700,000,000 new common shares for a total
consideration of #2,700.0 million, or at #1.00 per share. This resulted to an additional paid-in capital
of #2,329.3 million, net of transaction costs amounting to #100.7 million.

Increase in Authorized Capital Stock

On January 10, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved amendments in the

Parent Company’s Articles of Incorporation to increase the authorized capital stock from P1.0 billion
divided into 10.0 billion common shares at #0.] per share, 1o 5.0 billion divided into 50.0 billion
common shares at #0.1 per share. This was subsequently approved by the stockholders of the Parent
Company on March 7, 2022. The proposal (o increase the Parent Company's authorized capital stock
would enable the Parent Company to acquire other solar projects and fund the expansion of its
portfolio.

As of April 17, 2023, the Parent Company is in the process of filing the required documents with the
SEC.

SRO

On February 14, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the conduct of a SRO where
eligible stockholders would have the opportunity to subscribe to shares, subject to terms to be
determined by management and relevant regulatory requirements and approvals.
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On March 28, 2022, pursuant o the approval of its BOD, the Parent Company confirmed its plan to
file the SRO based on its current unissued authorized capital stock of 1,875,649,995 shares, at an
entitlement ratio of | share for every 1.28 shares held (from its current public float of 2,399,614,000
shares), at an offer price range that has been fixed at 81,60 o P1.76 per share, with the middle of this
range being PB1.68 per share,

On April 8, 2022, the Parent Company filed with the SEC an application for Confirmation of Exempt
Transaction covering the common shares to be issued relative to the SRO, pursuant to Section 10.1(e)
(in respect of the Rights Offer) and 10.1(]) (in respect of the QB Take-1p) of the Securities
Regulation Code (“SRC") under which the exemption is based. The SEC issued the Confirmation of
Exempt Transaction on July 19, 2022.

On August 18, 2022, the Parent Company notified the PSE of the final offer price of #1.50 per share,
and offered the option to pay in installments, with a down payment of 25% and the balance of 75%
within three months of the offer period.

On September 15, 2022, the Parent Company completed its SRO and issued 1,875,649,995 new
commaon shares for a total consideration of #2,813.5 million or at#1.50 par value, This resulted to an
additional paid-in capital of #2 591 .4 million, net of transaction costs of P34.5 million.

On December 1, 2022, the Parent Company extended the payment period for partially paid Right
Shares for a period of three months, from December 5, 2022 to March 5, 2023,

As of December 31, 2022, subscription receivable resulting from those that subscribed on installment
payment amounted to P651.1 million. As of April 17, 2023, the Company has already received at
least 99.84% of the payments and is currently coordinating with the relevant parties for the
completion of the requirements of its SRO.

Share Swap
On February 24, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of 100% of the

outstanding shares of SPPPHI and affiliates in various entities (“Solar Philippines Assets”) including
but not limited to:

Solar Philippines Calatagan Corporation

Solar Philippines Tarlac Corporation

Solar Philippines Batangas Baseload Corporation
Solar Philippines Batangas Corporation

Solar Philippines Central Luzon Corporation
Solar Philippines Central Visayas Corporation
Solar Philippines Eastem Corporation

Solar Philippines Retail Electricity, Inc.

Solar Philippines Rooftop Corporation

Solar Philippines South Luzon Corporation

Solar Philippines Southern Mindanao Corporation
Solar Philippines Southern Tagalog Corporation
Solar Philippines Tarlac Baseload Corporation
Solar Philippines Visayas Corporation

Solar Philippines Western Corporation

Laguna Solar Rooftop Corporation

Solar Philippines Tanauan Corporation

Terra Solar Philippines, Inc.
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e 5P Holdings, Inc,
=  Solar Philippines Commercial Rooftop Projects, Inc.

The Parent Company would acquire the Solar Philippines Assels through an asset-for-share swap,
with SPPPHI subscribing to 24,373,050,000 shares of the Parent Company at #2.50 per share
(“Share Swap™). This Share Swap is supported by a third-party valuation and fairmmess opinion by
an mdependent valuation and fairness opinion provider accredited with the SEC and PSE. The Solar
Philippines Assets would serve as the Parent Company’s subseription payment for the increase in its
authorized capital stock from 10 billion common shares to 50 billion common shares.

Pledge of Parent Company's Shares owned by SPPPHI

On June 25, 2021, SPPPHI executed a pledge over all the Parent Company’s shares it holds to secure
a loan by its affiliate, PIC, from AC Energy Corporation (“ACEN"). The pledged stock certificates
of the Parent Company s shares were delivered to and is in the custody of the lender. The lender has
agreed to provisionally return the stock certificates representing the pledged shares and to have the
same placed under escrow for the exclusive purpose of enabling the IPO.

On January 25, 2023, SPPPHI executed definitive agreements with ACEN to provide 500 million
shares of SPNEC as pre-payment for part of the loan’s prineipal and payment of interest, other fees,
and in consideration of ACEN releasing its pledge over shares owned by SPPPHI in SPNEC.

13. Expenses
December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 2022 2021
{Six Months) {One Year) (One Year)
Management fee (Note 11) P12,800,000 24,000,000 B4,000,000
Taxes and licenses 6,848 628 10,592,654 1,453,987
Professional fees 6,401,289 6,540,000 2,652,032
Interes! accretion of lease

labilities (Note 15) 4,532,695 9,142,009 7,648 652

Amortization of right-of-use
assets (Note 15) 2,584,193 5,420,370 4,038,265
Penalties and surcharges 1,819,212 4R, 055 -
Supplies 1,395,501 409,081 -
Advertising 784,398 - -
P'SE Filing Fee - 12465411 -
Bid-related costs - 1,634,000 1,909,091
Others (Notes 5 and 7) 5,377,739 2,246,603 272,966

P42,543,655 B72,498,183 B22,674,993

For the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022, other expenses include premiums, notarial
fees, trust fees, utilities, deprecialion expense and travel expenses.

L T
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14. Income Taxes

There is no provision for current income tax for the periods ended December 31, 2022 and
June 30, 2022 due o the Group’s nel taxable loss positions.

The reconciliation of income tax benefit ar the statutory income tax rates to the provision for (benefit
from) income Lax are as follows:

December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 2022 2021
(Six Months) {One Year) (One Year)
[ncome tax benefit at statutory
income tax rate B4.170,289) (®7,195.000 (#2,266,890)
Adjustments for:
Movements in unrecognized
deferred income tax
assets 8,254,469 5.908,169 3,849,747
Transaction costs charged to
APIC and retmned
carnings (3,452,558) (10,066,198) (743,848)
Interest income subject to
final tax (744,149) (54,818) (609)
Nondeductible expenses 377,665 37,292 65,891
Provision for (benefit from)
deferred income tax P265,138 (P11,370,555) P904,291

The components of the Group's recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities follow:

December 31, June 30,

022 2022

Deferred income tax asset on lease liability #30,219,583 B31,026,757
Deferred income lax liability on ROU assel (20,018,45T) (20,560,493)

Net deferred income tax asset #10,201,126 P10.466.264

As of December 31, 2022, the Group has NOLCO for which no deferred income tax assets have been
recognized as follows:

Period Ingurred WValid Until Amount

July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 December 31, 2025 P68,221,542
July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 June 30, 2027 172,229,330
January | to June 30, 2021 June 30, 2026 6,762,211
January 1 to December 31, 2020 December 31, 2025 7,162,169
P254,375,252
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The movements in NOLCO are as foliows:

For the
six-month For the year
period ended* ended
Balances at beginning of period P190.618,674 P19,078,574
Additions 68,221,542 172,229,330
Expirations (4.464,964) (689,230)

#254,375,252 P190.618 674
& inJialy 1, 2022 ax i vemwds of tive changs in faoal pear (iee Node 1),

Balances at end of period
*The beginnitig of period applicaiie for December 17, 2

No deferred income tax asset was recognized on the carryforward benefits of NOLCO as of
December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 amounting to P254.8 million and #190.6 million, respectively,
as management estimates that there would be no sufficient future taxable income yet to allow all or
part of the deductible temporary difference to be utilized prior to their expiration.

B ihan to Recover as One Aet

On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations (“RR™) No. 25-2020 implementing
Section 4 of Bayanihan 2 which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years 2020 and 2021 can
be carried over as a deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years
immediately following the year of such loss.

|5, Leases

a. In 2019, the Parent Company entered into a land lease agreement with various landowners to
develop solar farm projects in Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija for a total area of 95.8 hectares. The land
was made available for usc on January 1, 2019 with a one (1) year rent-free period plus 25-year
term. Further, the lease is subject for renewal of 5 years upon mutual agreement by the parties.

b. On January 11, 2021, a Deed of Assignment was entered between the Parent Company, as the
assignee, and SPPPHI, as the assignor, whereby, SPPPHI assigned all of its rights and obligations
under the September 6, 2016 lease agreement for certain parcels of land with a total area of
179.6 hectares in Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija. The Parent Company accepted and assumed all of the
said rights and obligations thus assigned, in pursuance of the said Deed of Assignment, Further,
as agreed by the parties, the lease of the updated total land area of 169.9 hectares commenced in
March 2021.

. InMay 2021, the Parent Company entered into a land lease agreement with various landowners
to develop solar farm projects in Pefiaranda, Nueva Ecija for a total area of 81,75 hectares. The
land was made available for use on the execution date of the contract with a one (1) year rent-free
period plus 25-year term. Further, the lease is subject for renewal of five (5) years upon mutual

agreemenl by the parties.
d. ROU assets as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 are as follows:
December 31 June 30,
2022 2022
Balances at beginning of period P286,910,494  P297,751.234
Amortization capitalized to construction in progress” (2,836,178) (5,420370)
Amortization during the period (Note 13) (2,584,193) (5,420,370}
Balances at end of period B2181.490,123 B286,910,494

Elncurved during the constrwction period (rew Notes | wnd 7
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e. Lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 are as follows:

December 31 June 30,

2022° 2022

Balances at beginning of period B193.878,848 P289,525,826

Interest expense capitalized to construction in progress” 4,726,877 9,215478

Interest expense (Note 13) 4,532,695 9,142,008
Payments - (14,004,465)

Total lease liabilities 303,138,420 293,878,848
Current portion of lease liabilities (4,538,676) (4,538,676)

Noncurrent portion of lease liabilities P298,599,744 P289.340,172
*lncurred during the constrnction period (see Notes | and 7)

f. The following are the amounts recognized for the period from July 1, 2022 1o December 31, 2022
and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 in the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income:
December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 2022 2021
(Six Months) (One Year) {One Year)
Interest accretion of lease liabilitics P4,532,695 P9 142,009 B7.648,652
Amortization of ROU assets 2,584,193 5.420,370 4,038,265
Total amount recognized in the
consolidated statements of
comprehensive income R7,116,888 #14.562.379 BI1|,686,917

2. As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, cash bond deposit amounting to P0.6 million,
pertain to cash bond deposits paid to DAR for the conversion of leased land from agricultural to
industrial land.

h.  On April 30, 2021, the Parent Company received the DAR order for the conversion of
169.9 hectares of leased land. On October 11, 2021, the DAR issued the Certificate of Finality to
the Parent Company to effectively cause the conversion of said land from agricultural to
industrial classification.

i.  On December 28, 2022, the Parent Company received the DAR order for the conversion of
83.8 hectares of leased lands.

- Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash, subscription receivable, due from
related parties, performance bond, cash bond deposit, accounts payable and acerued expenses, due to
a related purty and lease liabilitics, The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the

Group's operations.

A
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The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Group’s risk management policies arc established to identify and
manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks, fo set appropriate transaction limits and controls, and
to monitor and assess risks and compliance to internal control policies. Risk management policies
and structure are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s
activities,

The Group has exposure to liquidity and credit risks from the uses of its financial instruments. The
BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing this risk as summarized below:

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

With respect to the credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash
in banks, due from related parties, performance bond and cash bond deposit, the Group's exposure to
credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amount of these instruments. The Group’s cash in banks, subscription receivable, due from related
parties, performance bond and cash bond deposit amounted to ®1,525.2 million and ®1,445.3 million
as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively.

Cash in banks

For cash in banks, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification, The probability of default and
loss given defaulls are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk investments. Tt is
the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECL.. The Group uses the ratings from the external credit rating agencies to determine
whether the debt mstrument has significantly increased in ¢redit risk and to estimate ECLs,

Due from related parties, performance bond and cash bond deposit

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
counterparty. The credit quality is further classified and assessed by reference to historical
mformation about cach of the counterparty’s historical detault rates. Based on assessment of
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default, the Group has assessed
that the outstanding balances are exposed to low credit risk. ECL on these balances have therefore
been assessed as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Liqudity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s objectives to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when due, under bath normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking adverse effect 1o the Group’s credit
standing.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and

flexibility. As part of its liquidity risk management, the Group regularly evaluates its projected and
actual cash flows.
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The tables below show the maturity profile as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022 of the
Group’s financial assets used for liguidity purposes based on contractual undiscounted cash flows,
and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

December 31, 2012
1to Muore than
On Demand <1 Year 5 Yeurs 5 Years Toial
(Tn Thusand Pesox)
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Cash in banks #17,132 [ - B #37,132
Subseriptivn recelvable 651,116 - - - 651,116
Due from related parties HI1 388 - - - 811,388
Ferformance bond and cash boad
deposit 15,552 - - = 15,552
#1515, 188 [ [ B #1525 188
Financial lizbilities a1 amortized cpst:
Accounts payable PI5039 P [ = H- #15039
Actrued expenses 1LRM - - - 1836
Due to a related party 2,770 - - - 12,770
__Leaye Habilities 4,530 4,539 101,981 567,170 678,319
P45 185 4,539 P101.981 P56T,270 FTIRNTS
June 30, 2022
I o Muoae than
On Demand <1 Year 5 Year 3 Years Totol
fln Thousand Pesos)
Financial gszels ai amortized cost:
Cash in banks RHEG,658 [ [ - PARs 658
Due from relited partics 541 - - - 541,700
Performance bond and cash hond
demosil 15,582 - = = 15,582
P 443910 [ | B Pl 443,910
Finaneial [Fabilities at amortized cost:
Accounts payable P9, 767 - [ P B9 767
Acemed expenses 2538 - - - 2518
Due to u reluted pamy 22,792 - = - 2,792
Lease linbilities 43539 4.539 9],597 577,654 fi78,329
P39.636 P4,539 Po1,597 B5TT 654 #713.426
Fair Value and Category of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Cash in banks, subscription receivable, due from related parties, performance bond, cash bond,
accounts payable and accrued expenses and due to a related party

The earrying amounts of these [inancial instruments approximate their fair values due to their

short-term maturitics.

Lease liabilities

The fair values for the Group's lease liabilities are estimated using the discounted cash flow
methodology adjusted for credit risk (Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy). The discount rates used are
8.59% and 7.46% as at December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively, The fair value of the
lease liabilities amounted to P233.1 million and #2534 million as of December 31, 2022 and

June 30, 2022 respectively, while the carrying value of the lease liabilities amounted to

£303.1 million and #293.9 million as of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the fair value of lcase liabilities arc measured using

Level 3 valuation technique. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, there were
no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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Capital Management

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in business
and economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new shares.
No significant changes have been made in the objectives, policies and processes of the Group for the
for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021.

The Group considers the following as its core capital:

December 31, June 30,

2022 2022

Capital stock B1,000,000,000 PE12,435,001

Additional paid-in capital 4,938,722,430 2347338021
Deficit (126,125,941) (85.716,108)

P5.812.596.489 £3.074,056,914

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, the Group was able to meet its capital management
nhjectives,

17.

Basic/Diluted Loss Per Share
The basic/diluted loss per share amounts were computed as follows:

December 31, June 30, June 30,
2022 2022 2021
(Six Months) {One Year) (One Year)
(a} Net loss atiributable to equity holders of

the Parent Company P40 409,833 P60,579.4458 P23.573,194
ib) Weighted average number of common

shares outstanding 9,374,783.335 6,999,350,005 461,195,834
Basic/diluted loss per share (a/b) P0.0043 £0.0087 200511

The Group does not have any dilutive potential common shares as at December 31, 2022 and
June 30, 2022.

18.

Renewable Energy Act of 2008

On January 30, 2009, Republic Act No. 9513, An Act Promoting the Development, Utilization and
Commercialization of Renewable Energy Resources and for Other Purposes, otherwise known as the
“Renewable Energy Act of 2008 (the “Act™), became effective.

The Act aims to:

4)  accelerate the exploration and development of renewable energy resources such as, but not
limited to, biomass, solar, wind, hydro, geothermal and ocean energy sources, including hybrid
systems, to achieve energy self-reliance, through the adoption of sustainable energy
development strategies (o reduce the country’s dependence on fossil fuels and thereby minimize
the country's exposure to price fluctuations in the intemational markels, the effects of which
spiral down to almost all sectors of the economy;
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b) increase the utilization of renewable energy by institutionalizing the development of national
and local capabilities in the use of renewable energy systems, and promoting its efficient and
cost-effective commercial application by providing fiscal and non-fiscal incentives;

¢) encourage the development and utilization of renewable energy resources as tools to effectively
prevent or reduce harmful emissions and thereby balance the goals of economic growth and
development with the protection of health and environment; and

d) establish the necessary infrastructure and mechanism to carry out mandates specified in the Act
and other laws.

As provided in the Act, RE developers of RE facilities, including hybrid systems, in proportion to and
to the extent of the RE component, for both power and non-power applications, as duly certified by
the DOE, in consultation with the Board of Investments (“BOI™), shall be entitled to the following
incentives, among others:

i. Income Tax Holiday (“ITH") - For the first seven (7) years of its commercial operations, the duly
registered RE developer shall be exempt from income taxes levied by the National Government;

ii. Duty-free Importation of RE Machinery, Equipment and Materials — Within the first ten (10)
years upon issuance of a certification of an RE developer, the importation of machinery and
equipment, und materials and parts thercof, including control and communication equipment,
shall not be subject to tanff dutics;

iii. Special Realty Tax Rates on Equipment and Machinery — Any law to the contrary
notwithstanding, realty and other taxes an civil works, equipment, machinery, and other
improvements of a registered RE developer actually and exclusively used for RE facilitics shall
not exceed one and a half percent (1.5%) of their original cost less accumulated normal
depreciation or net book value;

iv. NOLCO - the NOLCO of the RE developer during the first three (3) years from the start of
commercial operation which had not been previously offset as deduction from gross income shall
be carried over as deduction from gross income for the next seven (7) consecutive taxable years
immediately following the year of such loss;

v. Corporate Tax Rate — After seven (7) years of ITH, all RE developers shall pay a corporate tax of
ten percent (10%) on its net taxable income as defined in the National Internal Revenue Code of
1997, as amended by Republic Act No. 9337,

vi, Accelerated Depreciation — I, and only if, an RE project tmls to receive an I'TH before full
operation, it may apply for accelerated depreciation in its tax books and be taxed based on such;

vii. Zero Percent VAT Rate — The sale of fuel or power generated from renewable sources of energy,
the purchase of local goods, properties and services needed for the development, construction and
installation of the plant facilities, as well as the whole process of exploration and development of
RE sources up to its conversion into power shall be subject to zero percent (%) VAT,

viit.Cash Incentive of RE Developers for Missionary Electrification — An RE developer, established
after the effectivity of the Act, shall be entitled to a cash generation-based incentive per kilowatt-
hour rate gencrated, equivalent to fifty percent (50%) of the universal charge for power needed to
service missionary areas where it operates the same;

L LY
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ix. Tax Exemption of Carbon Credits — All proceeds from the sale of carbon emission credits shall
be exempt from any and all taxes; and

X. Tax Credit on Domestic Capital Equipment and Services — A tax credit equivalent to one hundred
percent (100%) of the value of the VAT and custom duties that would have been paid on the RE
machinery, equipment, materials and parts had these items been imported shall be given to an RE
operating contract holder who purchases machinery, equipment, materials, and parts from a
domestic manufacturer for purposes set forth in the Act. RE developers and local manufacturers,
[abricators and suppliers of locally produced RE equipment shall register with the DOE, through
the Renewable Energy Management Bureau (“REMB"), Upon registration, a certification shall
be issued to each RE developer and local manufacturer, fabricator and supplier of locally-
produced renewable energy equipment to serve as the basis of their entitlement to the incentives
provided for in the Act. All certifications required to qualify RE developers to avail of the
incentives provided for under the Act shall be issued by the DOE through the REMB.

In November 2022, the DOE issued Department Circular No. 2022-11-0034 which amends the
Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Act. The amendment removes the nationality requirement
imposed on the business engaged in the exploration, development, and utilization of solar, wind,
hydropower and ocean energy, thereby allowing the entry of loreign capital into the country's

renewable energy industry.

. Changes in Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities

December 31, 2022
July 1, 2022 Cash NMows Others  December 31, 2022
Due to a related party P22,792 348 B (#22,119) P22,770,229
Lease liabilities 293, 878.848 - 9.259.572 303,138,420
Total liabilities from
financing activities P116,671,196 P P9.237453 £325,908.,649
June 30, 2022
July 1, 2021 Cash flows Others June 30, 2022
Due to a related party P22,792 348 P [ P22,792 348
Lease liabilities 289,525,826 (14,004, 465) 18,357 487 293 878,848
Total liabilitics from
financing activities R312318,174  (P14,004,465) R18,357 487 B316,671,196
June 30, 2021
July 1, 2020 Cash Mows Others June 30, 2021
Due to a related party P15,366,623 P7.425725 B P22,792.348
Lease liabilitics 45,275,983 — 244,249 843 289,525,826
Total labilities from
financing activities P60,642,606 £7.425725 B244,249 843 P312318.174
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20, Other Matters

Change in Allocation of IPO Proceeds
On December 20, 2021, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following:

a) Pending the use of IPO proceeds for future land acquisitions and capital expenditures, effective
by January 19, 2022, to allow the Parent Company to allocate such 1PO proceeds towards bid
bonds, bid security, and other expenses for potential off-take agreements, to enable the Parent
Company to be responsive to contracting opportunities as soon as they arise, in support of the
Parent Company’'s strategy to pursue off-take on an opportunistic basis.

b) The authority to transact with financial institutions to secure bid bonds and bid security for the
projects of the Parent Company.

¢) Subject to applicable law, rules and regulations to be clarified, the incorporation and tunding of
wholly-owned subsidiaries o hold the IPO’s use of proceeds and to receive instructions from the
Parent Company for the use of such proceeds.

d) The authority to file and submit all compliance, disclosures and any other reportorial
requirements of the Parent Company to the relevant regulatory agencies and the PSE.

€) Other ancillary powers and authoritics necessary and proper for the execution of the above
approvals,

On February 14, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the acquisition of land in support
of the Parent Company s plan to develop ten (10) gigawatt of solar projects, to be funded from
proceeds of a rights offering and the proceeds from its [PO, as available, and the delegation of
authority to the Parent Company's President or his authorized representative to determine the
location, particular parcels and terms for such land, and authority to execute contracts for this

purpose.

On April 6, 2022, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the authorization to allocate PO
proceeds to advance funding for pursuing off-take agreements and developing projects for Terra
Renewables Holdings, Inc, (“Terra™) and its associated developments to SPHI, given that SPHI is a
shareholder in Terra and that SPHI is to be a subsidiary by the Parent Company, provided this would
only be from the excess of the amount needed by Phase | A of the Nueva Ecija solar project and
would form part of the expansion of the Parent Compuany's projects.

Renewable Power Supply Agreement with Angeles Electric Corporation (“AEC")

On October 14, 2021, the Parent Company expressed its interest to participate in the Competitive
Selection Process (“CSP™) of AEC. a distribution utility in Pampanga Province for the supply of
renewable energy to AEC.

On December 7, 2021, the Parent Company was determined Lo be the winning supplier for the said
bidding.

On February 7, 2022, the Parent Company secured a 10-year Offtake Agreement with AEC, under
which the Parent Company will supply AEC 97.8 MWh daily, representing a portion of the Project's
capacity to supply energy once completed. The Offtake Agreement awarded is for a term of ten (10)
years commencing on March 26, 2023, or upon ERC approval, whichever comes later, Since the
Parent Company has excess capacity beyond this Offlake Agreement, the Parent Company intends to
continue to pursue additional Offtake Agreements through contracting on an opportunistic basis with
RESs, and/or Distribution utilities (“DUs™) by participating in further CSPs. In the absence of
additional Offtake Agreements, the Parent Company intends to supply ils excess generation power
through the Wholesale Electricity Spot Market.
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On January 23, 2023, the Parent Company and AEC jointly filed the PSA with the ERC. As of
April 17, 2023, the Parent Company and AEC are still awaiting approval from the ERC.

The Parent Company provided a performance bond in relation to the project amounting to
B15.0 million valid until May 25, 2023. The performance bond is presented as part of “Other current
assets” in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 5).

Green Energy Auction Program ("GEAP")

On June 24, 2022, the Parent Company was awarded as one of the winning bidders by the DOE on ils
First Green Energy Auction Round. The Parent Company will supply the electricity from the
280MWdc Santa Rosa Nueva Ecija 2 Solar Power Project. The winning bids under the GEAP, which
are expected to commence operations between 2023 and 2025, will be awarded 20-year power supply
agreements. [n 2022, the Parent Company submitted a surety bond as one of the requirements for the
bidding process, and a performance bond pursuant to the requirements of the program.

As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, prepaid premiums amounted to B2.8 million and
#1.35 million, respectively, presented as part of “Other cumrent assets” in the consolidated statements
of financial position (see Note 5).

21.

Events After the Financial Reporting Date

Investment by Metro Pacific Investments Carporation (“MPIC") in SPNEC
In March 2023, MPIC has entered into a sale and purchase agreement with SPPPHI to acquire 16%
equity stake or 1,600,000,000 shares in SPNEC for an aggregate consideration of #2.0 hillion,

The completion of the transaction is subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent,
including the procurement of regulatory approvals and execution of a separate agreement which will,
among others, grant the MPIC Group the option to increase its interest in SPNEC to 43% of its
outstanding shares after SPNEC increases its authorized capital stock from £10.0 billion to

£50.0 billion through an asset-for-share swap which involves the infusion of SPPHI assets into
SPNEC.

Memorandum of Agreements (“MOA ") between SPPPHI and Prime Infrastructure, Inc. ("' Prime ™)
On February 9, 2023, the BOD of SPNEC approved the MOAs between SPPPHI and Prime for their
joint ventures in Terra Solar Philippines, Inc. (“TSPI"), Solar Tanauan Corporation

(*Solar Tanauan™), and Solar Philippines Tarlac Carporation (“Solar Tarlac™). The MOAs cover the
following:

a) Amendments to the Sharcholders’ Agreement of TSPI between SPPPHI and Prime to streamline
the decision-making process and reach agreements efficiently and commercially via deadlock
resolution mechanisms, On this basis, the parties agreed to continue their joint venture in TSPL
TSPI has signed a 850 MWac Mid-Merit Power Supply Agreement (“PSA™) with Manila Electric
Company (“Meralco™) with a scheduled delivery date by the first quarter of 2026, and plans to
break ground within 2023,

b) Sale of common shares in Solar Tanauan by SPPPHI to Prime for #1.0 hillion upon execution of
the agreements, which would result in Prime owning 100% of Solar Tanauan (with the proceeds
of this sale going to SPNEC after the share swap, subject to regulatory approval). Solar Tanauan
has a PSA with Meralco tor 50 MWac, has secured over 140 hectares of land, and is currently
under construction.
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¢) Redemption or purchase of preferred shares in Solar Tarlac of Prime by Solar Tarlac or SPPPHI
for P1.5 billion plus acerued dividends by or before March 31 2024, which, with additional
equity, would result in SPPPHI (or SPNEC after the share swap) owning 100% of Solar Tarlac.
Solar Tarlac has a PSA with Meralco for 85 MWac, has secured over 140 hectares of land, and
currently has 100 MW operating and 50 MW under construction.

Terms of the MOAs will apply to SPNEC upon the completion of its share swap with SPPPHI,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SP New Energy Corporation

20" Floor AIA Tower

8767 Pasco de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of SP New Energy Corporation (formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation, a
subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as
the "Group™) as ut December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, and [or (he period from July 1, 2022 10
December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, included in this Form 17-A, and
have issued our report thereon dated April 17, 2023, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, The schedules listed in the Index to
the Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Group's
management. These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with the Revised Securities
Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not part of the consolidated financial statements. These schedules have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the financial information required to be set forth
therein in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
SP New Energy Corporation

20" Floor AIA Tower

8767 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of SP New Energy Corporation (formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation, a
subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) as at December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022, and for the period from July 1, 2022 1o
December 31, 2022 and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and have issued our report thereon
dated April 17, 2023. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators,
including their definitions, formulas, calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended
users, are the responsibility of the Group's management. These financial soundness indicators are not
measures of operating performance defined by Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) and
may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by other companies. This schedule is
presented for the purpose of complying with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with PFRSs. The components of these financial soundness indicators
have been traced to the Group’s consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2022 and

Junc 30, 2022, and for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 and for the years ended

June 30, 2022 and 2021 and no material exceptions were noted.
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Jhoanna Feliza C. Go
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0114122
Tax Identification No. 219-674-288
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No. 114122-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC (Group A)

Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2025 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-103-2022, November 7, 2022, valid until November 6, 2025
PTR No. 9564628, January 3, 2023, Makati City

April 17, 2023
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SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,
# Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)

AND SUBSIDIARY

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

DECEMBER 31, 2022
Schedule Contents
Index io the Consolidated Financial Statements
| Map Showing the Relationships Between and Among the Companies in the
Group, its Ultimate Parent Company and Co-subsidiaries
|| Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
11 Financial Soundness Indicators
Supplementary Schedules
A Financial Assets
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related

Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties and Amounts Payable to Related Parties

C which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
frat applicable)

D Long-Term Debt (not applicable)

E Indebtedness to Related Parties

F Guarantees of Securities of Other [ssuers (not applicable)

G Capital Stock



SP NEW ENERGY CORPORATION

(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation,

a Subsidiary of Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.)
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2022

Deficit, July 1, 2022 (PR5.716,108)
Add: Deferred tax assets (10,466,264)
Deficit, July 1, 2022, as adjusted {(96,182,372)
Net loss during the year closed to deficit (®36,002,217)
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income (net of tax)

Benefit from income tax - deferred 265,138
Net loss actually incurred for the year (35,737,079

TOTAL DEFICIT, December 31, 2022 (#131,919.451)
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SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

SP New Energy Corporation
(Formerly Solar Philippines Nueva Ecija Corporation)
and Subsidiary
As of December 31, 2022 and June 30, 2022

Ratio Formula December 2022 June 2022

Current ratio Dividing total current assets 16.52 3593
over total current liahilities

Acid test ratio Dividing total current assets 16.52 3593
less inventory over tolal
current liabilities

Solvency ratio Dividing net income excluding NIA N/A
depreciation and non-cash
provisions over total

debt obligations

Debt-to-equity ratio Dividing total liabilitics over 0.07 0.11
stockholders” equity

Asset-to-equity ratio Dividing total assets over total 1.07 1.11
stockholders” equity

Interest rate coverage ratio | Dividing earnings before N/A N/A
interest and taxes of one
period over interest expense of
the same period

Net debt-to-equity Ratio Dividing total interest-bearing NiA IN/A
debts less cash and cash
equivalents over total
stockholders’ equity

Return on equity (%) Dividing the net income N/A N/A
(annual basis) by total
stockholders’ equity (average)

Return on assets (%) Dividing the net income N/A N/A
(annual basis) by the total
assets (average)




Annex 68-E

SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Name of Company
As of December 31,

Rafio

Formula

Cumrent Year

Current rafio

Prior Year

Acid test rafio

Solvency rafios

Debt-to-aquity ratio

Assat-lo-equity ratio

interest rate coverage

ratio
Return on equity

Retum on assels

Nel prafit margin

Other rafios
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ANNEX C

Sustainability Report 2023

Contextual Information
Name of Organization: sp New Energy Corporation (SPNEC)
Location of Headquarters: 20" Floor AlA Tower, 8767 Paseo de Roxas,
Barangay Bel-Air, Makali City, Philippines 1226
Location of Operatians: Barangay Las Pifias, Municipality of Pefaranda,

Province of Nueva Ecija

Report Boundary: (Legal entities and subsidiaries Limited to SP New Energy Corporation (SPNEC)
included in this report)

Business Model, including Primary Activities, Renewable energy development and power
Brands, Products, and Services: generation
Repaorting Period: 2023

Highest Ranking Person responsible for this report: | Chief Compliance Officer

* If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only or include the subsidiarias.
However, please consider the principle of materality when defining your repart boundary.

Materiality Process?

Explain how you applied the materiality principle (or the materiality process) in identifying your
material topics.

SPNEC's primary purpose is the development of renewable energy power facilities and the conversion
of renewable energy into usable form fit for electricity generation and distribution. Materiality is limited to
the Company's operations which have actual and relevant environmental, social, and/or community
impact.

It is noteworthy that in November 2023, MGen Renewable Energy, Inc. (MGreen) entered into a
Subscription Agreement to acquire shares of SPNEC. The agreement resulted to MGreen acquiring
50.53% of the tolal issued and outstanding capital stock of SPNEC, which was effective upon the
approval application for the second increase In authorized capital stock with the SEC, this was
subsequently approved on 17 January 2024.

We note that SPNEC is in a state of transition, validation, and consolidation of data following the
acquisition of MGreen of the controlling stake of SPNEC and consequently Is based on matters known
to the current management of SPNEC.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, SPNEC remains committed to the objectives of this sustainability
requirements and shall continually improve its sustainability reporting which includes the identification,
monitoring, and discussion of the Company's impacts and relevant actions in succeeding reports.

Roine

1 an the Ciotmeany's Amended Amietes of incorporation, it principal office iu af 112 Legaspi Sneer, Legaupd Village, Boranioy San

g, Makal Clty, Philjoprnes 1229

* Sue BGRITD2-46 (20T8) for more giidancs




ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

Direct Economic Value ated and Distributed

Disclosurs Amount Units

Direct economic value generated (revenue) 535,451,217 PhP

Diract economic value distribulad:
a.  Operating costs? 315,878 451 PhP
b. Employee wages and benefits 11,123,828 PhP
c. Paymenis to suppliers, other operating costs® 134,794,630 Php
d. Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments o |158,370,800 PhP

loan providers®

g Taxes given to govemment 40,924,852 PhP
f.  Investments to community (e.g. donations, CSR)® 32,194,565 PhP

Primary business operations. Im Shareholders, Business The Company aims to be an enabler
is caused by the Company's Partnars (suppliers, development of the provinces in the
rejationship with its stakeholdars. customears, contractors, Philippines through provision of green
ele.), Govermimenl, and energy for developmenl. SPNEC also
Host Communities seeks to accelerale the adoption of solar
energy through project developmeant,

SPNEC is commitled to the creallon of
sustainable economic opportunities in the
provinces (i.e., ex-Metro Manila) through
employment to the locals therein, as wall
as continuous provision of benefits to host
communities and positive spillover effects
of the laxes paid to the local govemments
during the development phase and once
the projecls start commercial operations.

SPNEC continuously engage with various
stakeholders and be receptive to their
feedback for the company to provide better
sarvice and work for their greater benefit,

" Erchisdos calaiies and wages amountiag fo PP 11, 125808
¥ Rafars o Ganagial nng Aderunisirotes F CFaT TR ﬂ.l..':ﬁ,lfjllll'.' Toves o licenias ar P 40, 524 887 and Orherg arPhe 30 154 505
Sun i paprnents af infarésts a8 PhP 136, 800 476 aha diviclends gr BhR . 570 424
nciuces govarnment sham, benalits tohos! comminifes, pramiums, nolana! feas, fual feas, Wiifides, misc alisngous ang
represaniainn,



The following risks may
Impact SPNEC's operations, and
finrancial performance and position:

Occurrence of Climate-related
events (e.g., flooding, earthquake,
etc.) that could impact the power
plant's integrity and reliability.

Market-related risks such as high
inflation, interest rate volatility, and
gconomic downtum which could
transiate to higher costs

Failure to respond with speed and
agility to regulatory changes might
impede lhe Company's abilily lo
senvice its customers.

Loss of key parsonnel related to
the Company's management and
operations.

Any Possible clalms agalnst the
Company or other unforeseen
evenis

| Shereholders, Business

Partners (suppllers,
customers, confractors,
olc.), Government, and
Host Communities

i SPNEC's Mannnmmnt Team rnn

conducts intermal essessments to ensure
thet risks are properly addressed end
mitigated, Further, the Company's internal
policles provide adequate guidance on
enterprise-wide risk management and
oversight.

"SPNEC idenlified the following
opportunities with respect lo its
business:

Maximizing the capacity of the solar
power plants that the Company
owns or developing.

Expansion beyond where the power
plant i being developead,

Investments in  projects once
commerctal operations start.

Shareholders, Business
Pariners (suppliers,
customers, contractars,
etc.), Govermnment, and
Host Communities

SPNEC is In the process of developing
one af the largest solar power planis In
Asla, as such it continually seeks strategic
parinerships for funding, operations,
amaong others,




Company,
its Board (en banc) and

(CG) Manual, Policies,
and BSiralegles which
serves as the primary
guidance on all aspects

SPNEC, as a Renewable

Energy Company, is at

Mindful of the potential
impacts of climate-
change induced events

ent

The . ..
level Commitleses are

pravalling environmental
laws and regulations.

Board-level Committeas | the forefront of mitigating | mandated to  ensure identifying, consolidating, and
institulionalize SPNEC's | the risks that stem from | SPNEC's  compliance | monitoring relevant metrics
Corporate Govemance | climate change. with its CG Manual and | and targels,

of pgovemnance and |on its business, the

sustainabllity. Company alms 1o
maximize available
technologies to manitor
and mitigate risks.

MNate: The Company doas nol have sufficiant information to fully assess its climalte-related risks and opportunities yet given its current
siate of transition, The Company has yel to implemeant an infegrated program thet will manitor and measure climate-related risks and
oppartunities through a pre-agreed sef of meincs and mitesionas.

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations of
operations that is spent on local suppliers

Units
nla Y%

whmhmwmnmwmmmmmmmmmmmm
measuring, and sufficiantly manitaring this matric

Tha Company, through its sub-contractor,
alms to tap local businesses and residents
for Its requirements for the construction and
operalion ils solar power planl project.
Through this, SPNEC spur economic
activity that may lesd to sustainable
progress at the grassrools level.

ied sUpp Business Pariners and
The Company also has a Host Communities
management services confract with
ils ullimate parent company, SPPPHI,
which includes the procurement of its

requiraments,

" Adapitecd fram the Recommindations of the Task Faren an Climate-Relsted Financl Diselises. T TEFD Recomminitabans apply
fo non-financl companes and financial-sachor orgarisaninn, molicding banks, iniumance compotiag, atsal manegers and Nesal
admer



suppliers to perform the
requirements of its sub- contractor,

Compatitiveness of the costs
associaled with tapping local
communities in the developmant of
the project.

of Procurement policies once the
Company estabiishes its own
Procurement unit once trangition fs

competed.

Development and implementation

Host Communities

" The nmplny has

“The Company Is in the process of

manuals  for
construction, as well as health, safety, and
welfare policles, for purposes of the
developmenl, and  operalions &
maintenance (O&M) of its power plants,
Management ensures that these are
implemented and followed accordingly

establishing its own procurement unit
guided by a clear set of policles and rules.

Parnlnnt;lga of employses ta whom the organization’s anti-
corruption policies and procedurss have been communicated lo

il

Percentage of business partners to whom the crganization's
anti-corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to

Ml

antl-corruption hlnhg

Percentage of directors and management that have received

Mil %

training

Percentage of employees that have recelved anti-coruption

SPNEC's existing and potential
business relationship is maintained
by Directors/ Management Officers,
These relalionships ensure  (he
unimpeded development/ operations
of the Company and its facilities.

ption
between the Company’s Directors
andlor Officers and a third party.

IS officers,
Extemnal business
partners, Govemment,
General public

TGS coumin vy TRVRS TS

anti-comruption drive through its Policy on
Corporate Governance and Ethics, among
athers,

and Policies on Related-party ransactions,
Whistle Blowing, Ethics, among others, are
sullicient lo ensure that this rsk is properdy
identified, monitored, and acled upon,




[ Greation of a more robust Anti-
Corruption poicy that will apply to
stakeholdess

Directors and officers,
Extemal business

partners, Government,
General publc

SPNEC's standards of ethical conduct is in

the Corporale Govemance Manual and
creates a clear code of conduct and ethical
businsss policy.

Number of incidents In which directors were removed or il #
disciplined for commuption

Mumber of incidents in which employees were dismissed or Mil #
disciplined for corruption

Nurmber of incidents when contracts with business partners il #
were lerminated due to incidents of comuption

buﬂnm relationship is maintained
by Directors/ Management Officars.
These relationships ensure  the
unimpeded development! operations
of the Company and its facilities.

" Possible Conflctof Interest and
Bribery (receipt or offering gifts)

“Creation of a more robust Anti-
Corruption policy that will apply to all
stakeholders

ng and potental |

External business
pariners, Government,
General public

Directors and officers,
External business
partnars, Govermment,
General public

SPNEC remains committed to improving fts
anti-comuption drive through its Policy on
Corporate Governance and Ethics, among
olhers,

SPNEC’s Manual on Corporate Governance
and Policies on Related-party ransactions,
Whistie Blowing, Ethics, among others, are
sulficient lo ensure thal this risk /s properly
identified, monitored, and acted upon.

the Corporate Govemance Manual and
create a clear code of conduct and ethical
business policy.




MNote: mwymmmmmmmemmmmwwmmww
:mmu:'rfshmu:mrm it bears to emphasize hawever, that SPNEC remains committed o the objectives sustainability and shal
cantin msmmmmmmmmmumnMde
impacts and relevani aclions in succeeding reparis.

Resource Management

Energy consumption within the organization:
Disclosure Quantity Units
Energy consumption (renewable sources) nil GJ
Energy consumption (gasoline) nil Gl
Energy consumption (LPG) nil GJ
Energy consumption (diesel) nil GJ
Energy consumption (electricity) nil kWh

Reduction of energy consumption
Energy reduction (gasoline) nil GJ
Energy reduction (LPG) nil GJ
Energy reduction (diasel) nil 5.
Energy reduction (electricity) il kWh
Energy reduction (gasoline) nil GJ

Waler recycled and reused MNone Cubic




organization's primary products and services

M!tﬂil';s used by weight or volume
® renewable niil kgfiters
= non-renewable nil kgliters
Percentage of recycled input materials used to manufacture the nil nia %

Operational sites owned, leased, managed In, or adjacent to, il nil
protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside

protected areas

Habitats prolected or restored nil il
IUCN" Red List species and national conservalion list species with | il il
habitats in arsas affected by operations

iatutngtional Undon for Consetvaition of Matiere




e =

CO=
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions il Tonnes

CO=
Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (0ODS) nil Tonnes

Quantity

nil

nil
Parsistent organic. pollutants (POPs) il nia kg
Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) il nfa kg
Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) nil nfa kg
Particulate matter (PM) nil nia kg




Total solid waste generated

Reusable

Recyclable

Composled

Incinerated

Residuals/Landfilled

E-EEEEEE

Total weight of hazardous waste generated

Total weight of hazardous waste transporied

‘Disclosure

Total volume of waler discharges

Percent of wastewater recycled




Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with

PhP

environmental laws and/or regulations
Nn. of non-manetary sanctions for non-compliance with #

environmental laws and/or regulations

No. of cases resolved mmunl; dispute resolution mechanism




Mole: The Company has yel fo consolidate sufficient Information to fully assess Xs social-relaled sustainability melrics given ifs
current state of transition. It bears fo smphasize however, that SPNEC remains commitied o the objectives of the sustainability
requirements and shall continuously improve the sustalmability reporting including the identification and the discussion of the
Company's impacls and relevant actions in the succeeding repors,

Further, SPNEC entered info a Management Service Agreement (MSA) with Solar Philippines Power Project Holdings, Inc.
(SPPPHI) on 30 April 2021. The agreement covers executive and leadership suppor, strategy exscution, management of business
aparations fom 1 May 2021 lo 30 April 2024, The MSA covars afl necessary adminisirative and advisory servicss on manageme,
Invastment, and technical matters invalving Ihe SPNEC's aperations, including, buf not limited to, human resources, legal, finance,

and information fechnalogy.

Employee Management
Employee Hiring and Benefits

Employee data
Total number of employess?

a. Number of female emplayees il #

b. Number of male employees nil #
Adtrition rate'? il Rate
Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage il Ratio

List of Benefits YN ;ﬁﬂm"m % m m z
585 nia nil nil
PhilHealth nfa nil nil
Pag-lbig nfa nil nil
Parental leaves nla nil il
Vacation leaves nia nil nil
Sick leaves n/a nil nil
Medical benefits (aside from PhilHesilth) nia nil nil
Housing assistance (aside from Pag-ibig) nia nil nil
Retirement fund (aside from S55) nia nil nil
Further education support nia nil nil
Company stock options nia nil nil
Telecommuting nfa il il
Flexible-working Hours nfa nill nil
{Others) nia nil nil

: r?mpru]-'ﬁﬂ: arg inoiA doels o deg e gan nr!lufm-lrmm risdgtiorship wirh (he oiganiralio, .1r_'r.m.1r|ul-_ Py nd Gl Lo o iy applicaten

{GRI Standards 2016 Glosnary)

" Aftriflan are = frvo. of hew loos — no. of tumowves faverags of fotal no af smplopoes of preyiows poar and ot oo of ernpiloycos of

Surrant peEar)



Total training hours provided to employees
3, Female employees nil Hours
b, Male employeas nil Hours
Average training hours provided to employees
a. Female employees nil Hours! Employes
b. Male employees nil Hours! Employes

% of employees covered with Collective Bargaining Not applicable %
| Agreements
Number of consultations conducted with employees Mot applicable #

conceming employee-relaled policies

% of famale workers In the workforce n'a %
% of male workers in lhe workforce nia %
Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or nia #
vulnerable sector*

'MWWMMWW.-an,WMMWWM

peopie iving with HIV and olher diseases, solo parents, and tha poor or the base of the pyramid {(BOP; Class D and E),




nfa
No. of work-related injuries na #
No, of work-related fatalities nia #
No. of wark related ill-health nia #
No. of safety drills Twice a year #

No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving forced
or child labor

MNone, as there are no
employees yet

Do you have policies that explicitly disallow violations of labar laws and human rights (e.g. harassment, bullying) in

the workplace?

Topic YN 1 Yes, cite
reference in
the company
policy .

Forced labor Not applicable

Child labor Not applicable

Human Rights Mat applicable




Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the palicy ar link to the policy:

Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers?

“suppli li
Environmenital performance None. The Company defers to applicabls
laws and regulations as It enjoins ils
suppliers \o ensure compliance.
Forced labaor same
Child tabor same
Human rights same

MNone

n'a

*Vulnarable sactor includes chifdren and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vuinersbla woman, refugees, migrants, intemally
mmmpmhmumthumm.mm.undmmwmmmmmmram Class D

For pperations that are affecting IPs, indicale the lolal number of Free and Prior Informed Consenl (FPIC) undergoing consultations
and Cerification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and provide & copy or link fo the certificates if available:




Customer salisfaction nia

Dot T Guantity Cri=
No. of substantiated complaints an product or service none #
health and safety*

Mo. of complaints addressed naone #

* Substantinted compiaints Include complaints from customers thal went

through the organizalion’s farmal communicalion channels
and grievance mechanisms as wall as complaints that were lodged o and acled lpon by goverminent agencies.

No. of substantiated complaints on marketing and labelling*
No, of complaints addressed none #t

* Substantiated complaints inclide complaints from customers thal went through the organization s formal communication channels
and grisvance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and acted upon by government agencies.




No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy® Mone #

No. of complaints addressed None #

No. of customers, users and account holders whose information is | None #
| used for secondary purposes

Substanfiated complaints include complaints from customers that wenf through ihe organization's formal communication Ghannels
and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were jodged to and acled upon by government agencies.




UN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs

Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development,

will  produce  electricity
purely from solar energy, a
clean source of energy.

The Company aims to use
the lalest technology in
solar panels and Inverters,
These drive continuous
gains in efficiencies by
improving productivity and
reducing costs. Newer
technologies also  have
higher energy densities
which require less area for
development. These also

have longer projected
lifespans and lower
maintenance requirements,
reducing waste from repairs
and replacements.

Goal 9: Industry,
Innovation, and
Infrastructure

The Company builds its
energy Infrastructures that
are modularly constructed
and considered to be more
resllient to typhoons which
affect the country.

By design, solar power
plants have no single point
of failure. Thus, repairs and
maintenance may be done
without shutting the entire
plant unlike conventional
sources of energy.

Sclar Energy. RE is
polsed to  posltively
contribute, rather than
negatively, to the
attainment of the UN
5DGs.

Key Products ~ Societal Value / Potential Negative w"""“‘-h"""m“
and Services Contribution to UN SDGs Impact of Contribution Impact

Gahaeation.of Goal 7: Affordable and The Company's primary | The Board of Direclars

Eleciricity Clean Energy source for its power and Management

generation is renewable remains ever mindful

The Company's power planis energy (RE) particularly of the Company's role

in atiaining the UN
SDGs. As  such

business decislons are
attuned lo this
cansideration.




Key Products and

Societal Value /
Contribution to UN SDGs

Patential Negative
Impact of Contribution

Goal 11: Sustainable Citles
and Communities

The Company's investment
In solar power development
contributes to the overall
reduction In air pollufion in
cities and communities by
promoting the use of RE.

Compared to other energy
SOUTCES, solar  power
technology produces fittle to
no emission, noise pollution,
and waler waste.

Given these factors, SPNEC
believes that the use of solar
power technolegy offers the
least negative impact in the
communities it operates in.

Goal 13; Climate Action

The Company is at lhe
forefront of the adoption of
renewable energy in the
Philippines. SPNEC is sel to
develop 3,500 megawalls
(MW} of solar panels and
4,000 MW of battery energy
storage systems in Luzon,

* None/ Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companias, the services and products of its subsidisries may be

disclased,




